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COMPANY LEADERS

1 Hire smart people. 12
2 Make them owners of the business. 16
3 Demand the highest ethical standards. 18
4 Provide great products and strong home office support. 20
5 Give people freedom to try new things. 22
6 Focus on profitable growth. 24
7 Keep your promises. 28
8 Share the rewards. 30
9 Lock ahead. 3z




—— [F YOU ARE READING THIS REPORT, CHANCES ARE
YOU ARE AN CWNER OR FUTURE OWNER OF RLI.
Whether you ere a sharsholder or 8n employes, our
business sucesss I8 because of your ewnership
commiitment. (it is hard to underssiimaie the powstr
of talented, metivated people as evidenced by our
ratio of 84l.d and underwriting proft 26
of the (ast 30 years. That we heve been an ESOP
company for &s is o colncldence. This
detalls the principles we abide by everyday, e
reasens we heve been successiul through the years,
and wity we will continue to suceedd in future.,
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—— Your company delivered again in 2006.

Underwriting results were outstanding. Investment results

set records and our balance sheet has never been stronger.

Our GAAP combined ratio in 2006 was an impressive 84.1.

For the 11* straight year we delivered an underwriting profit.

We have achieved this measure of profitability for 26 of the

last 30 years. Over the last 10 years, we have outperformed

the industry average by 13.2 points.

UNDERWRITING RESULTS
WERE OUTSTANDING

The casualty segment faced the
tough marketplace we expected
last year. Gross premiums written
were down 2 percent. Yet a
combined ratio of 80.4 created
an underwriting profit of $68.4
million. Our results were improved
by $39.3 million of favorahle

loss reserve development;

even without it, this segment’s
combined ratio would have been
an impressive 91.4.

Surety continued its positive
trajectory of premium and profit.
Gross premiums written grew 10

percent and a combined ratio
of 82.1 drove $10.7 million of
underwriting profit,

Property gross premiums
written grew 28 percent. When
other companies pulled back
following the 2004 and 2005
record hurricane seasons, our
underwriters capitalized on this
market dislocation and provided
much-needed capital to a region
recovering from back-to-hack
blows. Qur combined ratio of
95.9, while profitable, was below
our expectations. We believe
the residual impact of our exit

CONTINUED ON R5 ---oxeeemmmmmmees >
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-+ FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

In thousands, except per diluted
share and combined ratic data

2008 2005 % change
Gross premiums written $  799,013° 756,012 5.7
Net premiums written 551,536 494,565 115
Consolidated revenue 632,708* 569,302 11.1
Net eamnings 134,639* 107,134 25.7
Comprehensive eamings 156,999+ 83,902 87.1
GAAP combined ratio 84.1 86.0 (2.2)
Total shareholders’ equity 756,520* 692,941 9.2
Per-share data:
Net earnings $ 5.27* 4.07 29.5
Comprehensive earnings 6.14* 3.1¢9 925
Cash divigends declared 0.75* 0.63 19.0
Book value 3117+ 27.12 14,9
Year-end closing stock price 56.42* 49 87 13.1
Return on eguity 19.1% 16.2% 17.9
Comprehensive return on equity 22.2% 12.7% 74.8

*Year-end company records

4  RLI OWNERS' MANUAL
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from the property construction
husiness in late 2005 is now
behind us. This is a reminder
that although all risks don't reap
rewards, we cannot shy away
from taking them. Exploring new
opportunities far growth is in our
[DNA and a reason for our success.

Our new marine unit had its first
full year of operation and came
ifte its own in 2006. A nationally
recognized book of business formed
quickly and this unit now has

33 employees in nine locations.
Supported by superior technology,
it produced $28.7 millicn of gross
premiums written. This unit is well
on its way to validating the RLI
business model — one that we
ulways seek to replicate.

INVESTMENT RESULTS
SET RECORDS

Our portfolio’s total return was 8
percent, outpacing 2005's return
of 3 percent. These excellent
1esults were driven by an equity
portfolio return of 21 percent
and a bond portfolio return of 5
percent. Both returns surpassed
their benchmarks.

Investment income was up 16
percent. Strong operating cash
flows of $369.8 million over the
last two years contributed to

this performance. At year end,
our investment portfolic was

up 8 percent and stood at $1.8
billion, That is $75.32 of invested

assets hard at work for each
share outstanding. We continue
to maintain a well diversified
portfalio of high investment grade
bonds and large cap, dividend-
paying stocks.

OUR BALANCE SHEET HAS
NEVER BEEN STRONGER

Despite buying back $81.1
million of our stock in a program
we announced in the first
quarter, shareholders’ equity
grew 9 percent to $756.5
million. We continued our 31-
year streak of increasing our
dividend annually. Dividends for
the year increased 19 percent to
$0.75 per share. Over the last
10 years our dividend has grown
by an average of 14 percent
each year. Mergent's Dividend
Achievers ranks RLI 83rd
among 11,000 publicly traded
companies for having the longest
record of consecutive dividend
increases. We will continue to
manage our capital by enabling
sustained profitable growth,
paying and increasing dividends,
and, when it makes sense, by
repurchasing shares.

WE CONTINUE TO MEET
MARKET CHALLENGES AND
ADDRESS CPFPORTUNITY

Property insurance prices in
catastrophe-prone areas rose
significantly in the first three
quarters of the year and then
retreated in the final quarter

as new capacity entered the
market and the last two hurricane
seasons receded into the past.
Cur underwriters remained
disciplined and will continue

to be as underwriting profit is
their utmost priority. Casualty
pricing was relatively stable

but maintained the modest
softening trend we saw in 2005.
Fortunately, margins continue

to be attractive and we remain
focused on maintaining profit in all
marketplace conditions.

We have capital to deploy and wiil
put it to work for us, We remain
watchful of the marketplace as
we believe pricing across the
board will continue to soften.

We also believe that softening
conditions provide an opportunity
to build future capabilities. RLI
successfully added some of our
best products during the last

soft market. Transportation, for
example, was started in 1999 and
today delivers 15 percent of gross
premiums written in our

casualty segment.

We will take advantage of our
ability to attract and enable
talented underwriters — people

CONTINUED ON P7 =verer--mmomnmd] »
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15-YEAR CUMULATIVE
SHAREHOLDER RETURN
Over the past 15 years, RLI's total Assumes $10C invested on December
return to shareholders has been 31, 1991, in RL) and the S&P 50C,
significantly better than that of the with reinvestment of gividends.
S&P 500. ) )
Comparison of 15-year annualized total return
RLI — 19.12% S&P 500 — 10.62%
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5-YEAR CUMULATIVE
SHAREHOLDER RETURN

$100 invested in RU stock in
2001 would have grown to $268
by year-end 2006. An identical
investment in the S&P 500
would have grown to just $135.
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515 647 BBO 989 1,203 1381
337 263 338 375 393 455

STATUTORY

COMBINED RATIO

Underwriting profitability requires a
combined ratio under 100. Qur average
statutory combined ratic has beaten the
industry average by 13.2 points over the
last decade.
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v/ho seek ownership privileges,
raarket challenges, and the
freedom to make a difference.

GREAT RESULTS
FEQUIRE GREAT PEOPLE

I is my pleasure to thank those
vho made this remarkable

year happen: our employees,
brokers, and agents — for

your hard work, intelligent
clecisions, and quality delivery of
products; our customers, those
vie insure — for your faith in
the promises we make to you;
and our shareholders — for
your investment in us and your
continuing loyalty and trust.

(ur approach to growth is to
identify talented underwriters,
hire them, and start writing

the line of business they know
tiest. Or, we identify a specific
product niche where we see
apportunity and then find the
Linderwriting talent who can staff
it. We give these talented people
underwriting authority — the
freedom to make decisions and
take action — and high levels of
technical and customer support.
\We compensate our underwriters
based on the profits they deliver.

\Ye are a nimble, entrepreneurial
company that enters markets
quickly and makes money. Qur
investors have benefited as RLI
stock has created a total average
annual return to shareholders

of 22 percent over the past five
years and 19 percent over the
last 15.

Another reason for our sustained
growth is our Employee Stock
Ownership Plan which we began

in 1975. We hire the best and

the brightest people and reap

the rewards of talented, loyal
employees who have a stake in

the business and strong motivation
to perform. Fifteen percent of RLI
stock is owned by insiders.

Believing that to those

whom much is given much is
expected, RLI employees in our
headquarters in Peoria and in our
offices around the country are
engaged in community service
and in proactive, strategic giving.
We focus our energies and
commitment on three main areas:
education, youth, and those in
need. We all are grateful for the
means 1o make a difference and
for our company's strong support.

THE YEAR AHEAD
HOLDS PROMISE

In spite of a softening insurance
market, 2007 should be a year

of growth for RLI in new lines of
business and in our current lines,
We will continue to concentrate
on specialty products — niches
on which the general marketplace
fails to capitalize. We will continue
to look for teams of people

who can bring us product and

who can support that product's
success. We enter the new

year with a focus on excellent
selection criteria and expense
management skills, both of
which will be important as the
marketplace softens. While we
are doing the basic blocking and
tackling, we will alsa be looking
for apportunities that will benefit
us over time.

We have grown premiums and
profits in 2006 and our investors
have prospered as they have
through the years. But, as
importantly, we are stiil early in
our life-cycle as a business, We
welcome the opportunities and
challenges of 2007 and remain
confident in our ahility to continue
to grow and handle well whataver
May come our way.

This Owners” Manual is for

our employee owners, our
shareholders, and all who may
want to join us. RLI performance
is impressive and our potential is
tremendous.

&MZZ E Mtk

Jonathan E. Michael
PRESIDENT & CEO
FEBRUARY 28§, 2007

PRESIDENT'S LETTER | 7
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OUR COMPANY

Who We Are

\We are a specialty property and casualty insurer operating nationwide on both an admitted (regulated) and
excess and surplus lines (less regulated) basis. We combine profitable underwriting, solid investment retums,
and effective capital management to deliver consistent, long-term growth in shareholder value. Qur officers
and employees are rewarded on metrics that align with our shareholders' interests.

Insurance is an industry with nearly $500 billion in direct written premiums.
In 2008, we wrote $799.0 million of coverage, 91 percent commercial lines,
9 percent personal lines. A.M. Best Company rates all three of our insurance
subsidiaries A+ (Superior), a distinction held by fewer than 10 percent of all

property and casualty insurance companies in the country.
How We Do It

We develop coverages designed to meet specific needs. These range from highly automated, self-underwriting
products to highly complex, individually underwritten coverages. In all cases, we leverage technology to bring superior
service to underserved customers. Our customers are businesses and individuals throughout the United States.

Insurance coverages are distributed through many means. Wholesale brokers help retail agencies place

complex commercial coverages. Other products are more common, are “value added” coverages, or are

specialized for an industry, and are delivered through retailers. Other coverages are more suited for general

agencies, Page 41 shows how RLI products are distributed.

JUR MISSION

We provide our customers with
outstanding service through
innovative risk management
products and solutions.

We are dedicated to carefully
shosen niche markets.

‘We attract outstanding talent and
continuously develop our expertise,

We constantly re-evaluate, enhance,
and reinvigorate our business
model to create new preoducts,
services, and delivery systems.

‘Ne create longterm shareholder
value by pursuing profitable growth,
underwriting for a profit, and
arning returns that significantly
2xceed our cost of capital.

OUR VISION

As the leading provider of
specialized insurance and
financial services, RLI is
focused on building and
managing a partfalio of
innovative products and
solutions that meet and
surpass the expectations
of shareholders.

QUR VALUES

We are talented.
We are innovative.

We are customer focused.

We are driven.

We are people of integrity.
We are respectful.

We are owners.

RLI AT A GLANCE
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9 BUSINESS PRINCIPLES
THAT DRIVE OUR SUCCESS
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& photo: Murali Natarajan, assistant
vice president, strategic information
services, uses his strong mix of
technical and business skills to match
IT with RLI's entrepreneurial style.

12 RLI OWNERS™ MANUAL

1.

RIRE SMART

RLI founder Jerry
Stephens has often
said that the company
would never hire anyone
who isn’t smarter than
he is. He made it a
priority to hire people
with exceptional talent
and ability. Their
knowledge, ingenuity,
innovation, and
commitment make this
company a success.
Our talent distinguishes
us. That's not just a
sales pitch; it's what
we truly believe.

MURALI NATARAJAN

What makes the ideal IT person? A
tot of knowledge about information
technology — and just as much
knowledge about business. At RLI,
that person is Murali Natarajan.

Essentially, he's a translator.

“I help bridge the gap between
business and technology. | can
talk in insurance language, so |
understand our business needs.”




he says. “And because | also
understand technalogy, | can
interpret those needs into
objectives for IT staff to meet.”

Natarajan is a CPCU and also
holds a master's degree in
information systems and an MBA.
While his education certainly
contributed to his knowledge, he
credits his coworkers with the bulk
of his expertise. “Formal education
gave me the tools to do my job,
But it is my fellow associates who
have shown me how to put those
tools to their best use.”

Natarajan has been an RLI
employee since 1997, primarily
working on Web-based systems
for external producers/agents.
Now he's charged with turning
his talents inward.

"My group provides business
intelligence for a strategic

advantage. That means we try
to tell a story using the data we
have,” he says. “Can we make
information meaningful to others
in the company? Qur goal is to
provide a single version of the
truth, so everyone sees the data
the way it should be viewed.”

CRAIG DAVIS

Craig Davis spends a lot of time
looking at computer models

— the perfect job for someone
with a Ph.D in mathematics. He's
a senior assistant actuary at RLI
who uses his skills to study and
analyze commercial catastrophe
models, helping provide the input

used by RLI underwriters to better

evaluate catastrophic perils.

“My math background helps me
solve problems. It's a way of
thinking,” he says. “| know a lot
about distribution and probability.

=left(top): RLI is headguartered in Peoria, IIl.
— a thriving city in the heart of the Midwest
that combines big-city assets with small-town
charm anc convenience. >loft(bottom):
Murali Natarajan and his team in the
strategic information services department are
respensible for providing business intelligence
to the company -—— making sure everyone in
the organization [s interpreting data the way it
should be interpreted. >below: lerry Wanger
and Manny Bedi are part of RLI's IT team.

Geometry gives me some tools
that are invaluable in what I'm
doing. And I'm able to make the
math concepts something others
can use, presenting them in a way
others can understand.”

For the fast six months Davis has
been studying RLI's catastrophe
portfolio and looking at how

to best use the commercial
models available. “We look at the
distribution of losses and try to
get ideas about how to get the
appropriate price for our product
while staying within RLI's risk
toterances,” he explains.

Using existing models, Davis created
a too! that helps RLI develop

THE PRINCIPLES: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 13




and better manage its diversified
catastrophe portfolia. “It uses output
from the commercial medels
combined with the knowledge of
our exposure to give underwriters
information about what we need to
charge in order to get a satisfactory
return for the assumed risk,” he says,

BECKY LUNDBERG

Becky Lundberg’s career doesn't
fit the stereotype associated with
her background. The daughter of
an attorney and schoolteacher
from a small town, she earned

a cum {aude degree in math

from Wake Forest University. Yet,
she's been in the personal lines
insurance business for over 20
years — the last 10 at RLI.

An assistant vice president,
Lundberg is responsible for
balancing the profit of the
personal umbrella line with the
growth of the product. “I think

my skill set actually fits well

in the insurance business and
particularly at RLI,” she says.
“Math requires you to challenge
and seek out lots of potential
ocutcomes. We want to make sure
that the implications of a decision

14 RLI OWNERS™ MANUAL

are well thought out. We don't

always get it completely right, but
we're not surprised too often.”

Her analytical skills are essential.

“One of the tools | use most
frequently is my ability to connect
the dots and see around the
corner,” she says. “It can be
chatlenging to come up with ways
to increase top line growth — but
it's an even dreater challenge

to make sure that growth also
maximizes profit.”

>top: Using commercial catastrophe medels, Craig
Dawvis created a 100! that dynamically adjusts the
price of coverage to recoghize concentration of

risk, >middle: Betsy McLaughlin covers claims
nationwide, but is able to live in Syracuse, N.Y.,
where she is close to her family. »bottom:

Becky Lundberg spends a lot of time nurturing
relationships., “We can't always do what cur
distribution partners and customers are asking,”
she says. “But at least they understand why.”

She also nurtures RLI's refationship
with “The Big |.” the Independent
Insurance Agents & Brokers

of America (lIABA), the largest
insurance trade association in
the country. “I am the face of RLI
with the IABA,” she says. “IJABA
is involved in consumer and
government affairs and advocacy
on insurance and agency issues.
Our deep relationship with the IIABA
brings value to all RLI stakehoiders.”

BETSY MCLAUGHLIN

When RLt is faced with a claim,
Betsy McLaughlin, assistant

vice president, gets to work

— investigating, making sure
reserves are set and ultimately
ensuring that the claim is properly
resclved. She often finds herself
in a room filled with lawyers,

That doesn’t bother her at all

— because she's one of them.

McLaughlin practiced law in
Hartford, Conn., for seven years,
representing both plaintiffs and
defendants. When she changed
careers and got into the insurance
business, she immediately felt a
fit in the claims department,

“In the claim unit at my first
insurance job were some of the
smartest people Fve ever met,”
she says. “I learned so much from
them. Fortunately, | still work with
several of them, but here at RLI."




The bulk of McLaughlin's werk
right now is the handling and
aversight of high exposure
claims in the areas of general
liabitity, commercial and personal
umbrella, professional liability,
and all large losses for the
transportation division.

“With the claims | handle, there is
a lot at stake,” she says. “My job
is to make sure we do the right
thing and the smart thing. There
are many factors to be considered
when handling any claim. We have
a responsibility to our insureds
and shareholders to do what's
right and fair”

PAUL O'SULLIVAN

Underwriter Paul O'Sullivan knows
a lot about surety. He started in the
business right out of college and
has been exposed to the whaole
array of the surety world, working as
an underwriter for contract bonds,
commercial bonds, fidelity bonds,
and fiduciary liability policies.

But what makes O'Sullivan and
the RLI surety team unique isn’t
their dedication and expertise in
the surety business. It's their total
focus and wealth of knowledge in

one industry. In O’Sullivan’s case,

it's oil, gas, and energy. “This is all
we do,” he says. “We understand
the industry, the regulators, the
customers, and their properties.

“I had to learn about exploration,
production, and economic aspects of
the industry,” he continues. “There’s
a lot of knowledge and research that
goes into the process of drilling a
well, but even that doesn't guarantee
success.” Without a bond,
operators can't work. And each
day means thousands of dollars.

Helping oil and gas companies
begin operations is just part of
the equation. The geoal is to write
bonds that also generate a profit
for RLI. “It's more of an art than
a science,” he says. “We look

at reserve reports, production
reports, and the financial
statements of the company and
make an informed decision.”

STEVE WILSON

In the executive products arena,

who you know may be almost as

important as what you know. That's
why Steve Wilson, an RLI assistant
vice president, credits the success

of his group to “a lot of shoe
leather and perseverance.”

“RLI was not well known in this
arena when we started but had

a great story that needed to be
told,” he says. “Fortunately, we had
a few friends in the industry who
were good enough to give us an
opportunity when we were getting
started. Having good relationships
with our agents and brokers is an
important part of the equation.”

It's also important to be a student
of the business, Wilson says. “We
insure companies in a wide variety
of industries, from railroads

to computer manufacturers.

As a result, we need to have a
basic knowledge of all of those
industries. We do a lot of reading
and research and meet with

most of our insureds during the
underwriting process.”

He finds sharing his experiences
especially rewarding. “Knowledge
and experience are great to have,
hut if you don't pass it along you
are missing out on one of the
most rewarding parts of the work
experience,” he says. “There is
nothing | enjoy more than seeing
someone | work with succeed in
this business. That's a big part of
why | ike what ! do.”

»left: Paul O'Sullivan is 100 percent focused on
the oil, gas, and energy industry. >right: Nearly
25 years of industry experience helps Steve
Wilson knowledgeably evaluate risks for RLI

THE PRINCIPLES: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 15
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b MAKE THEM
OWNERS

" OF THE
BUSINESS.

photo: Skip Qrza’s successful Executive
Products Group is a perfect example of
what can happen when companies hire
smart pecple, give them the right tools,
compensate them accordingly, and share
the wealth.

RLI founder Jerry Stephens understood that putting smart, entrepreneurial
people together and providing them the opportunity to share the wealth

is much smarter than going it alone. When it became legally possible to
do that through Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) legisiation
over 30 years ago, he immediately took advantage of it.

The ESOP is not a gift; it's an incentive. When peopte are owners, they go above and beyond to
make the operation run smoothty. They feel a responsibility for every part of the company — not

just the division in which they are employed. They display a pride of ownership that truly makes

a difference in the success of the company. And they reap the rewards.

16 RLI OWNERS™ MANUAL




GROWING THE EXECUTIVE
PRODUCTS GROUP

A Quentin “Skip” Orza |l became an
RLI owner nine years ago, when he
jained the company to take over its
fledgling Executive Products Group
(EPG). At that time, he didn't realize
that when executives told him he
was an owner, they meant it.

‘| didn't come to RLI simply
hecause of the ESOP,” the vice
president says. “1 thought it was
intriguing, but | didn't really
understand its true value over the
long term. But they really mean it.
“he more | grow our business, the
more that stock price appreciates.
And we all reap the rewards.”

Growth has been the order of the
day for EPG. “We took over a group
which at that time was small,” he
says. “We had our work cut out far

11s. When | started here, this was a
%6 million group. As of 2006 it has
rown tenfold, and we expect to
continue to grow in 2007."

Jrza says the ESOP has a definite
10le in the growth of EPG. “I'm
working because | enjoy the
husiness,” he says. “But that
doesn’t mean the ESOP isn't a

motivator. it's drilled into people
that they are owners. When you
get that quarterly ESOF ownership
report, it means something,

“Everyone tatks about paying
people for their performance, but
RLI really does it,” he says. “There’s
a direct correlation between
performance and profitability.”

FOCUSING ON
TRANSPORTATION COVERAGE

Like his counterpart in the
Executive Products Group,
Dave Dunn, president of RLI
Transportation, didn't join RLI
because of the ESCP. But today
he recognizes the rote it plays
in the success of the company.

“Allowing pecple to be owners is
a key to our success,” Dunn says.
“Anyone who has been here over

five years can really see what that
grows into. People know they have
an impact on the success of the
company.”

RLI's ownership mentality was
apparent from the beginning,

Dunn says. “The early years were
difficult, but RLI leadership made it
clear that we were in this together.”

He started the division 10 years
ago on his dining room table with
a couple of laptop computers.
“We had no business,” he recalls.
“But RLI never wavered in their
support of us. They stuck with

us and we turned the corner and
have been profitable ever since.”

Because all employees are
owners, everyene in the company
is rewarded for their hard work.
Dunn finds that leads to an
atmosphere of teamwork. “When
you call the heme office here, they
say, ‘How can | help you,' instead
of "What do you want?’

“You have to have people arpund
who understand the business
and support it,” Dunn says. “This
really is a team of owners. It's
not me delivering profit from
transportation coverage; it's we.”

>left: Skip Orza and team members

Jasen Rubman, left, and Sam Partridge

in their Summit, N_J., office. >rght: RLI's
transportation division is located in Atlanta but
provides underwriting and claims expertise for
customers nationwide.

THE PRINCIPLES: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 | 17




- 3.
e DEMAND THE HIGHEST

ol

The owners of RLI don’t
just do ethical things;
they're ethical people.

It's more than how they
do their jobs. It's who
they are. They're honest
and fair-dealing and live
their values. They are
people of integrity who
are respectful, talented,
innovative, customer
focused, and driven.

GIVING CLIENTS THE MOST
FOR THEIR MONEY

When broker Terry Moody looks
for general liability coverage for
her wide variety of insureds, she
seeks a partner who will help her
get the broadest coverage at the
best possible premium.

“Mine are not cookiecutter
accounts,” explains the senior vice
president at Colemont Insurance
Brokers. “So it takes a lot of
innovation, high ethical standards,
and a close working refationship
with my underwriter.”

ehabelifil B LE Sk

Moody has found all of those
things with RLI, partnering with
Sharon Westerfield, assistant vice
president, for the last seven years
to develop customized coverage
for her customers.

photo: Broker Terry Moody's cammitment to longterm
relationships has helped her maintain her accounts

an average of seven years — a long time in a market
where mast shop for new coverage every year.

18 RLI OWNERS' MANUAL




“RLI delivers a consistent
appreach and has the same
values | do.” Moody says. “RLI is
a good partner. They work with
their broker partners to address
the changing coverage needs of
the insureds.”

Colemont’s goal is to negotiate
and obtain the broadest possible
coverage for its unique and

diverse insureds. “RLI helps me
tiake a Chevy and give them Rolls
Foyce coverage,” Moody says.

For example, when one of
Colemont's accounts agreed
to earmark 50 percent of its

rzpossessed units to house
Furricane Katrina evacuees,
RLl agreed to provide the
liability coverage.

“These were repossessed
homes in low-income
communities,” she explains.
“When they're unoccupied,
there’s liability to those who
may be on the property. When
the homes become occupied,
that risk is different.”

RLI not only provided coverage
with fewer exceptions, but also

*>top: RLI partners with Colernont Insurance
Brokers, one of the largest independent
wholesate brokers in the United States.
Calemont’s brokerage group is headguartered
in Dallas, Texas. >keft: RU provides liability
coverage for one of Colemont Insurance Brokers'
clients, who is allowing Hurricane Katrina
evacuees 10 five in its repossessed homes in
Texas.,

priced it reasonably. “That's
why we value RLI.” Moody says.
“Their skilled underwriters are
empowered with the authority
to make decisions based on
their knowledge.”

Moody calls RLI a first ¢class
insurance partner for Colemont.
“They value this partnership,
and it shows.”

SHARON WESTERFIELD:
DRIVEN TO SUCCEED
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RLI Corp. started as a
single product company
in 1965, branching

out into other areas

in 1977. Now, more
than 40 years later,

we pride ourselves on
providing a wide variety
of products that solve
specific business
needs and meet unique
personal needs. Our mix
of property, casuaity,
and surety products

is written by the most s
talented underwriters in |8
the industry and backed
by top-notch support
and service in our
branches and in the
home office.

4,

PROVIDE GREAT PRODUCTS AND

WPP@@T :

A NEW WAY OF DOING

photo: The support system set

BUSINESS FOR RLI up hy Tomasz Milczarek and
his team allows RLI's Target
RLI has great specialty property Market Specialists to deploy new

L ) products in less than a week.
and liability niche products for

the hospitality, leisure, and s
. | %
recreation industries, We have & £/
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row made it even easier for
ggents and their customers to
take advantage of them.

“In 2006, our Target Market
Specialists (TMS} group became
licensed agencies in 35 states,”
explains Target Market Specialists
vice president Jim Davis. “This is a
different way of doing business for
RLI. We still sell products through
vholesalers and regional program
administrators, but can now also
celiver our products directly to
retail agents — and that puts us
closer to the customer.”

TMS provides specialty niche
products and service solutions
for commercial establishments

| ke bars, restaurants, hotels,
golf courses, bowling centers,
and sports fitness facilities,
Oftentimes, these types of
tiusinesses get their insurance
from a standard lines provider,
directly from a retail agent. Prior
to TMS' licensing, many potential
customers wouldn’t have even
known RLI coverage was available
1o them. Davis calls the new
arrangement a win-win situation.

'There are lot of reasons why

this is a good idea.” Davis

says. “Because we develop
relationships with agents and
customers, we can expect a higher
tetention rate. Retail agents

like it because of outstanding
{urnaround time and improved
profit margins. RLI customers now
have access to better coverage
than ever before from a company
with a strong financial standing

and A+ rating. And because

RLI's products are not standard,
solutions are designed specifically
for the businesses they protect.
We combine customized coverage
with better service than anybody.”

Part of that service is thanks to
home office support from RLI.
While TMS was in the process
of developing new products

and distribution relationships
throughout the United States,
the information technology
department in Peoria was busy
developing both front-end and
back-end support for this new way
of doing business.

Project manager Tomasz Milczarek
and his IT team were charged

with installing, configuring, and
madifying existing software to talk
to the RLI system via Web service
and creating terminal services so
each underwriter can utilize a single
point of access. The team also
coordinated the deployment of the
TMS Web site, which was created
by the communication team.

Davis and his group set the
standards for service level criteria.
“They wanted retail agents to
have an answer to a request for
coverage within one business day,”
Milczarek says. “So we created

a system that does that. It truly
can happen in a day if all the
information entered by the agent is
complete, We guarantee efficiency.
speed, and accuracy of data.”

“That's a true advantage,” says
Davis. “The customer doesn’t lose

THE PRINCIPLES: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 ©

in coverage and wins in faster
turnaround time. Sometimes
that's the difference in whether
we write the business or not.”

Davis is excited about what the
future holds for TMS. “We believe
this is a way for us to be profitable
and to build our expertise, truly
customizing product delivery
through this online system. it
gives us a much better chance

of increasing our profits.”

>top: TMS provides coverage for the
haspitality ingustry. including bars

and restaurants, >bottom: The Policy
Administration System for managing
agencies is one of three components in
RLI’s TMS suppaort system.
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photo: Bob Schauer, president of RLI Marine, 4‘—
went from managing a small piece of a large
company to being a big fish in a small pend.

5.

GIVE PEOPLE

FREEDOM TO TRY °
NEW THINGS.

[ e

L e e ——

FROM ZERO TO 30 1IN 18 MONTHS

Great things are possible when “We had A+ rated paper

you give people the freedom to and instant credibility in the

try new things. Take RLI's new marketplace with the RLI name,”
marine division. This talented says Bob Schauer, president

team of underwriters came ta RLI of RLI Marine. “They provided
in 2005 with unparalleled industry  the infrastructure, IT support,
knowledge, a few loyal customers,  and knowtedge 10 get us up

and a hunger for more. and running quickly and made
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‘ RLI is a place where talented people experience the magic of
entrepreneurship and the energy it fosters. They have the freedom and
the authority to do things their way, the resources to help make it happen,
and a share of the rewards when they succeed.

a commitment to building a
complete marine eperation around
the country.”

The results have been remarkable.
In just 18 manths:

- Marine staff has increased from
three employees to more than 30.




- The group now has a nationwide
presence with people in nine
locations.

- In 2006, the division wrote nearly
$30 million in premiums.

Schauer points to the
company’s management style
as the greatest reason for the
tremendous growth. “Because
vie're a flat organization, without
rzd tape, decisions are made
et the underwriter tevel so that
vie gan reply much faster with
£ policy or quote,” he says,
“Qur customers appreciate
that service,

“RLI asked us for gne thing — to
cleliver consistent underwriting
profits.” Schauer continues,
“And what we got in return was

the freedom ta run this business
and an opportunity to share in the
profits we generate.”

Marine is a perfect example of
the RLI business model — hiring
a team of talented underwriters
and giving them the support
necessary to build a business.
The RLI executive team trusts

in the talent and abilities of its
underwriters, providing leadership
instead of micro-management.

“We're proud of what we've
accomplished in such a short
time and even more excited about
what we know is coming,” says
Schauer. “What we've achieved in
2006 is a testament to the ability
of RLI to integrate opportunities
and enable quick success.”

SUPPORT FROM
THE HOME OFFICE
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3 top: RL! doesn't require underwriters to relocate 1o its lllinois home office. The marine division
i headquartered in Manhattan and serves customers nationwide. »bottem: The marine group
--shown here in its Manhattan conference room — is a success story RLI plans to replicate in
e future.
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photo: Agency owner Ron Schroeder
appreciates the new, easy-to-use
onling transaction system developed
for RLI's surety group.
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6.

FOCUS ON
PROFITABLE

O o

RLI doesn’t just want
to grow — it wants to
grow profitably. That's
why every opportunity
for growth is weighed
by what it can do for
the bottom line of our
company. We either
grow the products we
have, or we add new
ones to our portfolio.
And we only do so

if it can increase

our profitability.

GROWING THROUGH
GEOGRAPHY AND
TECHNOLOGY

2006 was the best year in the
history of RLI's 14-year-old surety
operation. Gross premiums written
were up 10 percent, while the

net loss ratio was down 10.3
percentage points. Bottom-line
profit was substantial.

RLI's surety group writes bonds
nationwide for four independent
business units: contract; oil,




{'as, and energy; miscellaneous
(high-volume, low premium); and
commercial.

“We had an incredible year based
on the strengths of people in the
tield and a good economy,” says
Roy Die, vice president, surety.
“Underwriting income doubled

-— from $5.2 million in 2005 to
$10.7 million in 2006."

Die attributes much of the
ffrowth to geographic expansion
and a consistent approach to
underwriting. “We're already in
Tour different surety segments.
We've determined the types of
husiness we want to be in, and
will continue to be a dependable
market for these products.”

“This is a relationship
husiness,” says Dave Sandoz,
vice president, surety. “We look
1ar experienced surety people
who have already developed
those relationships and have
i successful track record, We
transition them to our madel
and systems quickly so they can
hit the ground running.”

The surety business is cyclical
hased on the economy — but
RLI's solid underwriting helps
+he group turn a profit even in
market downturns. “We have
alented underwriters making
Jood risk decisions and we
1ave the best underwriters for
zach situation closest to that
“ransaction,” says Sandoz. “They
understand the markets they're
n better than anyone.”

Peoria, lll., agency owner Ron
Schroeder appreciates the
unsurpassed knowledge of RLI
underwriters and the freedom
they have to embrace new
ideas. He operates Peoria
Insurance Services, selling
license and permit, fidelity,
and other miscellaneous
bonds. He also has a second
agency, Notary Express, which
is a mass marketer supplying
notary bonds in six states. He
hopes to expand to 10 states
by year end, and credits RLI's
innovation and technology as
a key to that growth.

“Most insurance companies
are managed with an ‘ivory
tower’ philosophy — and
everyone befow that level is a
little apprehensive about doing
anything new,” he says. “But
at RLI, they are expected to
entertain new ideas and new
profit centers. That's very good
for me because | like to look
for those niche markets — just
like RLI."

The launch of a new online
transaction system for the
surety group is helping
Schroeder with his expansion.
RLink? is a faster, smarter,
and easier version of a tool
dating back to the mid-1990s.
The vision is to use RLink?
throughout the entire surety
division, but the initial focus

is on higher transaction
accounts like those found in the
miscellaneous surety category.

The new tool delivers Web-based
realtime access and can guote,
rate, and issue bonds instantiy.

It allows agents to issue bhonds
within their underwriting authority
and provides electronic document
management. And cutting down
the workload makes RLI more
appealing to agents.

“Any time a company can shift
the processing function to the
agent, it becomes more efficient
for both entities to operate,”
says Schroeder. “For example,

Sy P M. 4 20 a5 o e 3}

»top: The new systemn improves on Its earlier
version, RLink, by plugging In calculations
behind the scenas and eliminating the need
for pricing cards.

RLI allows me to market notary
and notary errors and omissions
business, s¢ | can expand my
operation. They provide the
service and platferm and let
me run with the ball. It's a
win-win situation.”
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“RLink? provides a number of
benefits to agents,” says Karl

Flower, director of application
technology. “It's an easy-to-use,
one-touch system. The agent
gets on the Web, plugs in data,
finds out the cost, executes
the bond. and then sends his
customer out the door with a
bond form in his hand.”

Requests that don't fall within
the controlled limits are
automatically routed to an RLI
underwriter. “It comes off as
seamless to the agent,” says
Sandoz. “Even when a request
is referred to an underwriter,
we do it behind the scenes
very guickly.”

Schroeder and other agents
helped RLI design the system.
“We made suggestions how

a marketing agency like mine
would like to see it. and they've

26 RLI OWNERS' MANUAL

adapted it to meet our needs,” he
says. “It's completely automatic,
There's no downtime waiting for
approvals, which is essential to
us. They're as hands-off as they
can be.”

While RLink? was designed to
make RLI attractive to surety
agents, it includes a number of
benefits for RLI as well. It takes
volumes of knowledge from
underwriters and stores it in
one easy-to-access place.

“1t simplifies our lives,” says
Flower. “Now we don’t have

to chase documents. Before,
a folder would be reuted.
fited, then pulled again. We've
made a big effort to get things
scanned so they are available
electronically. We had 80,000
documents scanned into the
system over the last year. The

»photos: Agency owner Ron Schroeder
appreciates the fact that RLink? significantly
reduces the amount of paperwork required 1o
write surety bonds. Instead of being stored

in his filing cabinets, left, RLink? stores data

in an easyto-access Web-based system, The
system shifts processing functions 1o the agent
— making it more efficient for both the agent
and RLI.

elimination of paper alone
justified this project.”

“To make surety profitable,

you need good people on the
front end, which we have,” says
Sandoz. “Cn the back-end, you
need lots of good management
and staff. They deliver centralized
agency suppert, handle
processing and collections,
and assist our underwriters
throughout the country with
general underwriting support.”

Schroeder considers RLI a
partner. “Any time | have the vice
president’s phone extension in
my Rolodex, and when | call he
answers the phone, that is a
company | want to do business
with. And it’s not only their vice
presidents, but IT people as well.
Sandy Swinford (director of surety
automation) has both agency and




IT experience, so she’s always
willing to listen. She'll teli me if
something can't be done — and
if it can. she'll say, 'Why didn't [
think of that?’

“They think independentiy,

and because they deal with
independent agencies, there’s
more of a meeting of the minds,”
Schroeder says.

“AKING ADVANTAGE OF
MARKET OPPORTUNITIES

ometimes success

means taking advantage of
opportunities. Thanks to its
size and flat organizational
structure. RLI is able to quickly
capitalize on market changes,
In 2006, the company continued
1o increase premium writing on
the heels of the 2004 and 2005
hurricane season,

‘The catastrophe market
reaction to the 2005 hurricane
season was swift and dramatic,”
says Jeff Wefer, senior vice
president, E&S property. “Many
traditional writers had followed
the market down during this

period and had to leave the
arena either due to losses or
over-exposure. Buyers who
were used to low deductibles
and large limits became frantic
in their search to obtain even
minimal coverage.”

The situation created many
opportunities, Wefer explains,
and because RLI has remained
consistent and adhered to its
guidelines, the company was in
position to take advantage of
them. “This has always been one
of our goals,” Wefer says. “We
position ourselves so we can
pursue opportunities as they arise
and use our expertise to out-
perform the general market.”

in addition to a team of top-
notch underwriters and strong
relationships with brokers,

RLI uses leading-edge risk
management techniques

and modeling tools to make
educated decisions that lead to
profitable growth, “There's no
real ramp-up period because our
systems capabilities support
the underwriters,” says Wefer.

“Leveraging IT enables them to
write more business, issue more
policies, and provide outstanding
service with a rapid turnaround.
They're able to quickly quote and
bind coverage.

“Growth in this area was
practically overnight — and we
had the people, systems, and
relationships in place to make
it happen.”

r
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Insurance is a promise from start to finish. We promise
to deliver an innovative, cost-effective product that meets
each customer's individual needs. We promise to nurture
relationships by returning phone calls, answering questions,
70 and continually looking for ways to improve coverage. And
KEEP YOUR | we promise to quickly and proactively process claims,
_ PROMISIES. | defend our insureds, and get a fair resolution.

|

photo: Dennis Firestone, a former CART
driver who raced in the Indianapolis 500, is
the owner of RLI custemer KKW Trucking Inc.
and Furniture Transportation Systems Inc.
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BUILDING A RELATIONSHIP
3ASED ON TRUST

4 |ong-term relationship between
3 California-based trucking
sompany, RLI, and SafeFleet
Insurance Services is a success
secause all three are dedicated
to keeping their promises.

RLI promises to provide innovative
coverage and exceptional claims
service. The trucking company,
WKW Trucking Inc. and Furniture
Transportation Systems tnc.
[(KKW/FTS), promises to do
gverything possible to maintain

a safe operation. And SafeFleet
agent Bruce Blumberg vows never
to make promises he can’t keep.

“If we fail to keep our promises, I'm
out of business,” says Blumberg,
who started SafeFleet and later sold
it to RLI. “Since 1 only do trucking,
I must have a good reputation.
These guys talk to ohe another,

I have to maintain their trust.”

Blumberg had tried to land the KKW/
FTS account for a number of years,
When an upward spiral in the cost
of fleet insurance made coverage
unaffordable for many trucking
firms, KKW/FTS came 1o RLI for
help and has never looked back.

“We were really scrambling,” says
owner Dennis Firestone. “We were
trying to find a solution to the high
cost of insurance that would allow

us to survive.”

That desperation led Firestone

to a new way of insuring his fleet.
“Previously we had coverage with
low deductibles. But we paid a
higher price for that luxury. We
decided we needed o take on more
risk in order to make our insurance
atfordable during those tough
times. So that's what we did.”

RLI provides inngvative solutions
for the transportation market,
says Blumberg. “We specialize.
We know and are focused on the
trucking business. We won't walk
away when other companies might
pull coverage or jack up their prices.”

Firestone says the new way of
insuring his fleet has changed the
way the company thinks about
claims, “Of course, you always care
if you have a claim,” he says, “But it
Seems now we care even more when
we're writing the checks. We didn't
feel it as much when the insurance
company was handling it."”

Now Firestone wouldn't have it any
other way. “In retrospect, it's been
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>loft: RLI provides transportation coverage
through SafeReet Insurance Services in Irvine,
Calif. »rizht: SafeFeet agent Bruce Blumberg,
left, has a longterm retationship with the KKW
team: from le#t, John Naughton, owner Dennis
Firestone, Susan Zellmann and Lynnette Brown.

a great, fortuitous situation,” he
says. “The cost of lower deductible
insurance has gone down
significantly over the last four or five
years, but we're not changing. We
actually paid a premium last year to
stay with RLI, because | didn't want
to disturb a winning combination.”

It helps that RLI's claim service is
top-notch. “RLI always handles the
claims,” says Blumberg. *There
will always be a person from RLI
handling every claim and making
decisions regarding it."

RLI recently located a claims
representative in the California
office to provide even better
service. “We have a great rapport
with the claims representative,”
says Susan Zellmann, KKW/FTS
safety manager. “He always calls
me right back and stays on top of
cases. It makes my job so much
easier. I'm very happy.”
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photo: Steve Lindell shows off one of 4——-——
the five classic cars he keeps at his
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From the ESOP program to generous compensation and benefits, RLI lives up to

its promise to share the rewards of success with the people who make it possible.
Those who have retired from the company are proud of their contributions and now
reap the rewards for their hard work, dedication, and commitment to RLI.

RETIRED EMPLOYEES ARE GRATEFUL FOR THE OPPORTUNITIES PROVIDED BY RLI
STEVE LINDELL

Steve Lindell, who retired in 2008 as senior vice president of casualty brokerage, joined RLI at a time of incredible
growth. “The company was beginning its transition from contact lens insurance to multiple lines. They hired a
number of people like me, with backgrounds in surplus lines, and enabled us to start up our own divisions.

“In the beginning, we had 1o do it all,” he says. “Find office space, hire staff, write the policies. develop a
broker network. and collect the premiums. It sounds like a challenge — and it was. But it was also very
satisfying — especially when you're part of a company that is committed to you.”
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Lindell says part of the appeal
was being able to share in the
success of the overall company.
“Jerry Stephens was very mugh
the creator of the RLI ESOP. It
was an uncommon thing,” he
says. “We were all partners in the
success of RLE The sky was the
limit. Everyone participated. We all
shared in it year after year.”

While Lindell found the personal
financial rewards unmatched,

the benefits of working for RLI
were much more than money. “It
was the gpportunity | had to do
something enjoyable for 20 years,”
he says. “There’s not another
company that would have given me
what RLI did — the autonomy, the
opportunity to be creative.”

Over the years, Lindell had good
offers from other companies, but
nathing could compare 1o RLI.

“| can’t emphasize enough how
unique this company is,” he says.
“It's remarkable. It's singular.

It's more akin to the high-tech
companies today in the way it
treats its employees. This was a
golden partnership. I'm grateful
for the things it allowed me and
our family to do.”

MARY MALSON

Mary Malson, who recently retired
after nearly 25 years at RLI,

has some words of advice for
newcomers 0 the company: “If you
leave here, you are absolutely nuts.”

Malson joined RLI as a part-
time secretary nearly 25 years
ago. She retired in 2006 as an

executive secretary at the young
age of 55 with benefits that

will allow her to truly enjoy her
retirement.

“I had never even heard of an
ESOP company before | joined
RLI,” she says. "l just knew that
RLI was a great company to work
for. | was surprised 24 years ago
at the part-time salary — and was
even more pleased with the full-
time salary. They reward people
appropriately because they want
you to stay.

“l wouldn't be retiring at age 55
if | hadnt worked here,” she says.
“The ESOP and all the benefits
were just outstanding.”

Unfortunately, Malson had the
opportunity to experience firsthand
the company's health benefits
when she suffered a serious
iliness. “If that had happened prior
to my working at RLI, it definitely
would have been a big financial
burden,” she says. I was able to
focus on getting well and not have
to worry about how we were going
1o pay the medica! hills.”

In addition to the financial
rewards, she enjoyed the RLI
atmosphere, where people
take pride in working for the
company they own — and
they are acknowledged for
their performance. “We all get
recognition for our hard work,
and that's great.

“l just can’t say enough good
things about RLI," Malsen
continues. “They're doing an

=bottom: Recent retiree Mary Malson leoks
forward to spending more time with her
granddaughters.

outstanding job for everyone who

works here.”

After a three-week vacation in
Hawaii, Malsen and her hushandg
will settle into retirement. Malson
loves to travel, work in her garden,
and spend time with her five
grandchildren — all who live nearby.

“I've been really blessed to work
at RLI,” she says. “This company
made it possible for me to be able
to now enjoy these things | love.”
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photo: Mike Stone is looking
for people with greal ideas and
entrepreneurial zeal to help RLI grow.
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QUOI&_AlslEMAID

2006 was a great
year. Thanks to our
adherence to the
principles that drive
our success, we've
accomplished great
things. We're proud
of our employees

and the work they've
done and we offer
our congratulations.
But we haven't gotten
where we are today
by resting on our past
accomplishments. As
we look ahead, we see
there’s more work to
be done.

MIKE STONE
FOCUSES ON THE FUTURE

Mike Stone, president and COQ,
is responsible for coordinating
RLI's growth strategy —
expanding existing products,
starting new ones, and acquiring
other companies. His vision
supports RLI's renewed focus
on profitable growth.




"0ur No.1 goal remains finding
1atented underwriters to develop
and lead product areas,” Stone
says. “We want new people to
join this exclusive club of talented
product leaders,”

Aaron Jacoby, vice president,
sorporate development, wants

10 get the message out that
RLIis a “destination of choice”
for underwriters, But not just
any underwriter will find RLI the
right fit. “It takes a special kind
uf person, with the drive and
vision to think beyend the next
account, to be successful at RLI.
They must be able to set up the
husiness, take responsibility for it,
I»e accountable — and then reap
the rewards.”

1arowth will be both organic and
narganic; that is, expanding the
2xisting product line and taking
2n new lines. Not all product
ines fit within the RLI business
nodel — a model that has been
successful for decades and will

not change. RLI will continue to
focus on specialty products that
are overlooked by the general
marketplace.

RLI has a demonstrated history
of starting and growing new
products. Examples include the
early specialty products of general
liability and commercial property
in the early 1980s, the additions
of transportation and surety in
the 1290s, and most recently, RLI
Marine in 2005.

The future also will mean
leveraging information technology
— taking advantage of IT for
internal purposes as well as using
it as @ means to provide greater
support for underwriters, brokers
and agents, and our customers
themselves.

“RLI is an extraordinary
opportunity for people.” Jacoby
says. “People join RLI for the
chance to run a business outside
the typical corporate environment,

>top: Aaron lacoby's responsibilities include
focusing on future growth oppartunities for RLI,

We're a group of talented,
empowered people who have
access to great products and
the feading techneology. We want
people to say, 'That's the kind of
place | want to work.'”
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

RLI INSURANCE GROUP

In general, we have experienced continued softening in the marketplace over the last three years. While

the year did show moderate growth overall, the property segment saw significant premium increases
through the first three quarters of 2006 as rates were up markedly in ¢catastrophe-prone areas.
Underwriting income was up considerably in our insurance operations. The casualty segment posted similar
results to those of 2005 while the property segment benefited from a light hurricane season and reported
underwriting income, compared to a loss in 2005. The surety segment continued its trend of growing
profitability by more than doubling the 2005 result. The following table and narrative provide a more
detailed look at individual segment performance over the last three years.

Gross premiums written {in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Casualty $506,887 $519,115 $519,817
Property 225,610 176,228 178,625
Surety 66,516 80.669 54,146
Total $799,013 $756,012 $752,688

Underwriting income (loss) {in thousands)

Casualty $ 68,393 $ 72,024 $ 19,560
Property 4,988 (8,342) 20,400
Surety 10,675 5,201 (69)
Total $ 84,056 $ 68.883 $ 39,891

Combined ratio

Casualty 80.4 80.0 94.7

Properny 95.9 1103 79.2

Surety 821 90.0 100.2

Total 84.1 86.0 92.2
Casualty

Casualty gross premiums written were down 2 percent in 2006 while virtually flat from 2004 to 2005. Only
the umbrella and executive product coverages experienced growth while all other lines were down by varying
degrees as marketplace conditions for this segment continued to soften. Despite competitive pressures, we
remained disciplined in writing only those accounts which we believe will provide adequate returns. This soft
marketplace is likely to continue suppressing premium growth in 2007,

The 80.4 combined ratio for the casualty segment in 2006 was almost unchanged from the 2005 measure
of 80.0. In each of these years, actuarial studies indicated that cumulative experience attributable to some
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casualty coverages for mature accident years were considerably lower than the reserves booked. Therefore,
reserves were released in the amounts of $39.3 million and $51.8 million for 2006 and 2005, respectively.
While we had been experiencing robust price improvements in this segment the last several years, we also
produced significant new business with new exposures. OQur reserving evaluation process requires adequate
1ime periods 1o elapse to assess the impact of such changes in marketplace conditions on our book of
casualty business.

Property

(3ross premiums written in the property segment rose 28 percent in 2006 compared to declines of 1 percent
in 2005 and 8 percent in 2004. The turnaround occurred as a result of considerable rate increases in
hurricane and earthquake-prone areas while our actual exposure to these events declined. Additionally, the
inarine division that launched in 200% contributed increased gross premiums written of $16.2 million in
2008. In 2005, we experienced a significant decline in our construction coverage, which we exited during
1he fourth quarter of that year. Earthquake coverage premiums had dropped in 2005 as we focused on
treducing our exposure. Segment revenues for 2005 decreased disproportionately as we incurred ¢harges

of approximately $10.0 million to meet minimum reinsurange premium requirements as well as to reinstate
reinsurance coverage exhausted by loss activity on our construction coverage. Revenue bounced back in
22008, increasing by 52 percent.

Underwriting income was $5.0 million in 2006 compared to a loss of $8.3 million in 2005 and income of
$20.4 million in 2004. Although we experienced a light hurricane season in 20086, other catastrophe losses
such as tornadoes and hailstorms, along with increased severity of commercial fire losses, served to hamper
ihe segment’s profitability. Favorable loss reserve development from the two prior years' hurricane reserves
contributed $4.2 million to profits in 2006. However, additional charges were incurred from the run-off of the
previously exited construction coverage, which amounted to $13.7 million this year compared to charges

of $13.5 million in 2005. The 2005 results were affected by the second straight year of severe hurricane
activity, which negatively impacted the segment by $22.3 million. While the property charge in 2004 from
hurricane activity was $10.1 millien, there was some favorable development of those reserves in 2005 which
provided a benefit of $2.2 million.

Surety

Surety gross premiums written increased for the third straight year. As was the case in 2005, all the major
voverages in this segment produced increases in 2006. Total segment revenue followed suit, improving by 15
percent in 2006 compared to 9 percent and 3 percent in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

lLinderwriting income more than doubled in the surety segment in 2008, totaling $10.7 million compared to
$5.2 million in 2005%. These results reflect the benefit of re-underwriting efforts initiated during 2003 and
2004, Favorable development on prior accident years’ 10ss reserves resulted in a benefit of $2.6 million in
22006 and $2.1 million in 2005.

WET INVESTMENT INCOME AND REALIZED INVESTMENT GAINS

[uring 2006, net investment income increased by 16 percent due
to continued positive operating cash flow. On an after-tax basis, net

investment income increased by 14 percent. Operating cash flows were
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$171.8 million in 2006, compared to $198.0 million in 2005, and $189.0 millicn in 2004, The average
annual yields on our investments were as follows for 2006, 2005, and 2004:

2006 2005 2004
Pretax yleld
Taxable (on bock value) 5.22% 4.90% 4.92%
Tax-exempt (on book value) 4.02% 3.98% 4.10%
Equities (on market value) 2.78% 2.80% 3.26%
After-tax yleld
Taxable (on book value) 3.40% 3.19% 3.20%
Tax-exempt (on book value) 3.81% 3.77T% 3.88%
Eguities {on market value) 2.39% 2.40% 2.79%

The after-tax yield reflects the different tax rates applicable to each category of investment. QOur taxable bonds
are subject to our corporate tax rate of 35 percent, our tax-exempt municipal bonds are subject to a tax rate of
5 percent, and our dividend income is generally subject to a tax rate of 14 percent. During the year, we focused
an purchasing high-quality investments, including U.S. government and agency securities, municipal bonds.
mortgage-backed securities, and asset-backed securities, primarily in the 5-15 year range of the yield curve.

INTEREST AND GENERAL CORPORATE EXPENSE

Interest on debt fell 8 percent as shart-term obligations were paid off during the year. While debt interest was
basically flat in 2005, the 2004 increase resulted from the issuance of $100 million in 10-year maturity senior
notes in December 2003. Decisions regarding future shortterm debt management will be based on available
cash flow and the interest rate environment. General corporate expenses tend to fluctuate relative to our
executive compensation plan and have increased in each of the last three years due to strong operating results.
This model measures comprehensive earnings against a minimum required return on our capital. Additionally,
legal fees, director fees, and travel rose since 2003.

INVESTEE EARNINGS

We maintain a 40 percent interest in Maui Jim Inc. (Maui Jim), primarily a manufacturer of high-guality polarized
sunglasses. Maui Jim's chief executive officer owns a controlling majority of the outstanding shares of Maui
Jim. In 2006 we recorded $8.8 million in earnings from this investment compared to $8.4 million in 2005 and
$5.0 million in 2004. The upward trend over the last two years is the result of improved operating performance.
Also included in this caption were $6.3 million, $2.5 million and $0.5 million in earnings aver the last three
years from our investment in Taylor, Bean & Whitaker Mortgage Corp. (TBW). During the fourth quarter of 2004,
we converted warrants to common stock in this private mortgage origination campany, which increased our
ownership interest to 21 percent. Prior to the conversion, earnings from this ownership were reflected in net
investment income. In the fourth quarter of this year, we sold our equity in TBW for $32.5 million resulting in a
pretax realized gain of $16.2 million.

INCOME TAXES

Our effective tax rates were 28 percent, 26 percent, and 27 percent for 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.
Effective rates are dependent upon components of pretax earnings and the related tax effects. The effective
rate for 2006 was higher than 2005 and 2004 due 1o the increase in underwriting income and net realized
gains, which were taxed at 35 percent. Partially offsetting this increase, results for 2006 included the favorable
resolution of a secent tax examination of our tax years 2000 through 2004. As a result of this exam, we
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tecorded a $3.2 million tax benefit, resulting from a change in tax estimate related to the sale of assets. In
20086 and 2005, a tax benefit was realized associated with a dividend declared and payable in 2007 and 20086,
1espectively, from an unconsolidated investee, Maui Jim. As required under Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” the gain reflects the tax benefit of applying the lower tax
1ate applicable to affiliated dividends (7 percent) as compared to the corporate capital gains tax rate (35 percent)
nn which previpus tax estimates were based. In addition, cur pretax earnings in 2006 included $28.7 million

of investment income that is wholly or partially exempt from federal income tax, compared to $28.2 million and
$25.2 miflion in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

OUTLOOK FOR 2007

Nur insurance marketplace, and in particular the excess and surplus lines segment, is subject to cycles involving
ilternating periods of price increases (“hard markets™) and price decreases (“soft markets™). Pricing in the
uverall insurance marketplace has been on the decline for the past several years. We expect this trend to
iontinue, although each of our insurance segments will likely be impacted by varying degrees. We also expect

10 see some organic growth in 2007 and underwriling income in all three of our insurance segments absent any
major catastrophe. Specific details regarding events in our insurance segments follow.

Casualty - We expect the price softening seen in 2006 to continue in 2007. We will maintain our profit-focused
strategy and ook to broaden our production sources and product offerings as a means to holding our market
position and potentially growing this segment. Rising profitabitity and rising levels of capita! for the industry
will serve to intensify competition for this segment. We look to our ability to exercise underwriting discipline
and select quality risks to continue our profitability in 2007 .

>roperty - The industry took advantage of a quiet Atlantic hurricane season to rebuild capital depleted by
hurricane events in 2005. We believe property pricing will soften, but not to pre-Katrina levels. Pricing actions
will be tempered by greater rating agency focus on catastrophe claims-paying ability. We expect to continue
to see premium growth and favorable loss experience in this segment in 2007, Qur marine business should
continue to grow moderately, while we expect losses from our run-off construction book to stabilize.

Surety - The surety segment, like our other segments, should feel the pressure of a softening marketplace. The
steps we have taken over the past several years to address loss experience, coupled with a strong staffing
model aided by decision support tools, point to continued profitabitity in 2007.

Investments - Within our investment portfolio, we expect to continue to increase investment income as the
balance of our portfolio graws from operating and investing cash flow. Interest rates for bonds with maturities
of greater than five years, where a majority of our fixed income portfolio is concentrated, have remained
relatively stable in the last couple of years, although they are below the historical average. If interest rates
increase, we will be able to invest our cash flow into higheryielding investments which would improve
investment income. However, rising interest rates will depress the fair value of our bond portfolio which will
negatively impact comprehensive earnings and book value. Twenty percent of our portfolio is invested in
common stocks. We expect the dividend income on these stocks to grow and the value of this portfolio will
be dictated by the performance of the general stock market, which is difficult to predict.

To view our comprehensive financial information, please refer to our
2006 financial report.

i ;
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VISUAL REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

BOOK VALUE AND
STOCK PRICE GROWTH

Over the |ast five years, book
value has grown 68 percent
and our stock price has risen
102 percent.
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INSIDER OWNERSHIP

Fifteen percent of RLi stock is
owned by 724 RL| asscciates and
other insiders.
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RLI operates in every state. Here
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SEGMENT PROFITS

Qur three segments
generated $84.1 million in
2006 underwriting profit.

in millions
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Qur investment portfolio is well diversified to both
minimize risks and maximize long-term returns.
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VISUAL REVIEW OF OPERATIONS, conT.

COVERAGES

CUSTOMERS

COMPETITORS

T

900000000000

PROPERT

bococsssonoos

Commercial automobile, commercial
general liability, commercial
umbrella/excess liability, deductible
buy-back, directors and officers
liability, employers indemnity,
empioyment practices liability,
fiduciary liability, @Home business
owners, labor management trust,
miscellaneous professional liability,
motor truck cargo, persenal umbrella
liability, private and non-profit liability,
products liability, and programs.

Cur casualty insureds include
habitaticnal accounts, small
non-profits, multinational and
national corporations, personal
lines accounts such as personal
umbrella customers nationwide,
commercial contracting risks, and
transportation fleets.

Competitors vary by product, but
generally include St. Paul/Travelers,
Scottsdale Insurance, Lexington
Insurance Company, General Star,
Great West Casualty. AIG, CNA,

and Chubb.

All risk, commercial property,
commercial earthquake, cifference
in conditions, fire and associated
perils, homeowners insurance, inland
marine, and marine cargo, hull, and
other liabilities.

Our commercial property insureds
include smaller business owners

10 large companies with a wide
range of customers. Personal lines
insureds involve Hawaii homeowners
and renters, as well as home-based
businesses natienwide. Marine
insureds are shipping cperations,
including vessels and land facilities.

Competitors vary by product, but
generally include Lexington [nsurance
Company, ARCH Insurance Company,
St. Paul/Travelers, General Star,
MOAC, AlG, and Fireman's Fund in
commercial lines. Hawaii competitors
include First Insurance Company.

Commercial bonds, contract

bonds, court bonds, federal bonds,
fidelity bonds, license and permit
bonds, notary bonds, energy-related
bonds, probate bonds, and public
official bonds.
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Surety principais include
individuals, contractors, smail
husiness owners, small ta large
corporations, and businesses
operating in the energy,
petrochemical, and refining
industries.

Competitors vary by product, but
generally include ACE, SAFECOQ, CNA
Surety, and St. Paul/Travelers.




D STRIBUTION CHANNELS GROSS PREMIUMS WRITTEN COMBINED RATIO

retail wholesale  genaral Inmiions % change lessratio  exp ratls | combined
k
sgent/bmokor - broker - agency General liability $1947  (45) 2008 511 203 | 804
Executive products o a]
Cemmerzial and
General liability o persenal umbrella 101.9 33 2005 50.6 294 800
Conmercial and Transportaticn 771 {30} 2004 67.3 274 94.7
a
Esonal umbrella o o Exec. products 66.9 10.7
2003 72.1 26.3 | 984
Prc grams a o Programs 317 (171.9)
Traasportation o Other 46 (93) 2002 70.8 29.6 |100.4
TOTAL $506.9 [2.4)
relall wholesale  general
agent/broker  broker agency In mifllons % changs lots ratle  #xp ratle | combined
Eathquake o Commercial fire §1102 297 2006 560 399 | 959
o Earthquake/DIC 709 318
E&S Property [w] 2005 68.7 416 |[110.3
Marine 287 1299
Pe senal lines o a Other 158 (36.8) 2004 426 36.6 79.2
Mziine o o ToTAL $2256  28.0 2003 301 337 | 638
2002 339 38.7 726
ratall wholesals  general
agent/broker  broker agency In mililons % change loss ratlo  exp ratio | cambined
Contract bonds o Miscellaneous 3213 75 2006 173 648 | 824
Energy 16.1 5.0
Commercial bonds ) 2005 276 62.4 | 900
— Commercial 16.5 224
Miscellaneous bonds O Contract 12.8 16.1 2004 385 61.7 |100.2
Ol&gashonds O Gther (02)(1152) 2003 502 640 1142
TOTAL $66.5 9.6
2002 50.5 655 |1160
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CONSOQLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

The summary financial statements are excerpted from the audited 2006 RLI Corp. Financial Report.

in thousands, except share data Years ended December 31 2006 2005

Assets
Investments:
Fixed maturities:
Available-for-sale, at fair value (amortized cost —

$1,240,020 in 2006 and $1,189,408 in 2005) $ 1,234,571 $ 1,181,636

Held-to-maturity, at amertized cost (fair value —

$108,730 in 2006 and $138,902 in 2005) 106,310 134,451

Trading, at fair value {amortized cost —

$15,126 10 2006 and $15,465 in 2005) 14,960 15,312

Equity securities available-for-sale, at fair value {cost —

$201,443 in 2006 and $186.417 in 2005) 368,195 321,096

Short-term investments, at cost which approximates fair value 104,205 45296
Total investments 1,828,241 1,697,791
Cash - -
Accrued investment income 18,628 16,974

Premiums and reinsurance balances receivable, net of allowances for

uncollectible amounts of $21,620 in 2006 and $19,987 in 2005 126,021 126,894
Ceded unearned premiums 97,596 114,668
Reinsurance balances recoverable on unpaid losses and setilement expenses,

net of allowances for uncoliectible amounts of $16,806 in 2006 and $18,605 in 2005 525,671 593,209
Deferred policy acquisition costs, net 73,817 69,477
Property and equipment, at cost, net of accumulated depreciation

of $38,060 in 2006 and $35.306 in 2005 20,590 20,859
Investment in unconsolidated investees 36,667 54,340
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization of $4,700 In 2006 and 2005 26,214 26,214
Other assets 17,851 15,444
Total assets $ 2,771,296 $ 2,735,870
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—continued

Years ended December 31 2006 2005
Liabilities and sharehplders’ equity
Liabilities:
Unpaid losses and settlement expenses $ 1,318,777 $ 1,331,866
Unearned premiums 387,811 383,683
Reinsurance balances payable 85,046 97,526
Notes payable, short-term debt - 15.541
Income taxes — current 8,318 4,425
income taxes — deferred 27,069 22,717
Bonds payable, long-term debit 100,000 100,00C
Other liabilities 87,755 87,171
Total liabilities 2,014,776 2,042,929

Shareholders’ equity:

Common stock ($1 par value, authorized 50,000,000 shares,

issued 31,689,740 shares in 2006 and 31,344,058 shares in 2005) 31,690 31,344
Paid-in capital 187,632 181,794
Accumulaied other comprehensive earnings net of tax 105,145 82,785
Retained earnings 594,147 478,043
Deferred compensation 7.743 7.735
Treasury stock, at cost {7.416,762 shares in 2006 and 5.792,753 shares in 2005) (169,838) (88,760}
Total shareholders’ equity 756,520 692,941
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 2,771,296 $ 2,735,870
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS
AND COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS

The summary financial statements are excerpted from the audited 2006 RLI Corp. Financial Report.

In thousands, except share data Years ended December 31 2006 2005 2004

Net premiums earned $ 530,338 $ 491,307 $ 511,348
Net investment income 71,325 61,641 54,087
Net realized investment gains 31,045 16,354 13,365
Consolidated revenue 632,708 569,302 578,800
Losses and settlement expenses 256,889 251,170 306,131
Policy acquisition costs 145,776 136,058 134,595
Insurance operating expenses 43,617 35,196 30,731
Interest expense on debt 6,581 7.118 6,894
General corporate expenses 8,069 6,780 5,536
Total expenses . 460,932 436,322 483,887
Equity in earnings of uncensolidated investees 15,117 10,896 5,429
Earnings before income taxes 186,893 143,876 100,342

Income tax expense (benefit):

Current 59,942 40,481 32,495

Deferred (7,688) (3,739) (5,189)

Income tax expense 52,254 36,742 27,306
Net earnings $ 134,639 $107,134 $ 73,036

Other comprehensive earnings {[0ss), net of tax

Unrealizec gains (losses) on securities:

Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period $ 32,011 $(12,594 ) $ 16.871

Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net eamnings (9,651) (10,638} (8,553)

Other comprehensive earnings {loss) 22,360 (23,232} 8,318
Comprehensive earnings $ 156,999 t 83,902 $ 81,354
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~continued

Years ended December 31 2006 2005 2004
Earnings per share:
Basic
Net earnings per share $5.40 $4.21 $2.90
i Comprehenslve earnings per share $6.30 $3.30 $3.23
Diluted
Net earnings per share $5.27 $4.07 $2.80
CGomprehensive earnings per share $6.14 $3.19 $3.12
. Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic 24918 25,459 25223
Diluted 25,571 26,324 26,093
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

The summary financial statements are excerpted from the audited 2006 RLI Com. Financial Report.

In thousands Years ended December 31 2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities

Net earnings $ 134,639 $ 107,134 $ 73,036

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings 1o net cash

provided by operating activities:

Net realized investment gains (31,045) (16,354) {13.365)

Depreciation 3,503 3,228 3.033

Other items, net 5,783 11,311 10,738

Change in: Accrued investment income (1,654} (1,791) (2.378)
Premiums and reinsurance balances receivable
{net of direct write-cffs and commutations) 873 19,773 6,193
Reinsurance balances payable {12,480) 19,464 (14,320)
Ceded unearned premium 17,072 (13,221 302
Reinsurance balances recoverable on unpaid losses 67,538 (129,029} (92,132)
Deferred policy acquisition costs (4,340} {2,331} (3,409)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,005 9,693 2411
Unpaid losses and sefilement expenses (13,089} 199,267 229,158
Unearned premiums 4,128 16.479 (437)

Income taxes: Current 6,823 (7,187) 4,460

Deferred {7,688) {3.739) (5,189)
Stock option excess tax benefit {2,930) - -
Changes in investment in unconsolidated investees: Undistibuted eamings (15,117) (10,896) (5,429)
Dividends received 16,500 - -
Net loss (proceeds) from trading portfolio activity 254 (3,774) (3.710)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 171,775 $ 198,027 $ 188,962
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—continued

In theusands Years ended December 31 2006 2005 2004

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of: Fixed maturities, held-to-maturity $ — $ (3,024) $ -
Fixed maturities, available-for-sale (412,019} {407,658} {360,162)
Equity securities, available-for-sale (139,462 ) {73,519} (58,675)
Short-term investments, net {61,548} - (2,219)
Property and equipment, {4,590} (10,538} (4,051)
Note receivable (5,000 ) (6,000) -
Proceeds from sale of: Fixed maturities, avaitable-for-sale 231,385 149,724 108,088
Equity securities, available-for-sale 146,635 72,374 39,638
Short-term investments, net - 38,506 -
Praperty and equipment 1,356 4,787 1,298
Investment in uncensolidated investee 32,499 - -
Proceeds from call or maturity of: Fixed maturities, held-to-maturity 28,215 25,363 24,080
Fixed maturities, available-for-sale 117,204 55,578 71,814
Note receivable 2,000 1,500 3,000
Net cash used in investing activities $ (63,325) $(152,907) $(177,189)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issuance of short-term debt $35 $214 $366
Payment on short-term debt (15,576} {31,512} (1,088)
Stock option excess tax benefit 2,930 - -
Proceeds from stock option exgrcises 3,254 1,437 1,059
Treasury shares purchased (81,069) - (10)
Cash dividends paid (18,024) {15,259} {12,100)
Net cash used in financing activities $(108,450) $ (45,120) $ (11,773)

Net decrease in cash - — —

Cash at beglnning of year - — -

Cash at end of year $ - $ - $ -
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following is selected financial data of RU Corp. and Subsidiaries far the 11 years ended December 31, 2006.

Amounts in thousands, except per share data 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Operating Results
Gross premiums written ¥ $ 799,013 756,012 752,588 742477 707,453
Consolidated revenue $ 632,708 569,302 578,800 519,886 382,153
Net earnings $ 134,639 107,134 73,036 71,291 35,852
Comprehensive earnings $ 156,999 83,902 81,354 97,693 13,673
Net cash provided from operating activities $ 17,775 198,027 188,962 191,049 161,971
Financlal Condition
Total investments $ 1,828,241 1,697,791 1,569,718 1,333,360 1,000,027
Total assets $ 2,771,296 2,735,870 2,468,775 2,134,364 1,719,327
Unpaid losses and setilement expenses $ 1,318,717 1,331,866 1,132,599 903,441 732,838
Total debt $ 100,000 115,541 146,839 147,560 54,356
Total shareholders’ equity $ 756,520 692,941 623,661 554,134 456,555
Statutory surplus ™ $ 746,905 690,547 605,967 546,586  401,268®
Share Information *
Net garnings per share:
Basic S 5.40 4.21 2.90 2.84 1.80
Diluted $ 5.27 4.07 2.80 2.76 1.75
Comprehensive earnings per share: @
Basic $ 6.30 3.30 3.23 3.89 0.69
Diluted $ 6.14 3.19 3.12 3.78 0.67
Cash dividends declared per share s 0.75 0.63 0.51 0.40 0.35
Book value per share 5 3117 27.12 24.64 22.02 18.50®
Clasing stock price $ 56.42 49.87 4157 37.48 27.90
Stock split 200%
Weighted average shares outstanding: !
Basic 24,918 25,459 25,223 25,120 19,937
Diluted 25,571 26,324 26,093 25,846 20,512
Common shares outstanding 24,273 25,551 25,316 25,165 24,681
Other Non-GAAP Financial Information
Net premiums written to statutory surplus © 74% 72% 84% 87% 103%
GAAP combined ratio 84.1 86.0 92.2 92.0 95.6
Statutory combined ratio @ 84.0 86.7 93.8 931 924

(1) See page 2 of the 2006 financial report
for information regarding non-GAAP
financial measures.

{2) See note 1.M to the consolidated
financial statements.

(3} Ratios and surplus informaticn are
presented on a Statutory basis. As
discussed further in the MD&A and note
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9, statutory accounting principles differ
from GAAP and are generally based on a
salvency concept. Reperting of statutory
surplus is a required disclosure under GAAR

{4) On October 15, 2002, our stock split on
a 2-for-1 basis. All share and per share
data has been retroactively stated to
reflect this split.

(5} On December 26, 2002, we closed

an underwritten public offering of 4.8
million shares of common stock, This
offering generated $115.1 millien in

net proceeds. Of this, $80.0 million was
contributed to the insurance subsidiaries.
Remaining funds were used to pay down

lines of credit.




—continued

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
511,985 437,867 338,575 291,073 278,843 276.801
309,354 263,496 225,756 168,114 169,424 155,354

31,047 28,693 31,451 28,239 30,171 25,696

11,373 42,042 20,880 51,758 66,415 41,970

77,874 53,118 58,361 23,578 35,022 48,947
793,542 756,111 691,244 677,294 603,857 537,946

1,380,870 1,281,323 1,170,363 1,012,685 911,741 845,474
604,505 539,750 520,494 415,623 404,263 405,801

77,239 78,763 78,397 39,644 24,900 48,000
335,432 326,654 293,069 293,959 266,552 200,039
289,997 309,945 286,247 314,484 265,526 207,787

1.58 146 1.55 1.34 1.45 1.30
1.55 1.44 1.54 1.33 133 1.14
0.58 2.14 1.03 2.46 3.19 2.13
0.57 211 1.02 243 2.88 1.81
0.32 0.30 0.28 0.26 0.24 0.22
16.92 16.66 14.84 14.22 12.35 10.23
22,50 2235 17.00 16.63 19.93 13.35
125%

19,630 19,634 20,248 21,028 20,804 19,742

20,004 19,891 20,444 21276 23,428 24,210

19,826 19,608 19,746 20,670 21,586 19,554

109% 84% 79% 46% 54% 64%
97.2 24.8 91.2 88.2 86.8 874
95.8 95.8 90.1 88.4 90.4 89.1

(6) In July 1993, we issued $46.0 million of

convertible debentures. In July 1997, these
securities were called for redemption,

This conversion created an additional 4.4
million new shares of RU common stock.

(7) On December 12, 2003, we successfully
completed & public debt offering, issuing
$100.0 million in Senior Notes maturing

January 15, 2014. This offering generated

proceeds, net of discount and commission,

of $98.9 million. Of the proceeds, capital
contributions were made in 2003 and
2004 to gur insurance subsidiaries 10
increase their statutory surplus in the
amounts of $50.0 million and $15.0
million, respectively. Remaining funds
were retained at the hotding company.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL GRAPHS
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cash flows of $911.8 miilion
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GLOSSARY

ADMITTED COMPANY An insurer domiciled in one
state licensed to do business in one or more other states.

COMBINED RATIO (GAAP) A common measurement
of underwriting profit {less than 100) or loss {more than
100). The sum of the expense and the loss ratios.

COMBINED RATIQ (STATUTORY) The same as

a GAAP combined ratio, except in calculating

the expense ratio, the denominatoer used is net
premiums written instead of net premiums earned.

COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS The sum of net
after-tax earnings and net aftertax unrealized gains
{losses) on investments.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE
Liability coverage for all premises and operations, other
than personal, for non-excluded general liability hazards.

CONSOLIDATED REVENUE Net premiums earned
plus net investment income and realized gains (losses).

DIFFERENCE IN CONDITIONS {DIC) INSURANCE
Coverage for loss normally excluded in standard
commercial or personal property policies, particularly
flood and earthquake.

EXCESS INSURANCE A policy or bond covering against
certain hazards, only in excess of a stated amount.

EXPENSE RATIO The percentage of the premium
used to pay all the costs of acquiring. writing, and
servicing business.

FIRE INSURANCE Property insurance on which the
predominant peril is fire, but generally includes wind
and other lines.

GAAP Generally accepted accounting principles.

HARD/FIRM MARKET When the insurance industry
has limited capacity available to handle the amount
of business written, creating a seller's market, driving
insurance prices upward.

INLAND MARINE INSURANCE Property coverage for
perils arising from transportation of goods or covering
types of property that are mobile, and other hazards.

LOSS RATIO The percentage of premium used to pay
for losses incurred.

MARKET CAP Short for market capitalization. The
value of a company as determined by the market.
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Multiply the share price by the number of outstanding
shares. Can change daily.

MARKET VALUE POTENTIAL (MVP) An RLI incentive
plan covering all employees that requires we first
generate a return in excess of our cost of capital,
aligning our interests with those of shareholders.

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE
insures against claims for damages due to
professional misconduct ar lack of ordinary care
in the performance of a service.

REINSURER/REINSURANCE A company that
accepts part or all of the risk of loss covered by
another insurer. Insurance for insurers.

RESERVES Funds set aside by an insurer for meeting
estimated obligations when due. Periodically readjusted.

SOFT MARKET When the insurance industry has
excess capacity to handle the amount of business
written, creating a buyer's market, lowering insurance
prices overall,

STANDARD LINES VS. SPECIALTY LINES Those
insurance coverages or target market segments

that are commonly insured through large, admitted
insurers using standard forms and pricing are in
contrast to unique insurance coverages or selected
market niches that are served by only a single insurer
or a select group of insurers, often with unique
coverage forms and pricing approach.

SURETY BOND Provides for compensation if specific
acts are not performed within a stated period.

SURPLUS LINES COMPANY In most states, an
insurer not licensed to do business in that state,
but which may sell insurance in the stale if admitted
insurers decline to write a risk.

TRANSPORTATION INSURANCE Coverage for
transporting people or goods by land. For RLI, this
involves motor vehicle transportation and focuses

on automobile liability and physical damage, with
incidental public liability, umbrella and excess liability,
and motor truck cargo insurance.

UNREALIZED GAINS {LOSSES) The result of an
increase (decrease) in fair value of an asset which
is not recognized in the traditional statement of
income. The difference between an asset’s fair and
book values.




INVESTOR INFORMATION
ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of sharehalders will be held at
2 p.m., COT, on May 3, 2007, at the company’s offices
at 9025 N. Lindbergh Drive, Peotia, Il

TRADING AND DIVIDEND INFCRMATION

Stock Price Dividends
2006 High Low Close  Declared
1st Quarter $57.35 $50.65 $57.30 $.17
2nd Quarter 57.25 45.85 48.18 19
3rd Quarter 51.62 45.16 50.79 19
4th Quarter 57.41 49.75 56.42 .20

Stock Price Dividends
2005 High Low Close Deciared
1st Quarter $44.99  $40.28  341.45 $.14
2nd Quarter 46.80 40.73 44.60 18
3rd Quarter 48.75 44,79 46.26 .16
4th Quarter 55.68 44.00 49.87 17

RLI common stock trades on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol RLI. RLI has paid and
increased dividends for 31 consecutive years.

STOCK OWNERSHIP

December 31, 2006 Shares %
Insiders 2,004,667 82
ESCP 1,713,298 71
Institutions & other public 20,555,013 847
Total outstanding 24,272,978 100.0

SHAREHOLDER INQUIRIES

Shareholders of record with requests cencerning
individual account balances, stock certificates, dividends,
stock transfers, tax information, or address corrections
should contact the transfer agent and registrar:

Wells Fargo Shareholder Services

PO. Box 64854

St. Paul, MN 55164-0854

Phone: (800) 468-9716 or (651) 450-4064
Fax: (651) 450-4033

E-mail: stocktransfer@wellsfargo.com

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLANS

If you wish to sign up for an automatic dividend
reinvestment and stock purchase plan or to have

your dividends deposited directly into your checking,
savings or maney market accounts, send your request
to the transfer agent and registrar.

REQUESTS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Electronic versions of the following documents are, or
will be made, available on our Web site: 2006 summary
annual report; 2006 financial report; 2007 proxy
statement; annual report on form 10-K; code of conduct,
corporate governance guidelines; and charters of the
executive resources, audit, finance and investment,
strategy, and nominating/corporate governance
committees. Printed copies of these documents

are available without charge to any shareholder. To

be placed on a mailing list to receive sharehclder
materials, contact our corporate headguarters.

COMPANY FINANCIAL STRENGTH RATINGS

A.M. Best: A+ (Superior}  RLI Group
Standard & Poor's: A+ {Strong) RLI Insurance
Company
A+ {Strong) Mt. Hawley
Insurance
Company
Moody's: A2 (Good) RLI Insurance
Company
A2 (Good) Mt. Hawley
Insurance
Company
A2 (Good) RLI Indemnity
Company

CONTACTING RLI

For investor relations requests and management's
perspective on specific issues, contact

John Robison, treasurer, at (309) 693-5846 or at
john_robison@rlicorp.com.

Turn to the back cover for corporate headquarters
contact information.

Find comprehensive investor information at
www.rlicorp.com.
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COMPANY
LEADERS

EXECUTIVE TEAM

LSETH A. DAVIS, CFA, CIA, CPCU

Vice President, Intemal Audit {2, 3, 4)
induslry experience: 11 years

Joined RL! in 2004, Positions include:
manager, internal audit. Promoted to
current position in 2005,

2¢AROL J. DENZER

Chiel information Officer (2. 3, 4}
Industry experience: 21 years

Joined RLi in 1987. Pasitions Include:
accounting and reinsurance, AVP and
VP of reinsurance and catastrophe
management. Promoted te current
position in 2006.

3J0SEPH E. DONDANVILLE, CPA

S, Vice President, CFO (1, 2, 3, 4)
Industry experience; 29 years

Jofned RLI in 1984. Positions include:
chief accountamt, controller and VP
Promated to current position in 2002,

Also serves as Director of Maui Jim, Inc.

‘DONALD J. DRISCOLL

vice Presiden?, Claim (2, 3, 4)
Industry experience: 21 years

Joingd RLI In 1996. Positions include:
director of coverage and casualty
claims and AVP Promoted [o current
positian in 2600

SJEFFREY D. FICK

Vice President,
Human Resources (1, 2, 3, 4)
fndusiry experience: 2 years

Jdoined RLI In 2005 in current position.

SAARON H. JACOBY

Vice President,

Corporate Development (1, 2. 3, 4)
industry experience: 5 years

Joined RLI in 2001. Positions include:
director of corporate deveiopment.
Premoted to current position in 2004,

"DANIEL 0. KENNEDY

Vice President. General Counsel (1,
2, 3, 4), Corporate Secretary {1)
Industry experience: 2 years
Joined RLI In 2006 in current
position,

SCRAIG W. KLIETHERMES,
FCAS. MAAF, CPCU

vice President, Actuarial and
Risk Services {2, 3, 4)
Industey experlence: 22 years
Joined RLI in 2006 In current
position,

SANDREW B. MGCRAY

vice President, Home Office
Underwriting (2, 3, 4)
industry experience: 22 years
Joined RLI in 20086 in current

itfon.
J pos
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10)HNATHAN €, MICHAEL

President & CEO (1)

Chalrman & CEQ (2, 3. 4)
industry experience: 30 years
Joined RLI in 1982, Pesitiens
inciude: controller, vice president
of finance and CFO, executive
vice president, president and
CEQ/CO0 of principal insurance
subsidiaries,

11)0HN E. ROBISON

Treasurer (1, 2, 3, 4)

Industry experience: 16 years
Joinea RLI In 2004 In current
position.

12MICHAEL J. STONE

President & C00 (2, 3. 4)
industry experience: 37 years
Joined ALt in 1996, Positions
include: vice president. claim;
senlor VP and exgcutive VR
Promoted (o current position
in 2002,
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*BARBARA R. ALLEN (1, 5)

Director since 2006. President of
Proactive Partners, a division of Tennis
Corporation of America — Professiona!
Services. Former marketing & executive
management leader with Quaker Dats
Co. Current director of Lance, Inc., and
former director for Maytag Corp., Tison
Faods, Converse, and Charthouse, inc.

2)0HN T. BAILY (2, 3)

Director since 2003. Retired National
Insurance industry chairman and
partner for Coopers & Lybrand LLR now
PricewaterhouseCoopers. President of
Swiss Re Capital Partners 1999-2002.
Current director of Endurance Specially
Holdings, L1d., Erie Indempnity Co.,
NYMAGIC, Inc., and Aibright College.

3RICHARD H. BLUM (3, 4, 5)

Director since 2000. Previousty chairman
of AXIS Speciany LS. Holdings, Inc. [Feb
2002-Jan. 2006). was senior advisor o
Marsh & McLennan Companies, inc.
{MMC}, a professional services firm in
risk and insurance services, investment
management, and consuiting. Former
director of MMC, vice chairman of J&H
Marsh & McLennan, and chairman

& CEG of Guy Carpenter & Company, Inc.

4JORDAN W. GRAHAM (4, 5)

Director since 2004, Managing diractor,
North American business development
with & division of Citigroups corporate and
investment bank. Former vice president
of Cisco Systems, inc.s Services incustry
Consulting, providing executive advisory
and strategy consulting to insurance
and financial services industries. Former
director of Securitas Capital, LLC, which
invested in insurance and risk related
ventures. Current director of Technology
Credit Union and Coldspark, Inc.

SGERALD I. LENROW, ESQ. (2. 3)

Director since 1993. Former consultant to
General Reinsurance Corp,, a partner in Coopers
& Lybrand LLF, now PricewaterhouseCoopers.
In private law practice, providing consulkation
services to members af the /nsurance
industry since 1999. Well-known authority
on insurance, wigely published, has spoken
befere most industry groups.

SCHARLES M, LINKE (1, 4, §)

Director since 2003. Professor emeritus

of firance at the Univ. of illincis (Urbana-
Champaign}. CEQ of Economics, Et Cetera,
Inc., a financial economics consuiting firm.

7F. LYNN MCPHEETERS (2. 3)

Director since 2000. Retired in Feb. 2005 as vice
president & CFO of Caterpillar inc. Held varfous
finance positions, including corporate treasurer,
hefore becoming a Caterpillar vice presigent
in 1998, Member of the Southern iilinois
Univ, College of Business and Administration’s
External Advisory Board, the Southern HHlinois
Univ. Foundation Board, and The Flrst United
Methodist Church of Peoria Foundation Board.

B)JONATHAN E. MICHAEL {4, 5}

9GERALD D. STEPHENS, CPCU (4]

Director since 1965, Chairman of the board since
2001. Company founder, former presidant & CEQ
of RLI Corp. Member of the executive committee
of the Ametican Institute of CPCU board. Serves

as chainman of the boeard of Maul A, ing. Former
president of the National Society of CPCUL.

OEDWARD F. SUTKOWSKL. ESQ. (1, 4)

Director since 1975. President of Sutkowski &
Rhoads Ltd,, a firm engaged in tax, fiduciary
fitigation, pension, and ERISA faw. Oulside
general counsel fram 1975-2002. Adjunct
prafessor at the Univ. of filinois College of Law.
Executive limited partner, Pingsten Executive
Fund fii, L.R Member, advisary committee,
North American Sports Media, L.L.C.

L1RGBERT G. VIETS, JD, CPA (1, 2)

Director since 1893, President of ROV
Consultants, LLC. Retired president & CEO
of CILCORP Inc., a holding company whose
principal sutisidiary was 8 uthity company.
Chairman of the board of Advanced Medical
Transport of Central tHlinois. Former chair of
the Bradiey Univ. board of trustees.

Director since 1997, President & CEQ

of RLI Carp. and chairman & CEQ of its
principal subsidiaries, member of PCI board
of governors, directar of Maul fim, Inc., and
Figidstone Investment Corp.
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RL) EMPLOVEE OWNERS

-

“THIS WAS A YEAR
OF DELIVERING ON
OUR PROMISES.
That's what an
insurance policy is.
It's not just a bunch of
words. It’s a promise
that we'll serve our
customers, deliver
commission checks,
and pay claims.

And, we're doing it
well. We're a strong
company with strong
relationships that is
positioning itself to
do great things going
forward.” -AN RLI
EMPLOYEE OWNER
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Heather Acerra
Pat Ackman
Tyler Adams
Ed Adona
Blake Ahrens
Darleen Akau
taura Alberti
Rick Albrecht
Lori Albright
Michele Alewine
Leslie Algee
Joni Allen
Alicia Alvidrez

Erie Anderson
Kim Andersan
Lois Anderson
Michelle Anderson
Steve Anderson
Dawn Anglin
Betty A
Adora Armstrong
Badette Arrovo
Robert Alen
Mecit Atmaca
Doris Attwood
Des Austin
Brian Averell
Jim Baalmann
Rod Backsmeler
Dennis Bagdon
Pat Baker
Ellen Balagna
Marie Balanguit
Tracy Baldos
# Bane
Sheila Bannister
degil Banwart
Carla Barackman
Rich Bargon
Kay Bartley
Tammy Barton
Anita Batey
Lisa Batlers
Derek Bauer
Baughman
CRINAN
Manny Bedi
Pally Bengele
Bobbi Jo Bennett
kie Bennett
Tina Benning
Sandy Benson
Chad Berberich
Kelley Bernal
Brad Bernier
Dave Berry
Jennie Bishop”
Samaniha Bishop
Molly Black
Barby Blackowicz
Ei Bland
Karl Bloch
e Blumberg
e Bo
Teresa Boehl
Pat Bogner
Joe Bostrom
Anita Boucher
chelle Bousek

John Beylan

ed Boyle
Suzie Brant
Cindy Brassfleld
Jacob Braun
Sue Bray
Misty Brockelt
Jim Brockmeyer
Beverly Broo
Carly Brown
Kathy Br

Todd Bryant
Keri Budde
Mark Bugaieshi
Bill Burch
Pete Burdetie
John Burke
Jeff Burten

¢ Bustinza
Chris Butler
Bruce Byers
Keily Byrd
Bennie Cacho
Susan Camphell
Adarm Cantu
Pete Car

lohn Carola
Joan Carr
Tom Carroft
Kim Carter

e Case
Brian

Terry C

Danny C

Steve Cave
Rocheiie Chanda-Clark
Kevin Chaney

Earle Chase
Saurabh Chaudhary
JoAnn Childress
Greg Chilson

Dan Christianson
Frank Clairmont
Ciiff Clark

Brandy Clay
Nathan Clay
Sandy Claylan
June Clifford
Bteve Cohen
Claude Cuole
Nikki Collazo
Tom Colligan
Geoff Collins
Scott Combs
Sheila Conroy
Katie Cook
Alan Cooperman
Chris Corhan
Brian Corless
Chris Cornelius
Vic b
Sharon Cr,
Tammy ‘
Sarah Cress
Nima Crot
Regina Crow
Nancy Cruz

Steve Daugherty
Larry Davidson

Bart Davis

Craig Davis

Jim Davis

Seth Davis|

Laura Dawson
Stephanie De Jesus
Andrea Dea‘n

Jim DegnaH

Rich Dely

Linda Demick
Jenny Denny

Carol Denzer
Courtney D\E.I rman
Dianne DiBgrnardmo

Mike Donovan
Biil Downing

Vickie Drieé

Terry D\igg's‘,

Don Dnscoii

Sue Droeg

Linda Drone
Christine DLrhfa
Linda Duchscher
Kevin Duffy

Dave Dunn

Derek Dun r%agan
Dena DUIHI‘WU
Ashlay Durchholz
Elizabeth Durig
Robhbie Duabury
Chrissy Eat‘on
Matthew Ech
Roger Ecoff
Gwen Edgerson-Wilsor
Dave Edwards
Kayleigh Ed‘wards
Wend Jw?ards
Paul Eiters

E<hil Elakkumanan
Robert E!Iis‘

Patty Elsep"
Roger ElTl'ar‘]uel
Kim English

Katle

Michael Escobar
Rita Estes |
David Eudowe

Ed Evans
Shy
Dustin Evwers
Toni Fa«mer‘
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

RLI Corp. underwrites selected property and
casualty insurance through major subsidiaries
collectively known as RL) Insurance Group. As a
“niche’” company, we offer specialty insurance
coverages designed to meet specific insurance
needs of targeted insured groups and underwrite
particular types of coverage for certain markets that
are underserved by the insurance industry, such as
our commercial earthquake coverage or oil and gas
surety bonids. We also provide types of coverages not
generally offered by other companies, such as our
stand-alon: personal umbrella policy. The excess and
surplus merket, which unlike the standard admitted
market is lzss regutated and more flexible in terms
of policy forms and premium rates, provides an
alternative for customers with hard-to-place risks.
When we underwrite within the surplus lines market,
we are selective in the line of business and type of
risks we croose to write. Using our non-admitted
status in this market allows us to tailor terms
and conditions to manage these exposures more
effectively than our admitted counterparts. Qften the
development of these specialty insurance coverages
is generated through proposals brought to us by an
agent or broker seeking coverage for a specific group
of clients. Dnce a proposal is submitted, underwriters
determine whether it would be a viable product in
keeping with our business objectives.

The foundation of our overall business strategy
is to under write for profit, and we have achieved this
for 11 consecutive years averaging a 90.5 combined
ratio over that period of time. This drives our ability
to provide sharehelder returns in three different
ways: the underwriting income itself, net investment
income from our investment portfolio, and long-term
appreciation in our equity portfolio. Our investment
strategy is based on preservation of capital as the
first priority, with a secondary focus on generating
total return. The fixed income portfolio consists
primarily of highly rated, investment grade securities
to protect invested assets. Regular underwriting
income allows a portion of our shareholders’ equity to
be invested in value-based equities, including a core
portfolio weighted toward dividend-paying stocks,

including REITs. Private equity investments, primarily
our minority ownership in Maui Jim, In¢. (Maui Jim),
have also enhanced overall returns. Additional asset
classes for diversification are also being considered.
In addition, we employ stringent diversification rules
and balance our investment credit risk and related
underwriting risks to minimize total potential exposure
to any one security. Despite occasional fluctuations
of realized and unrealized gains and losses in the
equity portfolio, our investment in stocks as part of
a long-term asset allocation strategy has contributed
significantly to our historic growth in book value.

We measure the results of our insurance
operations by monitoring certain measures of growth
and profitability across three distinct business
segments: casualty, property, and surety, Growth is
measured in terms of gross premiums written and
profitability is analyzed through combined ratios, which
are further subdivided into their respective loss and
expense components. The combined ratios represent
the income generated from our individual segments.

The casualty portion of our business consists
largely of general liability, transportation, multi-perif
program business, commercial umbrella, personal
umbrella, executive products, and other specialty
coverages. |n addition, we provide employers’
indemnity and in-home business owners coverage. The
casualty business is subject to the risk of estimating
lusses and related loss reserves because the ultimate
settlement of a casualty claim may take several years
to fully develop. The casualty segment may also be
affected by evolving legislation and court decisions
that define the extent of coverage and the amount of
compensation due for injuries or losses.

Our property segment primarily underwrites
commercial fire, earthquake, difference in conditions,
marine, and in the state of Hawaii, select personal
lines policies. Property insurance results are
subject to the variability introduced by perils such
as earthquakes, fires, and hurricanes. Qur major
catastrophe exposure is to losses caused by
earthquakes, primarily in the state of California. Our
second largest catastrophe exposure is to losses
caused by hurricanes to commercial properties
throughout the Gulf and East Coasts, as well as to
homes we insure in Hawaii. We limit our net aggregate
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exposure to a catastrophic event by purchasing
reinsurance and through extensive use of computer-
assisted modeling technigues. These technigues
provide estimates of the concentration of risks
exposed to catastrophic events.

The surety segment specializes in writing small-to-
large commercial and small contract surety coverages,
as well as those for the energy (plugging and
abandonment of oil wells), petrochemical, and refining
industries. Our surety coverages usually involve a
statutory requirement for bonds. While these bonds
have maintained a relatively low loss ratio, losses may
fluctuate due to adverse economic conditions that may
affect the financial viability of an insured. The contract
surety marketplace guarantees the construction work
of a commercial contractor for a specific project.
Generally, losses occur due to agverse economic
conditions, inclement weather conditions or the
deterioration of a contractor's financial condition. As
such, this ling has historically produced marginally
higher loss ratios than other surety lines.

The insurance marketplace softened over the
last three years, meaning that the marketplace
became more competitive and prices were generally
flat to falling, even as coverage terms became less
restrictive. Nevertheless, we believe that our business
model is geared to create underwriting income by
focusing on sound underwriting discipline. Our primary
focus will continue to be on underwriting profitability
as opposed to premium growth or market share
measurements.

GAAP AND NON-GAAP FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE METRICS

Throughout this annual report, we present
our aperations in the way we believe will be most
meaningful, useful, and transparent to anyone using
this financial information to evaluate our performance.
In addition to the GAAP presentation of net income
and certain statutory reporting information, we show
certain non-GAAP financial measures that we believe
are valuable in managing our business and drawing
comparisons to our peers. These measures are
underwriting income, gross premiums written, net
premiums written, combined ratios, and net unpaid
loss and settiement expenses.

Following is a list of non-GAAP measures found
throughout this report with their definitions,
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relationships to GAAP measures, and explanations of
their importance to our operations.

Underwriting Income

Underwriting income or profit represents the pretax
profitability of our insurance operations and is derived
by subtracting losses and settlement expenses, policy
acquisition costs, and insurance operating expenses
from net premium earned. Each of these captions
is presented in the statements of earnings but not
subtotaled. However, this information is available
in total and by segment in note 11 to the financial
statements, regarding industry segment information.
The nearest comparable GAAP measure is earnings
before income taxes which, in addition to underwriting
income, includes net investment income, general
corporate expenses, debt costs, and unconsolidated
investee earnings.

Gross premiums written

While net premiums earned is the related GAAP
measure used in the statements of earnings, gross
premiums written is the component of net premiums
earned that measures insurance business produced
before the impact of ceding reinsurance premiums,
but without respect to when those premiums will be
recognized as actual revenue. We use this measure
as an overall gauge of gross business volume in
our insurance underwriting operations with some
indication of profit potential subject to the levels of our
retentions, expenses, and 10ss costs.

Net premiums written

While net premiums earned is the related GAAP
measure used in the statements of earnings, net
premiums written is the component of net premiums
earned that measures the difference between
gross premiums written and the impact of ceding
reinsurance premiums, but without respect to when
those premiums will be recognized as actual revenue.
We use this measure as an indication of retained or
net business volume in our insurance underwriting
operations. It is an indicator of future earnings
potential subject to our expenses and loss costs.

Combined ratios

This ratic is a common industry measure of profit-
ability for any underwriting operation, and is calculated
in two components. First, the loss ratio is losses and




settlement expenses divided by net premiums earned.
The second component, the expense ratio, reflects the
sum of policy acquisition costs and insurance operat-
ing expenses, divided by net premiums earned. The
sum of the loss and expense ratios is the cambined
ratio. The difference between the combined ratio and
100 reflects the per-dollar rate of underwriting income
or loss. For example, a combined ratio of 85 implies
that for every $100 of premium we earn, we record
$15 of uncerwriting income.

Net unpaid loss and settlement expenses

Unpaid losses and settlement expenses, as
shown in the liabilities section of our balance sheet,
represents the total obligations to claimants for both
estimates of known claims and estimates for incurred
but not reported (IBNR) claims. The related asset
item, reinsurance balances recoverable on unpaid
losses anc settiement expense, is the estimate of
known claims and estimates of IBNR that we expect
to recover from reinsurers. The net of these two
items is generally referred to as net unpaid loss and
settlement expenses and is commonly referred to in
our disclosures regarding the process of establishing
these various estimated amounts.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
we are reqg.ired to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expen:ses for the reporting period. Actual results
could differ significantly from those estimates.

The mo:t critical accounting policies involve
significant estimates and include those used in
determining the liability for unpaid losses and
settlement expenses, investment valuation,
recoverability of reinsurance balances, and deferred
policy acquisition costs.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
LOSSES AND SETTLEMENT EXPENSES

Overvigw

Loss and loss adjustment expense reserves
represent our best estimate of ultimate amounts for
losses anc related settlement expenses from claims
that have been reported but not paid, and those

losses that have occurred but have not yet been
reported to us, Loss reserves do not represent an
exact calculation of liability, but instead represent

our estimates, generally utilizing individual claim
estimates and actuarial expertise and estimation
techniques at a given accounting date. The loss
reserve estimates are expectations of what ultimate
settlement and administration of claims will cost

upon final resolution. These estimates are based on
facts and circumstances then known 1o us, review of
historical settlement patterns, estimates of trends

in ¢claims frequency and severity, projections of loss
costs, expected interpretations of legal theories

of liability, and many other factors. In establishing
reserves, we also take into account estimated
recoveries, reinsurance, salvage, and subrogation. The
reserves are reviewed regularly by a team of actuaries
we empioy with periodic review by outside independent
actuarial firms.

The process of estimating l0ss reserves involves
a high degree of judgment and is subject to a number
of variables. These variables can be affected by
both internal and external events, such as changes
in claims handiing procedures, claim persennel,
economic inflation, legal trends, and legislative
changes, among others. The impact of many of these
items on ultimate costs for loss and loss adjustment
expense is difficult to estimate. Loss reserve
estimations also differ significantly by coverage due to
differences in claim complexity, the volume of claims,
the palicy limits written, the terms and conditions
of the underlying policies, the potential severity of
individual claims, the determination of occurrence
date for a claim, and reporting lags (the time between
the occurrence of the paolicyholder events and when it
is actually reported to the insurer). Informed judgment
is applied throughout the process. We continually
refine our loss reserve estimates as historical
loss experience develops and additional claims
are reported and settled. We rigorously attempt to
consider all significant facts and circumstances known
at the time l0ss reserves are established.

Due to inherent uncertainty underlying loss
reserve estimates, including but not limited to the
future settlement environment, final resolution of
the estimated liability will be different from that
anticipated at the repaorting date. Therefore, actual
paid losses in the future may yield a materially
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different amount than currently reserved — favorable
and unfavorable.

The amount by which estimated losses differ
from those originally reported for a period is known
as “development.” Development is unfavorable
when the losses ultimately settle for more than the
levels at which they were reserved or subsequent
estimates indicate a basis for reserve increases on
unreseolved claims. Development is favorable when
losses ultimately settle for less than the amount
reserved or subsequent estimates indicate a basis
for reducing loss reserves on unresolved claims, We
reflect favorable or unfavorable developments of loss
reserves in the results of operations in the period the
estimates are changed.

We record two categories of loss and 10ss adjust-
ment expense reserves — case-specific reserves and
incurred but not reported (IBNR) reserves.

Within a reasonable period of time after a ¢laim is
reported, our claim department completes an initial
investigation and establishes a case reserve. This
case-specific reserve is an estimate of the ultimate
amount we will have to pay for the claim, including
related legal expenses and other costs associated
with resolving and settling a particular claim. The
estimate reflects all of the current information
available regarding the claim, the informed judgment
of our professionat claim personnel, our reserving
practices and experience, and the knowledge of
such personnel regarding the nature and value of
the specific type of claim. During the life cycle of a
particular claim, more information may materialize
that causes us to revise the estimate of the ultimate
value of the claim either upward or downward. We
may determine that it is appropriate to pay portions
of the reserve to the claimant or related settlement
expenses before final resolution of the claim.

The amount of the individual claim reserve will be
adjusted accordingly and is based on the most recent
information available.

We establish Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR)
reserves to estimate the amount we will have to pay
for claims that have occurred, but have not yet been
reported to us; claims that have been reported to
us that may ultimately be paid out differently than
expected by our case-specific reserves; and claims
that have been paid and closed, but may reopen and
require future payment.
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Our IBNR reserving process inyolves three steps
including an initial IBNR generation process that is
prospective in nature; a loss and loss adjustment
expense reserve estimation process that occurs
retrospectively; and a subsequent discussion
and reconciliation between our prospective and
retrospective IBNR estimates which includes changes
in our provisions for IBNR where deemed appropriate.
These three processes are discussed in more detail in
the following sections.

Loss adjustment expense (LAE) represents
the cost involved in adjusting and administering
losses from policies we sold. The LAE reserves are
frequently separated into two components: allocated
and unallocated. Allocated loss adjustment expense
(ALAE) reserves represent an estimate of claims
settlement expenses that can be identified with a
specific ctaim or case. Examples of ALAE would be the
hiring of an outside adjuster to investigate a claim or
an outside attorney to defend our insured. The claims
professional typicaily estimates this cost separately
from the 1oss component in the case reserve,
Unallocated loss adjustment expense (ULAE) reserves
represent an estimate of claims settlement expenses
that cannot be identified with a specific claim. An
example of ULAE would be the cost of an internal
claims examiner to manage or investigate a reported
claim.

All decisions regarding our best estimate of
ultimate loss and LAE reserves are made by our Loss
Reserve Committee (LRC). The LRC is made up of
the management team including the chief executive
officer, chief operating officer, chief financial officer,
chief actuary, vice president of claims, vice president
of underwriting, and other selected executives.

We do not use discounting (recognition of the time
value of money) in reporting our estimated reserves
for losses and settlement expenses. Based on current
assumptions used in calculating reserves, we believe
that our overall reserve levels at December 31, 20086,
make a reasonable provision to meet our future
obligations.

Initial IBNR Generation Process

Initial carried IBNR reserves are determined
through a reserve generation process, The intent of
this process is to establish an initial total reserve that
will provide a reasonable provision for the ultimate




vatue of all unpaid loss and allocated loss adjustment
expense liabilities. For most casualty and surety
products, this process involves the use of an initial
loss and ALLAE ratio that is applied to the earned
premium for a given period. The result is our best
initial estimate of the expected amount of ultimate
loss and AILAE for the period by product. Paid and
case reser/es are subtracted from this initial estimate
of ultimate loss and ALAE to determine a carried IBNR
reserve,

For most property products, we use an alternative
method of determining an appropriate provision for
initial IBNR. Since this segment is characterized by a
shorter period of time between claim occurrence and
claim settlement, the IBNR reserve is determined by
an initial loss percentage applied to the rolling twelve
month’s premium earned. No deductions for paid or
case reserves are made. This alternative method of
determining initial IBNR reacts more quickly to the
actual loss emergence and is more appropriate for our
property products where final claim resolution occurs
quickly.

The initial loss and ALAE ratios that are applied to
earned premium are reviewed at least semi-annually.
Prospective estimates are made based on historical
loss performance adjusted for price change and loss
cost inflation. The initial toss and ALAE ratios also
reflect estimation risk. We consider estimation risk
by segmen: and product line. A segment with greater
overall volatility and uncertainty has greater estimation
risk. Charazteristics of segments and products with
higher estimation risk, include those exhibiting, but
not limited to, the following characteristics:

- significant changes in underlying policy terms and
conditions,

- consisting of a new business,

* undergoing significant exposure growth or
turnover,

*+ small volume or lacking internal data requiring
significant reliance on external data,

*longer emergence patterns with exposures to
latent unforeseen mass tort,

* high severity and/or low frequency,

- operational processes undergoing significant
change:, and/or

* high sensitivity to significant swings in loss trends
or economic change.

The historical and prospective loss and ALAE
estimates along with the applicable risk factors
identified above are the bases for determining our
initial and subsequent carried reserves. Adjustments
in the initial loss ratio by product and segment
are made where necessary and reflect updated
assumptions regarding loss experience and prevailing
risk factors. The Loss Reserve Committee makes all
final decisions regarding changes in the initial loss
and ALAE ratios.

Loss and LAE Reserve Estimating Process

A full analysis of our loss reserves takes place at
least semi-annually. The purpose of these analyses
is to provide validation of our carried loss reserves.
Estimates of the expected value of the unpaid loss
and loss adjustment expense are derived using
actuarial methodologies. These estimates are then
compared to the carried loss reserves to determine
the appropriateness of the current reserve balance.

The actuarial process of estimating ultimate
payment for claims and claims expenses begins
with the coltection and analysis of current and
historical claim data. Data on individual reported
claims including paid amounts and individual
claim adjuster estimates are grouped by common
characteristics. There is judgment involved in this
grouping. Considerations when grouping data include
the volume of the data available, the credibility of the
data available, the homogeneity of the risks in each
cohort, and both settlement and payment pattern
consistency. We use this data to determine historical
claim reporting and payment patterns which are used
in the analysis of ultimate claim liabilities. For portions
of the business without sufficiently large numbers
of policies or that have not accumulated sufficient
historical statistics, our own data is supplemented
with external or industry average data as available
and when appropriate. For our executive products and
marine business, we utilize external data extensively.

In addition to the review of historical claim
reporting and payment patterns, we also incorporate
an estimate of expected losses relative to premium by
year into the analysis. The expected losses are based
on a review of historical loss performance, trends in
frequency and severity, and price level changes. The
estimation of expected losses is subject to judgment
including consideration given to internal and industry
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data available, growth and policy turnover, changes in
policy limits, changes in underlying policy provisions,
changes in legal and regulatory interpretations

of policy provisions, and changes in reinsurance
structure.

We use historical development patterns,
estimations of the expected loss ratios, and standard
actuarial methods to derive an estimate of the
ultimate level of loss and loss adjustment expense
payments necessary to settle all the claims occurring
as of the end of the evaluation period. Once an
estimate of the ultimate level of claim payments
has been derived, the amount of paid loss and loss
adjustment expense and case reserve through the
evaluation date is subtracted to reveal the resulting
level of IBNR.

Our reserve processes include multiple standard
actuarial methods for determining estimates of IBNR
reserves. Other supplementary methodologies are
incorporated as deemed necessary. Mass tart and
latent liabilittes are examples of exposures where
supplementary methodologies are used. Each method
produces an estimate of ultimate loss by accident
year. We review all of these various estimates and
the actuaries assign weight to each based on the
characteristics of the product being reviewed. The
result is a single actuarial point estimate by product by
accident year.

Qur estimates of ultimate loss and LAE reserves
are subject to change as additional data emerge. This
could occur as a result of change in loss development
patterns; a revision in expected loss ratios: the
emergence of exceptional loss activity; a change in
weightings between actuarial methods; the addition
of new actuarial methodologies or new information
that merits inclusion: or the emergence of internal

variables or external factors that would alter their view.

There is uncertainty in the estimates of ulimate
losses. Significant risk factors to the reserve
estimate include, but are not limited to, unforeseen or
unquantifiable changes in:

- loss payment patterns,

*loss reporting patterns,

- frequency and severity trends,

- underlying policy terms and conditions,

- business or exposure mix,

- operational or internal process changes affecting
timing of recording transactions,
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- regulatory and legal environment, and/or
« econamic environment.

Qur actuaries engage in discussions with senior
management, underwriting, and the claims depart-
ment on a regular basis to attempt to ascertain any
substantial changes in operations or other assump-
tions that are necessary to consider in the reserving
analysis.

A considerable degree of judgment in the
evaluation of all these factors is inveolved in the
analysis of reserves. The human element in the
application of judgment is unavoidable when faced
with material uncertainty. Different experts will
choose different assumptions when faced with such
uncertainty, based on their individual backgrounds,
professional experiences, and areas of focus. Hence,
the estimate selected by the various qualified experts
may differ materially from each other. We consider this
uncertainty by examining our historic reserve accuracy.

Given the significant impact of the reserve
estimates on our financial statements, we subject the
reserving process to significant diagnostic testing and
outside review. Multiple outside reserving specialists
periodically review the reserve estimation process
and the resulting estimates. We give consideration to
these outside opinions and implement recommended
improvements as deemed appropriate. We have
incorporated data validity checks and balances into
our front-end processes. Leading indicators such
as actual versus expected emergence and other
diagnostics are also incorporated into the reserving
processes.

Determination of Our Best Estimate

Upon completion of our full loss and loss adjust-
ment expense estimation analysis, the results are
discussed with the Loss Reserve Committee (LRC).
As part of this discussion, the analysis supporting
an indicated point estimate of the IBNR loss reserve
by product is reviewed. The actuaries also present
explanations supporting any changes to the underly-
ing assumptions used to calculate the indicated point
estimate. Review of the variance between the indi-
cated reserves and the carried reserves determined
from the initial IBNR generation process takes place.
After discussion of these analyses and all relevant risk
factors, the LRC determines whether the reserve bal-
antes require adjustment.




As a pridominantly excess and surplus lines and
specialty insurer servicing niche markets, we believe
that there are several reasons to carry — on an overall
basis — reserves above the actuarial point estimate.
We believe we are subject to above average variation
in estimates and that this variation is not symmetrical
around the actuarial point estimate.

One reason for large variation is the above average
policyholder turnover and changes in the underlying
mix of expiasures typical of all excess and surplus
lines busiress. This constant change can cause
estimates based on prior experience to be less
reliable than estimates for more stable, admitted
books of business. Also, as a niche market writer,
there is little industry-level information for direct
comparisons of current and prior experience and other
reserving parameters. These unknowns create greater
than average variation in the actuarial point estimates.

Actuarial methods attempt to quantify future
events. Insurance companies are subject to unique
exposures that are difficult to foresee at the
point cove-age is initiated and often many years
subsequent. Judicial and regulatory bodies involved in
interpretation of insurance contracts have increasingly
found opportunities to expand coverage beyond what
was intenced or contemplated at the time the policy
was issued. Many of these policies are issued on an
“all risk™ and occurrence basis. Aggressive plaintiff
attorneys have often sought coverage beyond the
insurer’s original intent, Some examples would be
the industry’s ongoing asbestos and environmental
litigation, court interpretations of exclusionary
language on mold and construction defect, and
debates over wind versus flood as the cause of loss
from major hurricane events.

We belisve that because of the inherent variation
and the likelihood that there are unforeseen and
under-quantified liabilities absent from the actuarial
estimate, it is prudent to carry l0ss reserves above
the actuar al point estimate. Most of our variance
between the carried reserve and the actuarial point
estimate is in the most recent accident years for
our casualty segment where the most significant
estimation risks reside. These estimation risks are
considered when setting the initial loss ratio for the
product ar.d segment. In the cases where these risks
fail to matarialize, favorable loss development will
likely occur over subsequent accounting periods.

It is also possibie that the risks materialize in an
amount above what we considered when booking
our initial loss reserves. In this case, unfavorable
loss development is likely to occur aver subsequent
accounting periods.

Qur best estimate of our loss and LAE reserves
may change depending on a revision in the actuariat
point estimate, the actuary's certainty in the
estimates and processes, and our overall view of the
underlying risks. From time to time, we benchmark our
reserving policies and procedures and update them by
adopting industry best practices where appropriate.
No significant changes were made in 2006.

INVESTMENT VALUATION

Throughout each year, we and our investment
managers buy and sell securities to maximize overall
investment returns in accordance with investment
policies established and monitored by our board of
directors and officers. This includes selling available-
for-sale securities that have unrealized gains or losses
when it is believed that future performance can be
improved by buying other securities deemed to offer
superior long-term return potential.

We classify our investments in debt and equity
securities with readily determinable fair values into
one of three categories. Held-to-maturity securities are
carried at amortized cost. Available-for-sale securities
are carried at fair value with unrealized gains/losses
recorded as a component of comprehensive earnings
and shareholders’ equity, net of deferred income
taxes. Trading securities are carried at fair value with
unrealized gains/losses included in earnings.

We regularly evaluate our fixed maturity and equity
securities portfolio to determine impairment losses
for otherthan-temporary declines in the fair value
of the investments. Criteria considered during this
process include, but are not limited to; the current fair
value as compared to the cost (amortized, in certain
cases) of the security, degree and duration of the
security’s fair value being below cost, credit quality,
current economic conditions, the anticipated speed
of cost recovery, and our decisions to hold or divest a
security. Part of our evaluation of whether particular
securities are other-than-temporarily impaired involves
assessing whether we have both the intent and ability
to continue to hold securities in an unrealized loss
position. Impairment losses result in
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a reduction of the underlying investment's cost basis.
Significant changes in these factors could result in a
considerable charge for impairment losses.

RECOVERABILITY OF REINSURANCE BALANCES
Ceded unearned premiums and reinsurance
balances recoverable on paid and unpaid losses
and settlement expenses are reported separately
as assets, rather than being netted with the related
liabilities, since reinsurance does not relieve us of our
liability to policyholders. Such balances are subject to
the credit risk associated with the individual reinsurer.
Additionally, the same uncertainties associated with
estimating unpaid losses and settlement expenses
impact the estimates for the ceded portion of such
liabilities. We continually monitor the financial
condition of our reinsurers. Qur policy is to pericdically
charge to earnings an estimate of unrecoverable
amounts from reinsurers. Further discussion of the
security of our recoverable reinsurance halances can
be found in note 5 to the financial statements.

DEFERRED POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS

We defer commissions, premium taxes, and certain
other costs that vary with and are primarily related to
the acquisition of insurance contracts. Acquisition-
related costs may be deemed ineligible for deferral
when they are based on contingent or performance
criteria beyond the basic acquisition of the insurance
contract. All eligible costs are capitalized and
charged to expense in proportion to premium revenue
recognized. The method followed in computing
deferred policy acquisition costs limits the amount
of such deferred costs to their estimated realizable
value. This would also give effect to the premiums
to be earned and anticipated losses and settlement
expenses, as well as certain other costs expected to
be incurred as the premiums are earned. Judgments
as to the ultimate recoverability of such deferred
costs are highly dependent upon estimated future
loss costs associated with the premiums written. This
deferral methodology applies to both gross and ceded
premiums and acquisition costs.

Additional discussion of other significant
accounting policies may be found in note 1 to the
financial statements.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated revenue for 2006 was $632.7 million
compared to $569.3 million in 2005 and $578.8
million in 2004. The drop in 2005 resutted largely
from the decline in net premiums earned in the
property segment. The current year benefited from
gains in both the insurance operations’ premiums
earned as well as the increase in net investment
income. Realized gains also increased largely due to
the sale of the equity in one of our investee holdings.

Consofidated revenue (in thousands)

Year ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
Net premiums earned $530,338 $491,307 $511,348
Net investment income 71,325 61,641 54,087

31,045 16,354 13,365
$632,708 $569.302 $578,800

Net realized investment gains

Total consalidated revenue

Net earnings reached an all-time high as increases
were achieved in underwriting, investments and
investee earnings. Debt interest declined as the
amount outstanding was reduced in 2006. General
corporate expenses moved up each of the last two
years from increased director’s fees and legal costs,
as well as increases in compensation related to
financial performance.

Net eamings (in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Underwriting income $ 84,056 3% 68883 § 39.891
Net investment income 71,325 61,641 54,087
Net realized investment gains 31,045 16,354 13,365
Debt interest {6,581) (7,118) (6,894)
Corporate expenses (8,069) (6,780) (5,536)
Investee eamings 15,117 10,896 5,429

$186,893 $143,876 $100,342
(52,254) {36,742) {27,306)

$134.639 $107,134 § 73,036

Pretax earnings
Income tax

Net earnings

Comprehensive earnings were $157.0 million in
2006 compared to $83.9 million a year ago and $81.4
million in 2004, For the equity portfolio, the change
in unrealized gains was positive in 2006 and 2004,
while the change was negative in 2005. In the bond
portfolic, the unrealized change was positive in 20086,
while the unrealized change was negative in both
2005 and 2004.




RLI INSURANCE GROUP
In general, we have experienced continued

softening in the marketplace over the last three years.

While the vear did show moderate growth overall, the
property segment saw significant premium increases
through the first three quarters of 2006 as rates were
up markedly in catastrophe-prone areas. Underwriting
income was up considerably in our insurance
operations. The casualty segment posted similar
results to that of 2005 while the property segment

The following table further summarizes revenues
{net premiums earned) by major coverage type within
each segment:

{in thousands}) 2006 2005 2004

Casualty
General liability
Commercial and
personal umbrella 64,730 59,847 53,478
Executive coveragas 13,040 9,807 13,074

$180,037 $180,267 $174,954

benefited from a light hurricane season and reported Specialty program business 25507 3828% 47072
underwriting income, compared to a loss in 2005. Cemmercial transpartaticn 48285 51,707 55994
The surety segment continued its trend of growing Other 16,618 18,976 21,045
profitability by more than doubling the 2005 result. Total §348,217 $358.803 $365.617
The following table and narrative provide a more Property
detailed look at individual segment performance over Commercial property $ 91507 § 66410 $ 69,169
the last three years. Canstruction 4,493 2,521 21,633
Marine 16,785 3,286 -

Gross premiu ms written Other property 9,796 8311 7,241
{in thousands) 2006 2005 2004 Total $122,581 $ 80,528 § 98,043
Casualty $506,887 $519,115 $519.817 Surety $ 59540 $ 51,886 § 47.688
Property 225610 176,228 178,625
Surety 56516 60,660 54,126 Grand total $530,338  $491,307 $511.348

Total $799,013 $756,012 $752,588

Casualty

Underwriting income (loss)
{in thousands)

Casuaity $ 68393 $ 72,024 $ 19,560
Property 4,988 (8,342) 20,400
Surety 10,675 5,201 (69)
Total $ 84,056 $ 68,883 ¢ 39,801
Combined ratio
Casualty 80.4 80.0 94,7
Property 95.9 110.3 79.2
Surety 82.1 90.0 100.2
Total 84.1 86.0 92.2

Casualty gross premiums written were down 2.4
percent in 20086 while virtually flat from 2004 to 2005.
Only the umbrella and executive products experienced
growth while all other lines were down by varying
degrees as marketplace conditions for this segment
continued to soften. Despite competitive pressures,
we remained disciplined in writing only those accounts
which we believe will provide adequate returns. This
soft marketplace is likely to continue suppressing
premium growth in 2007.

The 80.4 combined ratio for the casualty segment
in 2006 was almost unchanged from the 2005
measure of 80.0. In each of these years, actuarial
studies indicated that cumulative experience
attributable to some casualty coverages for mature
accident years was considerably lower than the
reserves booked. Therefore, reserves were released
in the amounts of $39.3 million and $51.8 millicn
for 2006 and 2005, respectively. While we had
been experiencing robust price improvements in this
segment the last several years, we atso produced
significant new business with new exposures. Qur
reserving evaluation process requires adequate
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time periods to elapse to assess the impact of such
changes in marketplace conditions on our book of
casualty business.

Property

Gross premiums written in the property segment
rose 28.0 percent in 2006 compared to declines of
1.3 percent in 2005 and 7.6 percent in 2004. The
turnaround occurred as a result of considerable rate
increases in hurricane and earthquake-prone areas
while our actual exposure to these events declined.
Additionally, the marine division that launched in
2005 contributed increased gross premiums written
of $16.2 million in 2006. In 2005, we experienced
a significant decline in our construction coverage,
which we exited during the fourth guarter of that year.
Earthquake coverage premiums had dropped in 2005
as we focused on reducing our exposure. Segment
revenues for 2005 decreased disproportionately as
we incurred charges of approximately $10.0 million to
meet minimum reinsurance premium requirgments as
well as to reinstate reinsurance coverage exhausted
by loss activity on our construction coverage. Revenue
bounced hack in 2006, increasing by 52.2 percent.

Underwriting income was $5.0 million in 2006
compared to a loss of $8.3 million in 2005 and
income of $20.4 million in 2004. Although we
experienced a light hurricane season in 2006, other
catastrophe losses such as tornadoes and hailstorms,
along with increased severity of commercial fire
losses, served to hamper the segment's profitability.
Favorable loss reserve development from the two prior
years' hurricane reserves contributed $4.2 million
to profits in 2006. However, additional charges were
incurred from the run-off of the previously exited
construction coverage, which amounted to $13.7
milfion this year compared to charges of $13.5 million
in 2005. The 2005 results were affected by the
second straight year of severe hurricane activity, which
negatively impacted the segment by $22.3 million.
While the property charge in 2004 from hurricane
activity was $10.1 million, there was some favorable
development of those reserves in 2005 which
provided a benefit of $2.2 miilion.

Surety
Surety gross premiums written increased for the
third straight year. As was the case in 2005, all the
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major coverages in this segment produced increases in
2006. Total segment revenue followed suit, improving
by 14.8 percent in 2006 compared to 8.8 percent and
2.8 percent in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Underwriting income more than doubled in the
surety segment in 2006 totalling $10.7 million
compared to $5.2 million in 2005. These resuits
reflect the benefit of re-underwriting efforts initiated
during 2003 and 2004. Favorable development on
prior accident years' l0ss reserves resulted in a
benefit of $2.6 million in 2006 and $2.1 million in
2005.

We are in litigation regarding certain commercial
surety bond claims arising out of a specific bond
program, We believe we have meritorious defenses
1o these claims and are vigorously asserting our
positions in pending legal actions in multiple
jurisdictions. See note 10 for further discussion.

NET INVESTMENT INCOME AND REALIZED
INVESTMENT GAINS

During 2006, net investment income increased by
15.7 percent due to continued positive operating cash
flow. On an after-tax basis, net investment income
increased by 13.9 percent. Operating cash flows were
$171.8 million in 2006, compared to $198.0 million
in 2005, and $189.0 million in 2004. The average
annual yields on our investments were as follows for
20086, 2005, and 2004:

2006 2005 2004

Pretax yield

Taxable (on book value) 5.22% 4.90% 4.92%
Tax-exempt {on book value) 4.02% 3.98% 4.10%
Equities {on fair value) 2.78% 2.80% 3.26%
After-tax yield

Taxable {on book value) 3.40% 3.19% 3.20%
Tax-exempt (on book value} 3.81% 3.77% 3.88%
Equities (on fair value) 2.39% 2.40% 2.79%

The after-tax yield reflects the different tax rates
applicable to each category of investment. Our tax-
able bonds are subject to our corporate tax rate of 35
percent, our tax-exempt municipal bonds are subject
to a tax rate of 5.3 percent and our dividend income is
generally subject 1o a tax rate of 14.2 percent. During
20086, the average after-tax yield of the fixed income
portfolio increased 1o 3.55 percent from 3.43 percent




in 2005 due to an increase in taxable and tax-exempt
yields on new purchases. During the year, we focused
on purchasing high-quality investments, including U.S.
government and agency securities, municipal bonds,
mortgage-backed securities, and asset-backed securi-
ties, primarily in the 5-15 year range of the yield curve.

The fixed income portfolic increased by $24.4
million during the year. This portfolio had net realized
tosses of $7.3 million and a tax-adjusted total return
on a mark-to-market basis of 5.3 percent. Qur equity
portfolio increased by $47.1 million during 2006, to
$368.2 million. For the year, this portfolio had an
unrealized gain of $32.1 million and realized gains
of $38.6 million. The total return for the year on the
equity portfolio was 21.0 percent.

Our investment results for the last five years are

decline from unrealized to realized losses. This has
no impact on shareholders’ equity. There have been
no losses associated with the other-than-temporary
impairment of securities in 2006, 2005, or 2004,
The following table is used as part of our impairment
analysis and illustrates certain industry-level
measurements retative to our equity portfolio as of
December 31, 20086, including fair value, cost basis,
and unrealized gains and losses.

(in thousands) Unrealized
Cost 12/31/06 Gross Unrealized Gain/
Basis FairValue Gains  Losses Net  Loss%™Y
Consumer
discre-

tionary $ 12,750% 16,663 $ 4,055 $(142) $ 3.913 30.7%
Consumer

shown in the following table: staples 16,331 32616 16,293 (B) 16,285 99.7%
Energy 7968 29.038 21,0710 - 21,070 264.4%
{in thousands) Tax Financials 27,287 67,083 39,796 - 39,796 145.8%
~ Fauwalent  Healthcare 12,950 30,064 17,158 (44) 17,114 1322%
Net  Changsin A";:;':fd “";':;':fd Industrials 16,816 38,432 21,711 (95) 21,616 128.5%
Average Net Realized  Unrealized  onAvg,  on Avg. Materials 6515 8.757 2,382 (140) 2,242 34.4%
Invetted  Investment  Gains  Appreciation Imvested  Invested Informa-
Assets'™  Income™  (Losses)™ ah Assels Assets tion tech-
2002 $ 895,785 $37.640 $(3,552) $(34.091) 00%  0.7% ”"°'°gy 11,705 19885 8278 (98) 8180 63.9%
2003 1,165,694 44151 12,138 40,096 B83%  9.0% grecommu-
2004 14501539 54,087 13366 13200 56%  63% Uf‘lfc_a‘m"s 4;'2;2 ;g:gf 2?:?; - 2?;_?; 12:-;:
2005 1,633.755 61,641 16354 (35788) 2.6%  3.3% Ot‘h'”es et e e P
2006 1,763,016 71,325 31045 34395 7.8%  8.6% il ! ! ; -

S-yr

Avg. 51382358 $53,769 $13.870 §$ 3,562 4.9% 5.6%

(1 Average am ounts at beginning and end of year.

@ [nvestment income, net of investment expenses, including non-debt
interest expiense.

13 Before income taxes.

“ Relates to swailable-for-sale fixed maturity and equity securities.

We realized $31.0 million in capital gains in 2006,
compared to capital gains of $16.4 million in 2005
and $13.4 million in 2004. Resutts for 2006 included
a $16.2 million gain from the sale of our equity in
Taylor, Bean & Whitaker Mortgage Corp. (TBW) as
discussed in note 1 to the financial statements, Other
gains resLIted from routine investment management
decisions regarding relative valuation, fundamental
analysis, and market conditions.

We reg Jlarly evaluate the quality of our investment
portfolio. ‘When we believe that a specific security has
suffered an otherthan-temporary decline in value, the
investment’s value is adjusted by reclassifying the

Total $201,443 $368,195 $167,279 $(527) $166,752 82.8%

WCalculated as the percentage of net unrealized gain {loss) to cost
basis

As of December 31, 2006, we held seven common
stocks that were in unrealized loss positions. The total
unrealized loss on these securities was $0.5 million,
All of these securities have been in an unrealized loss
position for less than nine months.

The fixed income portfolio contained 412 positions
at a loss as of December 31, 2006, Of these 412
securities, 248 have been in an unrealized loss
position for more than 12 consecutive months and
these collectively represent $10.5 million in unrealized
losses. The fixed income unrealized losses can be
primarily attributed to changes in interest rates from
the time of purchase. We continually monitor the credit
quality of our fixed income investments to gauge our
ability to be repaid principal and interest. We consider
price declines of securities in our other-than-temporary-
impairment analysis where such price declines provide
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evidence of declining credit quality, and we distinguish
between price changes caused by credit deterioration,
as opposed to rising interest rates.

Factors that we consider in the evaluation of credit
quality include:

1. Credit ratings from major rating agencies,
including Moody's and Standard & Poor’s,

. Business and operating performance trends,

. Management quality/turnover,

. Industry competitive analysis, and

. Changes in business model/strategy.

As of December 31, 2006, we held no equity or
fixed income securities that individually had an unreal-
ized loss greater than 12 percent. Based on our evalu-
ation of equity securities held within specific industry
sectors, as well as the duration and magnitude of
unrealized losses in our equity and bond portfolios, we
do not believe any securities suffered an other-than-
temporary decline in value as of December 31, 2006.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of
fixed-maturity securities at December 31, 20086, by
contractual maturity, are shown as follows:

o WK

Amaortized Estimated
(in thousands) Cost Fair Value
Total fixed income
Due in one year or less $ 18999 $ 19,105
Due after one year through five years 317,934 318,154
Due after five years through 10 years 640,809 640,532
Due after 10 years 383,713 380,470
Total $1,361.455 $1,358,261

Expected maturities may differ from contractual
maturities due to call provisions on some existing
securities.

INTEREST AND GENERAL CORPORATE EXPENSE

Interest on debt fell 7.5 percent as short-term
obligations were paid off during the year. While debt
interest was basically flat in 2005, the 2004 increase
resulted from the issuance of $100 million in 10-year
maturity senior notes in December 2003. Decisions
regarding future short-term debt management will be
based on available cash flow and the interest rate
environment. General corporate expenses tend to
fluctuate relative 10 our executive compensation plan
and have increased in each of the last three years due
to strong operating results. This model measures
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comprehensive earnings against a minimum required
return on our capital. Additionally, legal fees, director
fees, and travel rose since 2003.

INVESTEE EARNINGS

We maintain a 40 percent interest in Maui Jim,
primarily a manufacturer of high-quality polarized
sungiasses. Maui Jim's chief executive officer owns a
controlling majority of the outstanding shares of Maui
Jim. In 2006 we recorded $8.8 million in earnings
from this investment compared to $8.4 million in
2008 and $5.0 million in 2004. The upward trend over
the last two years is the result of improved operating
performance. Also included in this caption were $6.3
million, $2.5 million, and $0.5 million in earnings
over the last three years from our investment in TBW.
During the fourth quarter of 2004, we converted
warrants to common stock in this private mortgage
origination company, which increased our ownership
interest to 21 percent. Prior to the conversion,
earnings from this ownership were reflected in net
investment income. In the fourth quarter of this year,
we sold our equity in TBW for $32.5 million resulting in
a pretax realized gain of $16.2 million.

INCOME TAXES

Our effective tax rates were 28.0 percent, 25.5
percent, and 27.2 percent for 2006, 2005, and 2004,
respectively. Effective rates are dependent upon
components of pretax earnings and the related tax
effects. The effective rate for 2006 was higher than
2005 and 2004 due to the increase in underwriting
income and net realized gains, which were taxed
at 35.0 percent. Partially offsetting this increase,
results for 2006 included the favorable resolution of
a recent tax examination. During 2008, the internal
Revenue Service (IRS} concluded an examination of
our tax years 2000 through 2004. As a result of this
exam, we recorded a $3.2 million tax benefit, resulting
from a change in tax estimate related to the sale of
assets. In 2006 and 2005, a tax benefit was realized
associated with a dividend declared and payable in
2007 and 20086, respectively, from an unconsolidated
investee, Maui Jim. As required under Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes,” the gain reflects the
tax benefit of applying the lower tax rate applicable
to affiliated dividends (7 percent) as compared to the
corporate capital gains tax rate {35 percent) on which




previous tax estimates were based. In addition, our
pretax earnings in 2006 included $28.7 million of
investmert income that is wholly or partially exempt
from federal income tax, compared to $28.2 million
and $25.2 million in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

NET UNPAID LOSSES AND
SETTLEMENT EXPENSES

The primary liability on our balance sheet relates
to unpaid losses and settlement expenses, which
represents our estimated liability for losses and related
settlement expenses before considering offsetting
reinsuranc.e recoverable balances. This liability can be
further deconstructed into two parts: (1) case reserves
representing estimates of losses and settlement
expenses on known claims and (2) IBNR — incurred
but not reported — reserves representing estimates
of losses :and settiement expenses on claims that
have occurred but have not yet been reported to us.
Qur gross fiability for both case and IBNR reserves
is reducec by reinsurance balances recoverable on
unpaid losses and settlement expenses to calculate
our net reserve balance. This net reserve balance
increased from $738.7 million at December 31, 2005,
to $793.1 million as of December 31, 20086, This
reflects incurred loss of $256.9 miltion in 2006 offset
by paid losses of $202.4 million, compared to incurred
losses of $251.2 million offset by $180.9 million
paid in 2005. As of December 31, 2008, our net
IBNR reserves represented 64.3 percent of total net
reserves while the remainder was for case reserves. As
of December 31, 2005, IBNR net reserves represented
63.3 percant of total net reserves.

MARKET RISK DISCLOSURE

Market risk is a general term describing the
potential economic loss associated with adverse
changes in the fair value of financial instruments.
Managemzant of market risk is a critical component of
our investment decisions and objectives. We manage
our exposure to market risk by using the following
tools:

1. Monitoring the fair value of all financial assets on
a ccnstant basis,

2. Changing the character of future investment
purchases as needed, and

3. Maintaining a balance between existing asset
and liability portfolios.

INTEREST RATE RISK

Our primary exposure to interest rate risk is with
our fixed income investment portfolio.

Maodified duration analysis is used to measure the
sensitivity of the fixed income portfolic to changes l
in interest rates, providing a measure of price
percentage volatility. We attempt to minimize interest
rate risk by matching the duration of assets to that of
liabilities.

Interest rate risk will also affect our income
statement due to its impact on interest expense. We
maintain a debt obligation that is long term in nature,
At the end of 2005, our short-term debt was $15.5
million. As of December 31, 2006, our short-term debt
obligations were zero. Our long-term debt carries a
fixed interest rate. As such, our interest expense on
this obligation is not subject to changes in interest
rates. As this debt is not due until 2014, we will not
assume risk in our ahility to refinance this debt for
many years.

EQUITY PRICE RISK

Equity price risk is the potential that we will
incur economic loss due to the decline of common
stock prices. Beta analysis is used to measure the
sensitivity of our equity portfolio ta changes in the
value of the S&P 500 Index (an index representative
of the broad equity market). Qur current equity
portfolio has a beta of .72 in comparison to the S&P
500. Our equity investment returns have been similar
to the S&P 500 with much tess volatility. This low
beta statistic reflects our long-term emphasis on
maintaining a conservative, value oriented, dividend-
driven investment philosophy for our equity portfolio,
Historically, dividend-paying common stocks have
demonstrated superior down-market performance
characteristics.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The tables on page 14 detail information on the
market risk exposure for our financial investments as
of December 31, 2006. Listed on each table is the
December 31, 2006, fair value for our assets and
the expected pretax reduction in fair value given the
stated hypothetical events. This sensitivity analysis
assumes the composition of cur assets remains
constant over the period being measured and also
assumes interest rate changes are reflected uniformly
across the yield curve. For example, our ability to
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hold non-trading securities to maturity mitigates

price fluctuation. For purposes of this disclosure,
market-risk-sensitive instruments are divided into two
categories: instruments held for trading purposes and
those held for nontrading purposes. The examples
given are not predictions of future market events, but
rather illustrations of the effect such events may have
on the fair value of our investment portfolio.

As of December 31, 2008, our fixed income
portfolio had a fair value of $1.4 billion. The sensitivity
analysis uses scenarios of interest rates increasing
100 and 200 basis points from their December 31,
20086, levels with all other variables held constant.
Such scenarios would result in decreases in the fair
value of the fixed income portfolio of $61.8 million
and $123.9 million, respectively. Due to our use of the
held-to-maturity designation for a portion of the fixed
income portfolio, the balance sheet impact of these
scenarios would be lower.

As of December 31, 2006, our equity portfolio had
a fair value of $368.2 million. The base sensitivity
analysis uses market scenarios of the S&P 500 Index
declining both 10 percent and 20 percent. These
scenarios would result in approximate decreases
in the equity fair value of $29.9 million and $59.9
million, respectively. As we designate all common
stocks as available-for-sale, these fair value declines
would impact our balance sheet.

Counter to the base scenarios shown in Tables 1
and 2, Tables 3 and 4 quantify the opposite impact.
Under the assumptions of falling interest rates and an
increasing S&P 500 Index, the fair value of our assets
will increase from their present levels by the indicated
amounts.

Table 2 (in thousands)

Effect of a 200-basis-point increase in interest rates and a 20% decline in
the 5&P 500:

12/31/06 Interest Equity
Fair Value Rate Risk Risk

Hetd for trading purposes

Fixed maturity securities $ 14960 $ (1.216) § -

Total rading 14,960 (1,216) -

Held for nontrading purposes

Fixed maturity securities 1,343,301 (122,698) -

Equity securities 368,195 - (59,942}
$1,711,496 (122,698) (59,942)

$1,726,456 $(123,914) $(59,942)

Total nontrading

Total trading & nontrading

Table 3 (in thousands)

Effect of a 100-basis-point decrease in interest rates and a 10% increase
in the S&P 500:

12/31/06 interest Equity

Fair Value Rate Risk Risk
Held for trading purposes
Fixed maturity securities $ 14960 % 579 § -
Total trading 14,960 579 -
Held for nontrading purposes
Fixed matusity securities 1,343,301 48,904 -
Equity securities 368,185 - 29,971

Total nontrading $1,711,496 48,904 29,971

Total trading & nontrading $1,726,456  $49,483  $29971

Table 4 (in thousands)
Effect of a 200-basis-point decrease in interest rates and a 20% increase
in the S&P 500:

12/31/06 Interest Equity

Fair Value Rate Risk Risk

Held for trading purposes
Fixed maturity securities $ 14960 $ 1,103 & -
Total trading 14,960 1,103 -

Table 1 (in thousands)
Effect of a 100-basis-paint increase in inerest rates and a 10% decline in

Held for nontrading purposes

Fixed maturity securities 1,343.301 95,672 -

the S&P 500 Equity securities 368,195 - 59,942
12/31/06 Interest Equity Total nontrading $1,711,496 95,672 59,942
FairValue  RateRisk  Risk Total vading & nonwading  $1,726.456  $96,775  $59,942

Held for trading purposes
Fixed maturity securities $ 14960 $ (622) % -

Total trading 14,960 (622) -

Held for nontrading purposes

Fixed maturity securities 1,343,301 (61,132} -
Equity securities 368,195 - (29,971)
Total nontrading $1,711,496 (61,132) (29971)

Tota! trading & nontrading $1,726,456  $(61,754) $(29,971)
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

OVERVIEW

We have three primary types of cash flows: (1)
operating cash flows, which consist mainly of cash
generated by our underwriting operations and income
earned on our investment portfolio, (2) investing cash
flows related to the purchase, sale, and maturity of
investments, and (3) financing cash flows that impact
our capital structure, such as changes in debt 'and
shares outstanding. The following table summarizes
these three cash flows over the last three years.

(in thousand:) 2006 2005 2004
Operating cash flows $171,775 $ 198,027 $ 188,962
Investing cash flows (63,325) (152,907) (177,189)
Financing cash flows {108,450) {45,120) (11,773)

Our balance sheet does not reflect any cash
balance tecause all of our funds are invested in short-
term investments, primarily highly rated money market
instruments.

We have entered into certain contractual
obligatior s that require us to make recurring
payments. The following table summarizes our
contractual obligations as of December 31, 20086.

{in thousand 5}
Contractual Less than
Obligations Total 1yr

Payments due by period
More than
1-3ys. 3-5yrs 5yrs.

Loss and setle-
ment expense $1,318,777 $407951 $499.318 $232,630 $178878

Long-term deht 100,000 - - - 100,000
Short-term dabt - - - . -
Capital lease 192 178 14 - _
Operating ease 14,187 3,338 5178 3,688 1,983
Total $1433,156 5411467 $504,510 $236,318 $280.861

Loss end settlement expense reserves represent
management’s best estimate of the ultimate cost of
settling reported and unreported claims and related
expenses. As discussed previously, the estimation of
loss and loss expense reserves is based on various
complex and subjective judgments. Actual losses
and settlement expenses paid may deviate, perhaps
substantially, from the reserve estimates reflected
in our financial statements. Similarly, the timing for
payment of our estimated losses is not fixed and is
not determinable on an individual or aggregate basis.

The assumptions used in estimating the payments
due by periods are based on our historical claims
payment experience. Due to the uncertainty inherent
in the process of estimating the timing of such
payments, there is a risk that the amounts paid in any
period can be significantly different than the amounts
disclosed above. Amounts disclosed above are gross
of anticipated amounts recoverable from reinsurers,
Reinsurance balances recoverable on unpaid loss

and settlement reserves are reported separately

as assets, instead of being netted with the related
liabilities, since reinsurance does not discharge us of
our liability to policyhelders. Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers on unpaid loss and settlement reserves
totaled $525.7 million at December 31, 2006.

The next largest contractual obligation relates to
long-term debt outstanding. On December 12, 2003,
we completed a public debt offering, issuing $100
million in senior notes maturing January 15, 2014 (a
10-year maturity), and paying interest semi-annually
at the rate of 5.95 percent. The notes were issued at
a discount resulting in proceeds, net of discount and
commission, of $98.9 million. These notes are rated
Baa2 by Moody's and BBB+ by Standard & Poor's. We
are not party to any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Our primary cbjective in managing our capital is to
preserve and grow shareholders’ equity and statutory
surplus to improve our competitive position and
allow for expansion of our insurance operations. Our
insurance subsidiaries must maintain certain minimum
capital levels in order to meet the requirements of
the states in which we are regulated. Our insurance
companies are also evaluated by rating agencies that
assign financial strength ratings that measure our
ability to meet our obligations to policyholders over an
extended period of time.

We have historically grown our shareholders’ equity
and/or policyholders' surplus as a result of three
sources of funds: (1) earnings on underwriting and
investing activities, (2) appreciation in the value of
our invested assets, and {3} the issuance of common
stock and debt.

At December 31, 2006, we had short-term
investiments and other investments maturing within
one year of approximately $123.2 million and
investments of $440.0 million maturing within five
years. We maintain revolving lines of credit with two
financial institutions, each of which permits us
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to borrow up to an aggregate principal amount of
$10.0 millicn. Under certain conditions, each of the
lines may be increased up to an aggregate principal
amount of $20.0 million. These facilities have three-
year terms that expire on May 31, 2008. As of
December 31, 20086, no amountis were outstanding
on these facilities. We believe that cash generated by
operations, cash generated by investments and cash
available from financing activities will provide sufficient
sources of liquidity to meet our anticipated needs over
the next 12 to 24 months. We have generated positive
operating cash flow for more than 20 consecutive
years. In the most recent three years ended December
31, 20086, 2005, and 2004, our operating cash flow
was $171.8 million, $198.0 million, and $1892.0
million, respectively. The primary factor in our ability to
generate positive operating cash flow is underwriting
profitability. If we are not able to continue generating
positive operating cash flow, we may have to sell
investment securities, some of which might be sold at
a loss.

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The foliowing table highlights some of the major
sources and uses of cash flow from operating
activities:

cede, or pay out, part of the premiums we receive to
our reinsurers, and collect cash back when losses
subject to our reinsurance coverage are paid.

The timing of our cash flows from operating
activities can vary among periods due to the timing by
which payments are made or received. Some of our
payments and receipts, including loss settlements and
subsequent reinsurance receipts, can be significant,
s0 their timing can influence cash flows from operating
activities in any given period. We are subject to the
risk of incurring significant losses on catastrophes,
both natural (such as earthquakes and hurricanes)
and man-made (such as terrorism). If we were to incur
such losses, we would have to make significant claims
payments in a relatively concentrated period of time.

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

The following table highlights some of the major
sources and uses of cash flow from investing
activities:

Sources Uses

Purchase of bonds
Purchase of stocks

Proceeds from bonds sold,
called or matured
Proceeds from stocks sold
Proceeds from sale of unconsolidated investee

Sources Uses

Claims

Ceded premium to reinsurers
Commissions paid

Operating expenses

Interest expense

Incame taxes

Premiums received
Less payments from reinsurers
Investment income

{interest & dividends)

Our largest source of cash is from premiums
received from our customers, which we receive at the
beginning of the coverage period. Qur largest cash
outflow is for claims that arise when a policyholder
incurs an insured loss. Because the payment of
claims occurs after the receipt of the premium, often
years later, we invest the cash in various investment
securities that earn interest and dividends — another
source of cash. We use cash to pay commissions
to brokers and agents, as well as to pay for ongoing
operating expenses such as salaries, rent, taxes,
and interest expense. We also utilize reinsurance to
manage the risk that we take on our policies. We
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We maintain a well-diversified investment portfolio
representing policyhclder funds that have not yet been
paid out as claims, as well as the capital we hold
for our shareholders. As of December 31, 20086, our
portfolio had a carrying value of $1.8 billion. Invested
assets at December 31, 2008, increased by $130.5
million, or 7.7 percent, from December 31, 2005.
Contributing to this increase was the investment of
cash flows from operations.

Our overall investment philosophy is designed to
first protect policyholders by maintaining sufficient
funds to meet corporate and policyholder obligations,
then generate long-term growth in shareholiders’
equity. Because our existing and projected liabilities
are sufficiently funded by the fixed income portfolio,
we can improve returns by investing a portion of
the surplus (within limits) in an equity portfolio.

As of December 31, 2006, 43.8 percent of our
shareholders’ equity was invested in common stocks,
as compared to 46.3 percent at December 31, 2005




and 50.6 percent at December 31, 2004. The 2006
calculation excludes a $36.7 million investment in a
bond mutual fund.

We currently classify 7.8 percent of the securities
in our fixed income portfolio as held-to-maturity,
meaning they are carried at amortized cost and are
intended to be held until their contractual maturity.
Other portions of the fixed income portfolio are
classified as available-for-sale {91.1 percent) or
trading (1.1 percent) and are carried at fair value. As
of December 31, 2006, we maintained $1.25 billion
in fixed income securities within the available-for-sale
and trading classifications. The available-for-sale
portfolio provides an additional source of liquidity and
can be used to address potential future changes in
our asset/liability structure,

Our fix2d income portfolio is managed for safety,
focusing on securities of the highest ratings and
liquidity. VYield is of secondary importance behind
the preservation of capital. The equity portfolio
is weighted toward dividend-paying stocks that
provide current income as well as long-term growth
potential. This philosophy of portfolio diversification,
management style, and asset allocation allows us
to maxim ze overall returns within our defined risk
tolerances.

Our bend portfolio comprised 74.2 percent of our
total 2005 portfolio, versus 78.4 percent of the total
at December 31, 2005, and 75.0 percent of the total
as of December 31, 2004, As of December 31, 2006,
our fixed ncome portfolio contained 76.9 percent
AAA-rated bonds, 10.1 percent AA-rated bonds, 8.6
percent A-rated bonds, and 4.4 percent BBB-rated
bonds.

In selecting the maturity of securities in which
we invest, we consider the relationship between the
duration of our fixed income investments and the dura-
tion of our liabilities, including the expected ultimate
payout patterns of our reserves. We believe that both
liquidity and interest rate risk can be minimized by
such asset/liability management. As of December 31,
20086, our fixed income portfolio's duration was 4.76
years and remained well diversified. During 2006, the
total retu‘n on our bond portfolio on a tax-equivalent,
mark-to-market basis was 5.25 percent,

In addition, at December 31, 2006, our equity
portfolio had a value of $368.2 million, all of which is
classified as available-for-sale and is also a source

-

of liquidity. The securities within the equity portfolio
remain primarily invested in large-cap issues with
strong dividend performance. The strategy remains
one of value investing, with security selection taking
precedence over market timing. A buy-and-hold
strategy is used, minimizing both transactional costs
and taxes. We maintain a well-diversified group of
equity securities. During 2006, the total return on our
equity portfolio on a mark-to-market basis was 21.0
percent.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

In addition to the previously discussed operating
and investing activities, we also engage in financing
activities t¢ manage our capital structure. The
following table highlights some of the major sources
and uses of cash flow from financing activities:

Sources Uses
Proceeds from stock offerings Shareholder dividends
Proceeds from debt offerings Debt repayment

Short-term borrowing Share buy-backs

Shares issued under stock option plans

Our capital structure is comprised of equity
and debt obligations. As of December 31, 2008,
our capital structure consisted of $100.0 million
in 10-year maturity senior notes {long-term debt),
and $756.5 million of shareholders’ equity. Debt
outstanding comprised 11.7 percent of total capital as
of December 31, 2006.

Our 123rd consecutive dividend payment was
declared in the first quarter of 2007 and will be paid
on April 12, 2007, in the amount of $0.20 per share.
Since the inception of cash dividends in 1978, we
have increased our annual dividend every year.

Dividend payments to us from our principal
insurance subsidiary are restricted by state insurance
laws as to the amount that may be paid without prior
approval of the regulatory authority of lllinois. The
maximum dividend distribution is limited by lllincis
law to the greater of 10 percent of RLI Insurance
Company’s policyholder surplus as of December 31 of
the preceding year or its net income for the 12-month
period ending December 31 of the preceding year,
Therefore, the maximum dividend distribution that
can be paid by RLI Insurance Company during 2007
without prior approval is $75.7 million. In 20086, a total
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of $59.5 million has been paid in dividends by RLI
Insurance Company as follows: asset transfer of Maui
Jim valued at $35.2 miillion, asset transfer of TBW
valued at $13.4 million, and a cash dividend of $10.9
million.

In February 2006, we anngunced a $200 million
common stock repurchase program. Through year
end 2006, we repurchased 1,624,009 shares at an
average price of $49.92 per share, which is just over
$81.1 million of the program. We anticipate conclud-
ing this repurchase program in 2007,

QUTLOOK FOR 2007

Our insurance marketplace, and in particular the
excess and surplus lines segment, iS subject to cycles
involving alternating periods of price increases (“hard
markets™) and price decreases {*soft markets”). Pric-
ing in the overall insurance marketplace has been on
the decline for the past several years. We expect this
trend to continue, although each of our insurance seg-
ments will likely be impacted by varying degrees. We
also expect to see some organic growth in 2007 and
underwriting income in all three of our insurance seg-
ments absent any major catastrophe. Specific details
regarding events in our insurance segments follow.

CASUALTY

We expect the price softening seen in 2006 to
centinue in 2007. We will maintain our profit-focused
strategy and look to broaden our production sources
and product offerings as a means to holding our
market position and potentially growing this segment.
Rising profitability and rising levels of capital for
the industry will serve to intensify competition for
this segment. We look to our ability to exercise
underwriting discipline and select quality risks to
continue our profitability in 2007.

PROPERTY

The industry took advantage of a quiet Atlantic
hurricane season to rebuild capital depleted by
hurricane events in 2005. We believe property pricing
will soften, but not to pre-Katrina levels. Pricing
actions will be tempered by greater rating agency
focus on catastrophe claims-paying ability. We expect
to continue to see premium growth and favorable
loss experience in this segment in 2007, Our marine
business should continue to grow moderately, while
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we expect losses from our run-off construction book
to stabilize.

SURETY

The surety segment, like our other segments,
should feel the pressure of a softening marketplace.
The steps we have taken over the past several years
to address loss experience, coupled with a strong
staffing model aided by decision support tools, point
to continued profitability in 2007.

INVESTMENTS

Within our investment portfolio, we expect to
continue to increase investment income as the
balance of our portfolio grows from operating and
investing cash flow. Interest rates for bonds with
maturities of greater than five years, where a majority
of our fixed income portfolio is concentrated, have
remained relatively stable in the last couple of years,
although they are below the historical average. If
interest rates increase, we will be able to invest our
cash flow into higher-yielding investments which would
improve investment income. However, rising interest
rates will depress the fair value of our bond portfolio
which will negatively impact comprehensive earnings
and book value. Twenty percent of our portfolio is
invested in common stocks. We expect the dividend
income on these stocks to grow and the value of this
portfolio will be dictated by the performance of the
general stock market, which is difficult to predict.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

SFAS NO. 123 (REVISED 2004),
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (SFAS 123R)

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) revised Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123,
“Share-Based Payment,” {(SFAS 123R) which required
companies to expense the estimated fair value
of employee stock options and similar awards,
for all options vesting, granted, or modified after
the effective date of this revised statement. The
accounting provisions of SFAS 123R were to become
effective for interim periods beginning after June 15,
2005. In April 2005, the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) adopted a final rule amending Rule
4-01(a) of Regulation S-X regarding the compliance
date for SFAS 123R. The effect of this ruling was to




delay the effective date of SFAS 123R to the first
interim o~ annual reporting period of the registrant’s
first fiscal year beginning on or after June 15, 2005.
As a result, the accounting provisions of SFAS
123R became effective for our financial statements
beginning January 1, 2006,

SFAS 123R is a revision of SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (SFAS
123), and supersedes Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25), and its related implementation
guidance. On January 1, 2006, we adopted the
provisions of SFAS 123R using the modified
prospective method. SFAS 123R requires entities to
recognhizer compensation expense for awards of equity
instruments to employees based on the grant-date
fair value of those awards (with limited exceptions).
Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, we followed
the intrinsic value method in accordance with APB
25 to account for our employee stock options and
recognized no compensation expense for the stock
option grants.

SFAS N©O. 154, ACCOUNTING CHANGES AND
ERROR CORRECTIONS (SFAS 154)

We adopted SFAS 154 on January 1, 2006.
SFAS 154 replaces APB 20, “Accounting Changes,”
and SFAS No.3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in
Interim Financial Statements.” SFAS 154 requires
retrospective application to prior periods’ financial
statements for changes in accounting principle, unless
determination of either the period specific effects or
the cumulative effect of the change is impracticable
or otherviise promulgated. We had no accounting
changes or error corrections affected by the new
standard.

SFAS NO. 155, ACCOUNTING FOR CERTAIN
HYBRID FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS —
AN AMENDMENT OF FASB STATEMENTS
NO. 133 AND 140 (SFAS 155)

in February 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 155,
“Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments.”
SFAS 155 amends FASB Statement No. 133 and
FASB Statement No. 140, and improves the financial
reporting, of certain hybrid financial instruments by
requiring more consistent accounting that eliminates
exemptions and provides a means to simplify the

accounting for these instruments. Specifically, SFAS
155 allows financial instruments that have embedded
derivatives to be accounted for as a whole (eliminating
the need to bifurcate the derivative from its host) if
the holder elects to account for the whole instrument I
on a fair value basis. SFAS 155 is effective for all
financial instruments acquired or issued after the
beginning of an entity's first fiscal year that begins
after September 15, 2006. Companies are required
to adopt the provisions of SFAS 155, as applicable,
beginning in fiscal year 2007. We do not believe the
adoption of SFAS 155 will have a material impact on
our financial position or results of operations.

FASB INTERPRETATION NO. 48, ACCOUNTING
FOR UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES, (FIN 48)
In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN 48, which
clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in an entity's financial statements
in accardance with FASB Statement No. 109,
“Accounting for Income Taxes.” FIN 48 requires an
entity to recognize the benefit of tax positions only
when it is more likely than not, based on the position’s
technical merits, that the position would be sustained
upon examination by the respective taxing authorities.
The tax benefit is measured as the largest benefit that
is more than 50 percent likely of being realized upon
final settlement with the respective taxing authorities.
FIN 48 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2006. FIN 48 is not expected to have
a material effect on our financial position or results of
operations.

SFAS NO. 157, “FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS"
(SFAS 157)

In September 20086, the FASB issued SFAS
No. 157. SFAS 157 defines fair value and establishes
a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP. The
proncuncement describes fair value as being based
on a hypothetical transaction to sell an asset or
transfer a liahility at a specific measurement date,
as considered from the perspective of a market
participant who holds the asset or owes the
liability. In addition, fair value should be viewed as
a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific
measurement. Therefore, fair value should be
determined based on the assumptions that market
participants would use in pricing an asset or liability,
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including all risks associated with that asset or
liability. SFAS 157 becomes effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007. We are currently
reviewing the guidance provided in this standard to
determine the impact on our financial position and
results of operations.

SFAS NO. 158, "EMPLOYERS' ACCOUNTING
FOR DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION AND OTHER
POST RETIREMENT PLANS—AN AMENDMENT
OF FASB STATEMENTS NO 87, 88, 106 AND
132(R)" {SFAS 158)

In September 20086, the FASB issued SFAS
No. 158. SFAS 158 improves reporting of obligations
for pensions and other post-retirement benefits by
recognizing the overfunded or under-funded status of
plans as an asset or liahility. The pronouncement does
not change how plan assets and benefit obligations
are measured under SFAS 87 and SFAS 106 nor does
it change the approach for measuring annual benefit
cost reported in earnings. Rather, it eliminates the
provisions that permit plan assets and obligations to
be measured as of a date not maore than three months
prior to the balance sheet date, instead requiring
measurement as of the reporting date. In addition,
the pronouncement requires previously unrecognized
items, such as actuarial gains and unrecognized
prior service ¢osts or credits to be recognized
on the balance sheet as a component of other
comprehensive income (loss). As discussed in note
8, our defined benefit pension plan was terminated in
20086. The implementation of SFAS 158 had no impact
on our financial position or results of operations.

STATE AND FEDERAL LEGISLATION

As an insurance holding company, we, as well as
our insurance company subsidiaries, are subject to
regulation by the states and territories in which the
insurance subsidiaries are domiciled or transact
business. Holding company registration in each
insurer's state of domicile requires periodic reporting
to the state regulatory authority of the financial.
operational and management data of the insurers
within the holding company system. All transactions
within a holding company system affecting insurers
must have fair and reasonable terms, and the
insurer’s policyholder surplus following any transaction
must be both reasonable in relation to its outstanding
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liahilities and adequate for its needs. Notice to
regulators is required prior to the consummation of
certain transactions affecting insurance company
subsidiaries of the holding company system.

The insurance holding company laws also
require that ordinary dividends be reported to the
insurer's domiciliary regulator prior to payment of
the dividend and that extraordinary dividends may
not be paid without such regulator's prior approval.

An extraordinary dividend is generally defined as a
dividend that, together with all other dividends made
within the past 12 months, exceeds the greater of
100 percent of the insurer’s statutory net income for
the most recent calendar year, or 10 percent of its
statutory policyholders’ surplus as of the preceding
year end. Insurance regulators have broad powers

to prevent the reduction of statutory surplus to
inadequate levels, and there is no assurance that
extraordinary dividend payments would be permitted.

In addition, the insurance holding company
iaws require advance approval by state insurance
commissioners of any change in control of an
insurance company that is domiciled (or, in some
cases, having such substantial business that it is
deemed to be commercially domiciled) in that state.
“Control” is generally presumed to exist through
the ownership of 10 percent or more of the voting
securities of a domestic insurance company or of any
company that controls a domestic insurance company.
In addition, insurance laws in many states contain
provisions that require prenotification to the insurance
commissioners of a change in control of a non-
domestic insurance company licensed in those states.
Any future transactions that would constitute a change
in control of our insurance company subsidiaries,
including a change of control of us, would generally
require the party acquiring control to obtain the
prior approval by the insurance departments of the
insurance company subsidiaries’ states of domicile
or commercial domicile, if any. and may require pre-
acquisition notification in applicable states that
have adopted pre-acquisition notification provisions.
Obtaining these approvals could result in materiat
delay of, or deter, any such transaction.

Other regulations impose restrictions on the
amount and type of investments our insurance
company subsidiaries may have. Reguiations designed
to ensure financial solvency of insurers and to




require feir and adequate treatment and service for
policyholders are enfarced by filing, reporting and
examination requirements. Marketplace oversight is
conducted by monitoring and periodically examining
trade practices, approving policy forms, licensing of
agents and brokers, and requiring the filing and in
some cases, approval, of premiums and commission
rates to ensure they are fair and equitable. Such
restrictions may limit the ability of our insurance
company subsidiaries to introduce new coverages or
implement desired changes to current premium rates
or policy forms. Financial solvency is monitered by
minimum regserve and capital requirements (including
risk-based capital requirements), periodic reporting
proceduras (annually, quarterly, or more frequently if
necessary), and periodic examinations.

The quarterly and annual financial reports to the
states utilize statutory accounting principles that are
different from GAAP, which show the business as a
going coricern. The statutory accounting principles
used by regulators, in keeping with the intent to
assure policyholder protection, are generally based on
a solvency concept.

Under state insurance laws, our insurance
company subsidiaries cannot treat reinsurance ceded
to an unlicensed or non-accredited reinsurer as an
asset or 35 a deduction from its liabilities in their
statutory financial statements, except to the extent
that the reinsurer has provided collateral security in
an approved form, such as a letter of credit. As of
December 31, 2006, $1.6 million of our reinsurance
recoveralhles were due from unlicensed or non-
accredited reinsurers that had not provided us with
approved collateral.

Many jurisdictions have laws and regulations
that limit an insurer's ability to withdraw from a
particula- market. For example, states may limit
an insurer's ability to cancel or not renew policies.
Furthermore, certain states prohibit an insurer from
withdrawing one or more lines of business from the
state, exsept pursuant to a plan that is approved by
the state insurance department. The state insurance
department may disapprove a plan that may lead to
marketplace disruption. Laws and regulations that
limit cancellation and non-renewal and that subject
program withdrawals to prior approval requirements
may rest-ict our ability to exit unprofitable
marketplaces. For example, the state

of Florida passed legislation in early 2007 seeking
to make residential homeowners' insurance in
Florida more accessible and affordable by imposing
regulatory changes and restrictions on many aspects
of the insurance market in that state. The near-term
impact to us is not expected to be material since we
currently write a relatively small amount of residential
homeowners' insurance in that state. However, such
legislation is new, and thus its full impact, as well
as the reaction of any other coastal state, is not
yet certain. We will continue to carefully monitor the
legislative and regulatory activity in this area.

Virtually ali states require licensed insurers to
participate in various forms of guaranty associations
in order to bear a portion of the loss suffered by the
policyholders of insurance companies that become
insclvent. Depending upon state law, licensed insurers
can be assessed an amount that is generally equal
to between 1 percent and 2 percent of the annual
premiums written for the relevant lines of insurance
in that state to pay the ¢laims of an insolvent insurer.
These assessments may increase or decrease in
the future, depending upon the rate of insolvencies
of insurance companies. In some states, these
assessments may be wholly or partially recovered
through policy fees paid by insureds.

In addition t0 monitoring our existing regulatory
obligations, we are also monitoring developments
in the following areas to determine the potential
effect on our business and to comply with our legal
obligations.

BROKER CONTINGENT COMMISSIONS

In 2004, the New York attorney general began an
investigation into insurance broker and insurance
company activities connected with contingent
commission arrangements. The investigation led to
lawsuits, both private suits and suits by attorneys
general, and prompted other attorneys general and
state insurance departments to conduct further
investigations. We have responded to all inquiries from
state attorneys general and insurance departments,
and have not been subject to any regulatory actions or
paid any fees or fines as a result. We also conducted
an internal investigation of our contingent commission
arrangements and related underwriting practices and
found no improper actions. We have also established
a corporate policy regarding the proper use and
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authorization of contingent commission agreements.
The National Association of Insurance Commissioners
(NAIC) has created a model act on these agreements
for agents and brokers, and statutes have been
proposed or enacted in several states. We continue to
closely monitor all legislative developments.

TERRORISM EXCLUSION REGULATORY ACTIVITY

After the events of September 11, 2001, the
NAIC urged states to grant conditional approval
te commercial lines endorsements that excluded
coverage for acts of terrorism consistent with
language developed by the Insurance Services
Office, Inc (1S0). The IS0 endorsement included
certain coverage limitations. Many states allowed the
endorsements for commercial lines, but rejected such
exclusions for personal exposures.

On November 26, 2002, the federal Terrorism
Risk Insurance Act of 2002 (TRIA)} became law. TRIA
was set to expire on December 31, 2005, but the
law has been extended until December 31, 2007.

The act, as extended and amended, provides for a
federal backstop for terrorism losses as defined by
the act and certified by the secretary of the treasury
in concurrence with the secretary of state and the
U.S. attorney general. Under TRIA, coverage provided
for losses caused by acts of terrorism is partiaily
reimbursed by the United States under a formula
whereby the government pays 20 percent in 2006
and 85 percent in 2007 of covered terrorism losses
exceeding a prescribed deductible to the insurance
company providing the coverage. The deductible is
calculated as 17.5 percent in 2006 and 20 percent in
2007 of gross earned premium net of a few excludable
lines. Coverage under the act must be made available
to policyholders, with certain specified exceptions,

in commercial property and casualty policies. The
immediate effect. as regards state regulation, was to
nullify terrorism exclusions to the extent they exclude
losses that would otherwise be covered under the
act. We are in compliance with the requirements of
TRIA and have made terrorism coverage available to
policyholders. Given the challenges associated with
attempting to assess the possibility of future acts of -
terror exposures and assign an appropriate price to
the risk, we have taken a conservative underwriting
position on most of our affected coverages. Congress
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is currently considering an extension of TRIA, although
such action is not certain.

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT QF 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 presents a
significant expansion of securities law regulation of
corporate governance and compliance, accounting
practices, reporting, and disclosure that affects
publicly traded companies. The act, in part, sets forth
requirements for certification by CEOs and CFOs of
certain reports filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC), disclosures pertaining to the
adoption of a code of ethics applicable to certain
management personnel, and safeguards against
actions to fraudulently influence, manipulate or
mislead independent public or certified accountants
of the issuer's financial statements. It also provides
stronger requirements for development and evaluation
of internal control procedures, as well as provisions
pertaining to a company’s audit committee of
the board of directors. As required by the act and
under the supervision from and participation of
management, we annually complete an evaluation
of our internal control system including ali design,
assessment, documentation, and testing phases. This
evaluation is intended to identify any deficiencies,
measure their materiality, and implement procedures,
where necessary, to remediate them.

The annual certification of our CEQ with respect
to compliance with the New York Stock Exchange
corporate governance listing standards has been
submitted to the New York Stock Exchange and the
annual certifications of our CEO and CFO required by
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 with respect to the
our 2006 fiscal year have been filed with the SEC as
an exhibit to our annual report on Form 10-K for 2006,

ASBESTOS LITIGATION REFORM

Congress has considered, but not yet enacted,
asbestos litigation reform legislation. Alternatives
range from a proposat requiring manufacturers and
insurers to fund liabilities for asbestos exposure to
provide for a remedy for all ashestos-related claims, to
a proposal requiring victims to document their medical
condition before suing for damages. We continue to
monitor our expected exposure and do not perceive a
significant risk.




FEDERAL REGULATION QF INSURANCE

In 20086, two separate bills were introduced in
Congress that would provide significant federal
regulation in the insurance industry. One bill provides
for an optional federal charter, and the other seeks
to streamline and reduce the state regulatory burden
for non-admitted/surplus lines of insurance. This
proposed legislation would have a significant impact
on the insurance industry, and we continue to monitor
all proposals.

Also, n early 2007, bills were introduced in
Congress to repeal the antitrust exemption for the
insurancez industry in the McCarran-Ferguson Act. We
will monitor this proposed legislation, but we cannot
predict if such bills will become law or the impact of
such legislation on the company or the industry.

CORPORATE COMPLIANCE

We have a code of conduct, corporate governance
guidelines, and compliance manual, which provide
directors, officers, and employees with guidance and
requirements for complying with a variety of federal
and state laws and company policies. Electronic
versions of these documents, as well as the following
documents, are, or will be, available on our web site
{(www.rlicorp.com): 2006 summary annual report;
2006 financial report; 2007 proxy statement; annual
report on Form 10-K for 2006; and charters of the
executive resources, audit, finance and investment,
strategy, and nominating/corporate governance
committees of the board of directors. Printed copies of
these dccuments will be made available upon request
without charge to any shareholder.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Forward looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section
21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 appear
througheut this report. These statements relate to
our current expectations, beliefs, intentions, goals
or strategies regarding the future and are based on
certain underlying assumptions by us. These forward
tooking statements generally include words such as
“expect,” "will,” “should,” "anticipate,” and similar
expressions. Such assumptions are, in turn, based
on inforrnation available and internal estimates and
analyses of general economic conditions, competitive
factors, conditions specific to the property and

casualty insurance industry, claims development, and
the impact thereof on our loss reserves, the adequacy
of our reinsurance programs, developments in the
securities market and the impact on our investment
portfolic, regulatory changes and conditions, and
other factors. Actual results could differ materially
from those expressed in, or implied by, these forward
looking statements. We assume no obligation to
update any such statements. You should review the
various risks, uncertainties, and other factors listed
from time to time in our Securities and Exchange
Commission filings,
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,

{in thousands, except share data) December 31, 2006 2005

. Assets

Investments:
Fixed maturities:

Available-for-sale, at fair value (amortized cost — $1,240,020 in 2006 and $1,189,408 in 2005) $1,234571  $1,181,636
Held-to-maturity, at amortized cost (fair value — $108,730 in 2006 and $138,902 in 2005) 106,310 134,451
Trading, at fair value (amortized cost — $15,125 in 2006 and $15,465 in 2005) 14,960 15,312
Equity securities available-for-sale, at fair value (cost — $201,443 in 2006 and $186,417 in 2005) 368,195 321,096
Short-term investments, at cost which approximates fair value 104,205 45,296
Tota! investments 1,828,241 1,697,791
Cash - -
Accrued investment income 18,628 16,974
Premiums and reinsurance balances receivable, net of allowances for uncollectible amounts of
$21,620 in 2006 and $19,987 in 2005 126,021 126,894
Ceded unearned premiums 97,596 114,668
Reinsurance balances recoverable on unpaid losses and settlement expenses, net of allowances for
uncollectible amounts of $16,806 in 2006 and $18,605 in 2005 525,671 593,209
Deferred policy acquisition costs, net 73,817 69,477
Property and equipment, at cost, net of accumulated depreciation of $38,060 in 2006 and $35,306 in 2005 20,590 20,859
Investment in unconsofidated investees 36,667 54,340
Goodwils, net of accumulated amartization of $4,700 in 2006 and 2005 26,214 26,214
Other assets 17,851 15,444
Total assets $2,771,296  $2,735,870

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Liabilities:

Unpaid losses and seitlement expenses $1,318,777 $1,331,866
Unearned premiums 387,811 383,683
Reinsurance balances payable 85,046 97.526
Notes payable, short-term debt - 15,541
Income taxes — current 8,318 4,425
Income taxes — deferred 27,069 22,717
Bonds payable, long-term debt 100,000 100,000
Other liabilities B7.,755 87171

Total liabilities 2,014,776 2,042,929

Sharehoiders’ equity:
Common stock ($1 par value, authorized 50,000,000 shares, issued 31.689,740 shares in 2006

and 31,344,058 shares in 2005) 31,690 31.344
Paid-in capital 187,632 181,794
Accumulated other compsehensive earnings net of tax 105,145 82,785
Retained earnings 594,147 478,043
Deferred compensation 7,744 7.735
Treasury stock, at cost (7,416,762 shares in 2006 and 5,792,753 shares in 2005) {169,838} (88,760)

Total shareholders’ equity 756,520 692,941
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $2,771,296 $2,735870
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS AND
COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

{in thousands, except per share data) Years ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
Net premiums earned $530,338 $491,307 $511,348
Net investment income 71,325 61,641 54,087
Net realized investment gains 31,045 16,354 13,365
Consoclidated revenue 632,708 569,302 578,800
Losses and settlement expenses 256,889 251,170 306,131
Policy acquisition costs 145,776 136,058 134,595
Insurance operating expenses 43,617 35,196 30,731
Interest expense on debt 6,581 7,118 6,894
General corporate expenses 8,069 6,780 5,536
Total expenses 460,932 436,322 483,887
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated investees 15,117 10,896 5,429
Earnings before income taxes 186,893 143,876 100,342
Income tax expense (benefit):
Current 59,942 40,481 32,495
Deferred (7.688) (3,739) {5,189
Income tax expense 52,254 36,742 27,306
Net earnings $134,639 $107,134 $ 73,036

Other comprehensive earnings {l0ss), net of tax
Unrealized gains {losses} cn securities:

Unrealized holding gains {losses} arising during the period $ 32,011 $(12,594) $ 16,871
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net earnings (9,651) {10,638) (8,553)
Other comprehensive earnings (loss) 22,360 {23.232) 8318
Comprehensive earnings $156,999 $ 83,902 $ 81,354

Earnings per share:

Basic
Net earnings per share $5.40 $4.21 $2.90
Comprehensive earnings per share $6.30 $3.30 $3.23
Diluted
Net earnings per share $5.27 $4,07 $2.80
Comprehensive earnings per share $6.14 $3.19 $3.12
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic 24,318 25,459 25,223
Diluted 25,571 26,324 26,093
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

{in thousands) Years ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from operating activities
Net earnings $ 134,639 $107,134 ¢ 73,036
Adjustments to recencile net eamnings 1o net cash provided by operating activities:
Net realized investment gains (31,045) {16,354) (13,365)
Depreciation 3,503 3,228 3,033
Other items, net 5,783 11,311 10,738
Change in: Accrued investment income (1,654) (1,791) (2,378)
Premiums and reinsurance balances receivable
(net of direct write-offs and commutations) 873 19,773 6,193
Reinsurance balances payable {12,480) 19,464 (14,320)
Ceded uneamned premium 17,072 (13,221) 302
Reinsurance balances recoverable on unpaid (osses 67,538 (129,029) (92,132)
Deferred policy acquisition costs (4.340) (2,331) (3,408)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,005 9,693 2,411
Unpaid losses and settiement expenses (13,089) 199,267 229,158
Unearned premiums 4,128 16,479 (437)
Income taxes: Current 6.823 (7,187) 4,460
Deferred (7,688) (3,739) {5,189}
Stock option excess tax benefit (2,930} - -
Changes in investment in unconsolidated investees: Undistributed earnings (15,117) (10,896) (5.429)
Dividends received 16,500 - -
Net proceeds from trading portfolio activity 254 (3,774) (3.710)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 171,775 $108,027 $ 188962
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{in thousands) Years ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of; Fixed maturities, held-to-maturity $ - $ {3,024y % -
Fixed maturities, available-for-sale (412,019) (407,658) (360,162)
Equity securities, available-for-sale (139,462) (73,519 (98,675)
Short-term investments, net (61,548) - (2,219)
Property and equipment {4,590) (10,538) (4,051)
Note receivable {5,0G0) {6,000} -
Proceeds from sale of; Fixed maturities, availab!e-for-sale 231,385 149,724 108,088
Equity securities, available-for-sale 146,635 72,374 39,638
Short-term investments, net - 38,506 -
Progerty and equipment 1,356 4,787 1,298
Investment in unconsolidated investee 32,499 - -
Proceeds from call or maturity of: Fixed maturities, held-to-maturity 28,215 25,363 24,080
Fixed maturities, available-for-sale 117,204 55,578 71,814
Note receivable 2,000 1,500 3,000
Net cash used in investing activities $ (63,325)  ${152,907) $(177,189)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of short-term debt $35 $214 $366
Payment on short-term debt {15,5786) {31,512) (1,088)
Stock option excess tax benaefit 2,930 - -
Proceeds from stock option exercises 3,254 1,437 1,059
Treasury shares purchased {81,0689) - (10)
Cash dividends paid (18,024) {15,259) (12,100)
Net cash used in financing activities ${(108,450) § (45,120) % (11,773)
Net decrease in cash - - -
Cash at beginning of year - - -
Cash at end of year $ - 5 - $ -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS™ EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consclidated financial statements.

Accumulated

Total Other Deferred Treasury
{in thousands, Shareholders’ Comman Paid-in Comprehensive Retained Compen- Stock
except per share data) Equity Stock Capital Earnings (Loss) Earnings sation at Cost
Balance, January 1, 2004 $554,134 $30.958 $179.684 $ 97,699 $326.,808 $6,069 § (87,084)
Net eamings 73.036 73,036
Other comprehensive eamings, net of tax 8,318 8,318
Treasury shares purchased (266 shares) {10) {10)
Deferred compensation under
Rabbi trust plans - 822 (822}
Exercise of stock options 1.059 151 908
Dividends declared ($.51 per share) (12,876) (12,876)
Balance, December 31, 2004 $623,661 $31,109  $180,592 $106,017 $386,968 $6,891 & (87,916)
Net eamings 107,134 107,134
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (23.232) {23,232)
Deferred compensation under
Rabbi trust plans - 844 (844)
Exercise of stock options 1,437 235 1,202
Dividends declared ($.63 per share) (16,059) (16,059)
Balance, December 31, 2005 $692,941 $31,344 $181,794 $ B2,785 $478,043 $7,735 §$ (88,760)
Net earnings $134,639 134,639
Other comprehensive eamnings, net of tax 22,360 22,360
Treasury shares purchased
{1,624,009 shares) (81,069} {81,069}
Deferred compensation under
Rabbi trust plans - 9 (%)
Stock option excess tax benefit 2,930 2,930
Exercise of stock options 3,254 346 2,908
Dividends declared ($.75 per share) {18,535) (18,535)
Balance, December 31, 2006 $756,520 $31.690 $187,632 $105,145  $594,147 $7,744 $(169,838)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

A. Description of business: We underwrite selected
property and casualty insurance coverages.

We conduct operations principally through three
insurance companies. RLI Insurance Company (RLI),
our principal subsidiary, writes multiple lines insurance
on an admitted basis in all 50 states, the District
of Columbia, and Puerto Rico. Mt. Hawley Insurance
Company, a subsidiary of RLI Insurance Company,
writes surplus lines insurance in all 50 states, the
District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, the Virgin Islands,
and Guam. RLI Indemnity Company (RIC), a subsidiary
of Mt. Hawley Insurance Company, has authority to
write multiple lines insurance on an admitted basis in
49 states and the District of Columbia.

B. Principles of consolidation and basis of presenta-
tion: The accompanying consolidated financial state-
ments were prepared in conformity with GAAP {account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States
of America), which differ in some respects from those
followed in reports to insurance regulatory authorities.
The consolidated financial statements include the ac-
counts of our holding company and our subsidiaries.
All significant intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated. Certain reclassifications were
made to the prior years’ financial statements to con-
form with the classifications used in 2006.

C. Investments: In compliance with Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 115,
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities,” we classify our investments i all
debt securities and those equity securities with readily
determinable fair values into one of three categories:
available-for-sale, held-to-maturity, or trading.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

Debt and equity securities not included as held-to-
maturity or trading are classified as available-for-sale
and reported at fair value, based upon quoted market
prices. Unrealized gains and losses on these securities
are excluded from net earnings but are recorded as a
separate component of comprehensive earnings and
shareholders’ equity, net of deferred income taxes. All
of our equity securities and approximately 91 percent
of debt securities are classified as available-for-sale.

HELD-TO-MATURITY SECURITIES

Debt securities that we have the positive intent
and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-
to-maturity and carried at amortized cost. Except for
declines that are other than temporary, changes in the
fair value of these securities are not reflected in the
financial statements. We have classified approximately
8 percent of our debt securities portfolio as held-to-
maturity.

TRADING SECURITIES

Debt and equity securities purchased for short-
term resale are classified as trading securities.

These securities are reported at fair value with
unrealized gains and losses included in earnings. We
have classified approximately 1 percent of our debt
securities portfolio as trading.

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005,
and 2004, no securities were transferred from held-to-
maturity to available-for-sale or trading.

Short-term investments are carried at cost, which
approximates fair value.

Our balance sheet does not reflect any cash
balance because all of our funds are invested in short-
term investments, primarily highly rated money market
instruments.

We continuously monitor the values of our invest
ments in fixed maturities and equity securities. If this
review suggests that a decline in fair value is other
than temporary, our carrying value in the investment
is reduced to its fair value through an adjustment to
earnings. Realized gains and losses on disposition of
investments are based on specific identification of the
investments scld on the trade date.

Interest on fixed maturities and short-term
investments is credited to earnings as it accrues.
Premiums and discounts are amortized or accreted
over the lives of the related fixed maturities. Dividends
on equity securities are credited to earnings on the ex-
dividend date.

D. Reinsurance: Ceded unearned premiums
and reinsurance balances recoverable on paid and
unpaid losses and settlement expenses are reported
separately as assets, instead of being netted with the
related liabilities, since reinsurance does not relieve
us of our legal liability to our policyholders.
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We continucusly monitor the financial condition of
our reinsurers. Qur policy is to periodically charge to
earnings, in the form of an allowance, an estimate
of unrecoverable amounts from reinsurers. We
believe that current reserve levels for uncollectible
reinsurance are sufficient to cover our exposures.

E. Unpaid losses and settlement expenses: The
liability for unpaid losses and settlement expenses
represents estimates of amounts needed to pay
reported and unreported claims and related expenses.
The estimates are based on certain actuarial and
other assumptions related to the ultimate cost to
settle such claims. Such assumptions are subject
to occasional changes due to evolving economic,
social, and political conditions. All estimates are
periodically reviewed and, as experience develops
and new infarmation becomes known, the reserves
are adjusted as necessary. Such adjustments are
reflected in the results of operations in the period
in which they are determined. Due to the inherent
uncertainty in estimating reserves for losses and
settlement expenses, there can be no assurance
that the ultimate liability will not exceed recorded
amounts. If actual liabilities do exceed recorded
amounts, there will be an adverse effect. Furthermore,
we may determine that recorded reserves are more
than adequate to cover expected losses, as happened
during 2005 and 2008, when favorable experience
on casualty business led us to reduce our reserves.
Based on the current assumptions used in estimating
reserves, we believe that our overall reserve levels at
December 31, 2006, make a reasonable provision to
meet our future obligations. See note G for a further
discussion of unpaid losses and settlement expenses.

F. Insurance revenue recognition: Insurance
premiums are recognized ratably over the term of
the contracts, net of ceded reinsurance. Unearned
premiums are calculated on a monthly pro rata basis,

G. Policy acquisition costs: We defer commissions,
premium taxes, and certain other costs that vary
with and are primarily related to the acquisition of
insurance contracts. Acquisition-related costs may be
deemed ineligible for deferral when they are based on
contingent or performance criteria beyond the basic
acquisition of the insurance contract. All eligible costs
are capitalized and charged to expense in proportion
to premium revenue recognized. The method followed
in computing deferred policy acquisition costs limits

30 RLI CORP. 2006 FINANCIAL REPORT

the amount of such deferred costs to their estimated
realizable value. This would also give effect to the
premiums to be earned and anticipated losses and
settlement expenses, as well as certain other costs
expected to be incurred as the premiums are earned.
Judgments as to the ultimate recoverability of such
deferred costs are highly dependent upon estimated
future loss costs associated with the premiums
written. This deferral methodology applies to both
gross and ceded premiums and acqguisition costs.

H. Property and equipment: Property and equipment
are presented at cost less accumulated depreciation
and are depreciated on a straight-line basis for
financial statement purposes over periods ranging
from three to 10 years for equipment and up to 30
years for buildings and improvements.

L. Intangible assets: In accordance with SFAS
142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the
amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible
assets is not permitted. Goodwill and indefinite-lived
intangible assets remain on the balance sheet and
are tested for impairment on an annual basis, or when
there is reason to suspect that their values may have
been diminished or impaired. Goodwill and indefinite-
lived intangible assets, which relate to our surety
segment, are listed separately on the balance sheet
and totaled $26.2 million at December 31, 2006 and
2005. Impairment testing was performed during 2006,
pursuant to the requirements of SFAS 142, Based
upon this review, these assets are not impaired.

Intangible assets with definite lives continue
to be amortized over their estimated useful lives.
Definite-lived intangible assets that continue to be
amortized under SFAS 142 relate to our purchase of
customer-related and marketing-related intangibles.
These intangibles have useful lives ranging from five
to 10 years. Amortization of intangible assets was
$0.4 million for 2006, compared to $0.5 million for
2005 and $1.3 million in 2004, Amortization expense
in 2004 includes $0.7 million of additional expense
recorded, pursuant to our review of the recoverability
of the definite-lived intangible asset relating to
contract surety. Definite-lived intangibles are subject
to review for impairment pursuant to the requirements
of SFAS 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” SFAS 144 requires,
among other things, that we review our long-lived
assets and certain related intangibles




for impairment whenever changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may

not ke fully recoverable. During 2004, we reviewed
the recoverability of the definite-lived intangible

asset relating to contract surety. In accordance with
SFAS 144, this asset was tested for impairment by
comparing the asset’s projected undiscounted cash
flows to its carrying value. Results of these tests
indicated the asset was not recoverable. We recorded
$0.7 million of amortization expense. Subsequent to
this adjustment, this asset had a carrying value of $0.

Amortization expense on intangible assets is
expected to be $0.1 million in 2007. In 2007, these
assets will be fully amortized. At December 31, 2006,
net intangible assets totaled $0.1 million, net of $5.6
million of accumulated amortization, and are included
in other assets. At December 31, 2005, net intangible
assets totaled $0.5 million, net of $5.2 million of
accumulated amortization.

J. Investment in unconsolidated investees: We
maintain a 40 percent interest in the earnings of
Maui Jim, In¢. (Maui Jim), primarily a manufacturer of
high-quality polarized sunglasses, which is accounted
for by the equity method. We also maintain a similar
minority representation on their board of directors,
held by our chairman, president, and CFO. Maui Jim's
chief executive officer owns a controlling majority
of the outstanding shares of Maui Jim, Inc. Qur
investment in Maui Jim was $36.7 million in 2006
and $44.3 million in 2005. In 2006, we recorded
$8.8 million in investee earnings compared to $8.4
million in 2005 and $5.0 million in 2004. Maui Jim
recorded net income of $22.1 million in 2006, $20.1
millien in 2005 and $10.9 million in 2004. Additional
summarized financial information for Maui Jim for
2006 and 2005 is outlined in the following table:

(in millions) 2006 2005
Current assets $ 770 $ 808
Total assets 113.9 114.6
Current liabilities 45.7 22,7
Total liabilities 46.7 28.7
Total equity 8§72 B59

Approximately $23.8 million of undistributed
earnings from Maui Jim are included in our retained
earnings as of December 31, 2006.

In January 2007, the board of directors of Maui Jim
declared a dividend that will be payable in the first

quarter of 2007, Our share of the cash dividend will
be $5.9 million. The tax benefit associated with this
dividend is discussed in note 7. We also received a
dividend of $16.5 million from Maui Jim in 2006.

Prior to December 20086, we also maintained a
21 percent interest in the earnings of Taylor, Bean &
Whitaker Mortgage Corp. (TBW), a private mortgage
origination company which was accounted for by
the equity method. In December 2006, we sold our
interest in the company for $32.5 million to TBW's
chairman who owned the majority of the outstanding
shares prior to the sale. We realized a $16.2 million
pretax gain on the sale of equity. Our ownership
commenced in October 2004 when we exercised
warrants that were acquired in 1999. QOur investment
in TBW, prior to the sale, was $16.3 million in 2008,
compared to $10.0 million in 2005 and $7.5 million in
2004. In 2006, we recorded $6.3 million in investee
earnings, compared to $2.5 million in 2005.

In December 2006, we became a 17% participant
in a loan syndicate which provided TBW’s majority
shareholder with short-term financing. Our share of
the loan totaled $5.0 million. The loan is collateralized
by TBW shares and our portion contains the same
market terms and conditions as those of the lead and
other syndicate members. We also have a separate
note receivable from TBW totaling $4.5 million at
December 31, 2006, which originated in 1999 as an
opetating loan,

We perform impairment reviews of our investments
in unconsolidated investees. Based upon these
reviews, these assets were not impaired.

K. Income taxes: We file a consolidated income
tax return. Income taxes are accounted for using
the asset and liability method under which deferred
income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences
of “'temporary differences” by applying enacted
statutory tax rates applicable to future years to
differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts and the tax bases of existing assets and
liabilities, operating losses, and tax credit carry
forwards. The effect on deferred taxes for a change
in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that
includes the enactment date.

L. Earnings per share: Pursuant 10 disclosure
requirements contained in SFAS 128, “Earnings per
Share,” the following represents a reconciliation of the
numerator and denominator of the basic and diluted
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earnings per share (EPS) computations contained in
the financial statements.

Per Share
Amount

Shares
{Denominator}

Income
{Numeratar)

{in thousands,
except per share data)

for the year ended December 31, 2006
Basic EPS
Income available to
commen shareholders $134,639 24918 $5.40

Stock options - 653

Diluted EPS

Income available to common
shareholders and assumed
conversions

$134,639 25,571 $5.27

For the year ended December 31, 2005
Basic EPS

Income available to
common shareholders $107,134 25,459 $4.21

Stock options - 865

Diluted EPS
Income available to common

sharehclders and
assumed conversions

$107,134 26,324 $4.07

For the year ended December 31, 2004
Basic EPS

Income available to
gomman shareholders $ 73,036 25,223 $2.90

Stack aptions - 870

Diluted EPS

Income available to common
shareholders and
assumed conversions $

73,036 26,093 2.80

M. Comprehensive earnings; The difference between
our net earnings and our comprehensive earnings is
that comprehensive earnings include unreatized gains/
losses net of tax, whereas net earnings does not
include such amounts, and such amounts are instead
directly credited or charged against shareholders’
equity. In reporting the components of comprehensive
earnings on a net basis in the income statement, we
have used a 35 percent tax rate. Other comprehensive
income (loss), as shown, is net of tax expense
(benefit) of $12.0 million, $(12.5) million, and $4.5
million, respectively, for 2006, 2005, and 2004,

N. Fair value disclosures: The following methods
were used to estimate the fair value of each class
of financial instruments for which it was practicable
to estimate that value. Fixed maturities and equity
securities are valued using quoted market prices, if
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available, If a quoted market price is not available,
fair value is estimated using independent pricing
services or guoted market prices of similar securities.
Fair value disclosures for investments are included

in note 2. Due to the relatively short-term nature of
cash, shortterm investments, accounts receivable,
accounts payable, and short-term debt, their carrying
amounts are reasonable estimates of fair value.

0. Stock based compensation; In December 2004,
the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB}
revised Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 123, “Share-Based Payment,” (SFAS 123R)
which required companies to expense the estimated
fair value of employee stock options and similar
awards, for all options vesting, granted, or modified
after the effective date of this revised statement. The
accounting provisions of SFAS 123R were to become
effective for interim periods beginning after June 15,
20065. In April 2005, the Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) adopted a final rule amending Rule
4-01(a) of Regulation S-X regarding the compliance
date for SFAS 123R. The effect of this ruling was to
delay the effective date of SFAS 123R to the first
interim or annual reporting period of the registrant’s
first fiscal year beginning on or after June 15, 2005.
As a result, the accounting provisions of SFAS
123R became effective for our financial statements
beginning January 1, 2006.

SFAS 123R is a revision of SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” {SFAS
123), and supersedes Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” (APB 25), and its related implementation
guidance. On January 1, 2006, we adopted the
provisions of SFAS 123R using the modified
prospective method. SFAS 123R requires entities to
recognize compensation expense for awards of equity
instruments to employees based on the grant-date
fair value of those awards. Prior to the adoption of
SFAS 123R, we foliowed the intrinsic value method in
accordance with APB 25 to account for our employee
stock options and recognized no compensation
expense for the stock option grants.

On November 10, 2005, the Financial Accounting
Standards Board {“FASB") issued FASB Staff Position
No. SFAS 123(R)-3, “Transition Election Related to
Accounting for Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment
Awards.” The alternative transition method includes



simplified methods to establish the beginning balance
of the additional paid-in capital pool (“APIC pool™)
related to the tax effects of employee share-based
compensation, and to determine the subsequent
impact on the APIC poot and consolidated statements
of cash flows of the tax effects of employee share-
based compensation awards that are outstanding
upon adoption of SFAS 123(R). We have elected to
adopt the alternative transition methoed provided in
this FASB Staff Position for calculating the tax effects
of share-based compensation pursuant to SFAS
123(R). '

See note 8 for further discussion and related
disclosures regarding stock options.

P. Risks and uncertainties: Certain risks and
uncertainties are inherent 1o our day-to-day
operations and to the process of preparing our
financial statements. The more significant risks and
uncertainties, as well as our methods for mitigating,
quantifying and minimizing such, are presented below
and throughout the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

CATASTROPHE EXPOSURES

Our insurance coverages include exposure to
catastrophic events. Our major catastrophe exposure
is to losses caused by earthquakes, primarily in the
state of California. Our second largest catastrophe
exposure is to losses caused by hurricanes to
commercial properties throughout the Gulf and East
Coasts, as well as to homes we insure in Hawaii.
Using computer-assisted modeling techniques, we
moenitor and manage our exposure to catastrophic
events. Additionally, we further limit our risk to such
catastrophes through the purchase of reinsurance.
In 2008, our property underwriting was supported by
$450 million in traditional catastrophe reinsurance
protection, subject to certain retentions by us.
At January 1, 2007, we increased our reinsured
limit of catastrophe.coverage for earthquake
exposures by $50 million, thereby bringing our total
reinsurance protection to $500 million, subject to
certain retentions by us. We actively restructure our
catastrophe program in order to maximize limits and
minimize costs.

ENVIRONMENTAL EXPOSURES
We are subject to environmental claims and
exposures through our commercial umbrella, general

liability, and discontinued assumed reinsurance lines
of business. Although exposure to environmental
claims exists in these lines of business, we have
sought to mitigate or control the extent of this
exposure through the following methods: 1} our
policies include pollution exclusions that have
been coritinually updated to further strengthen the
exclusions, 2) our poligies primarily cover moderate
hazard risks, and 3) we began writing this business
after the insurance industry became aware of the
potential pollution liability exposure.

We have made loss and settlement expense
payments on environmental liability claims and have
loss and settlement expense reserves for others. We
include this historical environmental loss experience
with the remaining loss experience in the applicable
line of business to project ultimate incurred losses
and settlement expenses as well as related incurred
but not reported (IBNR) loss and settlement expense
reserves.

Although historical experience on environmental
claims may not accurately reflect future environmental
exposures, we have used this experience to record
loss and settlement expense reserves in the
exposed lines of business. See further discussion of
environmental exposures in note 6,

REINSURANCE

Reinsurance does not discharge us from our
primary liability to policyholders, and to the extent
that a reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations, we
would be liable. We continuously monitar the financial
condition of prospective and existing reinsurers. As
a result, we currently purchase reinsurance from a
limited number of financially strong reinsurers. We
provide a reserve for reinsurance balances deemed
uncollectible. See further discussion of reinsurance
exposures in note 5.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
we are required to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses for the reporting pericd. See note 10 for
a discussion of a significant policy-related contingency.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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The most significant of these amounts is the liability
for unpaid losses and settlement expenses. We
continually update our estimates as additional

data becomes available and adjusts the financial
statements as deemed necessary. Other estimates
such as investment valuation, the collectibility of
reinsurance balances, recoverability of deferred

tax assets, and deferred policy acquisition costs

are regularly monitored, evaluated, and adjusted.
Although recorded estimates are supported by
actuarial computations and other supportive data, the
estimates are ultimately based on our expectations of
future events,

EXTERNAL FACTORS

Our insurance subsidiaries are highly regulated
by the states in which they are incorporated and
by the states in which they do business. Such
regulations, among other things, limit the amount of
dividends, impose restrictions on the amount and
types of investments and regulate rates insurers may
charge for various coverages. We are also subject
to insolvency and guarantee fund assessments for
various programs designed to ensure policyholder
indemnification, We generally accrue an assessment
during the period in which it becomes probable that a
liability has been incurred from an insolvency and the
amount of the related assessment can be reasonably
estimated.

The National Association of Insurance
Commissioners (NAIC) has developed Property-
Casualty Risk-Based Capital (RBC) standards that
relate an insurer's reported statutory surplus to
the risks inherent in its overall operations. The
RBC formula uses the statutory annual statement
to calculate the minimum indicated capital level
to support asset (investment and credit) risk and
underwriting (loss reserves, premiums written, and
unearned premium) risk. The NAIC model law calls
for various levels of regulatory action based on the
magnitude of an indicated RBC capital deficiency,
if any. We regularly monitor our subsidiaries’
internal capital requirements and the NAIC's RBC
developments. As of December 31, 2008, we have
determined that our capital levels are well in excess of
the minimum capital requirements for all REC action
levels and that our capital levels are sufficient to
support the level of risk inherent in our operations.
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In addition, ratings are a critical factor in
establishing the competitive position of insurance
companies. Qur insurance companies are rated
by A.M. Best, Standard & Poor's, and Moody's.
Their ratings reflect their opinions of an insurance
company’s and an insurance holding company's
financial strength, operating performance, strategic
position, and ability to meet its obligations to
policyholders,

2. INVESTMENTS

A summary of net investment income is as follows:

Net Investment Income (in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Interest on fixed matusities $64,486 $56,427 549,657
Dividends on equity securities 10,402 9,466 8,919
Appreciation in private equity warrants - - 110
Interest on short-term investments 2,125 1,316 621
Gross investment income 77,013 67209 59,307
Less investment expenses {5,688) (5568) (5220)
Net investiment income $71,325 $61.641 $54,087

Pretax net realized investment gains {losses)
and net changes in unrealized gains (losses) on
investments for the years ended December 31 are
summarized as follows:

Realized/unreslized gains
{in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Net realized investment gains (losses)
Fixed maturities

Available-for-sale $(7,351) § 573 § 335
Held-to-maturity 92 18 126
Trading {53) {32) {154)
Equity securities 38,578 15,887 12,824
Qther {221) {92) 234
31,045 16,354 13,365
Net changes in unrealized gains
(losses) on investments
Fixed maturities
Available-for-sale 2,323 (24,070) {1,725}
Held-te-maturity {2,030) (5,055 (4,841}
Equity securities 32,072 (11,718) 14925
32,365 (40,843) 8,359

Net realized investment gains
and changes in unrealized

gains {losses) on investments $63,410 $(24,489) 3$21,724




Following is a summary of the disposition of fixed
maturities and equities for the years ended December
31, with separate presentations for sales and calls/
maturities:

The following is a schedule of amortized costs
and estimated fair values of investments in fixed
maturities and equity securities as of December 31,
2006 and 2005:

Net
Realized
Losses Gain(Loss)

Proceeds Gross Realized

(in thousands) From Sales  Gains

Estimated Gross Unrealized
Fair Value Gains Losses

Amortized
(in thousands) Cost

2006

Sales Available-for-sale
2006 — Available-for-sale  $231,385  $666 $(8,076) $(7,410) US. government $ 8792 § 8541 § 12 § (263
Trading 4,950 17 '] {53) \.S. agencies 465,629 461,831 588  (4,386)
Equities 179,134 41,097 (2,519) 38578 Mtge/ABS/CMO* 109,538 109,272 824 (1,090
2005 ~ Available-forsale  $149,724 $ 2629 ${2.319) § 310 Corporate 237,905 235291 1,645  (4,259)
Trading 1,359 4 (34) (30) States, political
Equities 72374 1879t (2904) 15887 subdivisions &
revenues 418,156 419,636 3,338 (1,858)
2004 — Availabte-for-sale  $108,088 $ 300 $ (252) $ 48 - -
Trading 2.645 126 3) 123 leeFi malun-t.i.es 1,240,020 1,234,571 6,407 (11,856}
Equities 30638 13677 (853) 12,824 Equity securities 201,443 368,195 167,279 (527}
Total
Calls/Matunities available-for-sale  $1,441,463 $1,602,766 $173,686 $(12,383)
2006 — Available-for-sale  $117,204 § 59 § - § 59 -
Held-to-maturty 28,215 92 B g2 Held-to-maturity
Trading 1,083 - - ~ L.S. government $ 6,291 § 6309 $ 21§ (3)
U.5. agencies 18,850 19,415 625 (60)
2005 — Available-for-sale $ 55,578 $§ 263 $ - § 263 States, political
Held-to-maturity 25,363 19 1) 18 subdivisions &
Trading 942 - (2) (2) revenues 81,169 83,006 1,837 -
2004 — Available-for-sale $ 71,814 $ 303 $ (16) § 287 Total
Held-10-maturity 24,080 126 - 126 held-to-maturity  $ 106,310 $ 108730 § 2483 &  (63)
Trading 524 - - - Trading
US.government $ 2438 § 2,399 $ 2% (41)
LS. agencies 4,679 4,630 5 {54)
Mtge/ABS/CMO* 3,015 2,979 3 (39)
Comorate 4,893 4,348 18 (63)
States, political
subdivisions &
revenues 100 104 4 -
Total trading 15,125 14,960 32 (197}
Total $1,562,808 $1,726,456 $176,201 ${12,643)
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of

Amortized  Estimated Gross Unrealized ] o
(in thousands) Cost Fair Value Gains Losses fixed-maturity securities at December 31, 2006, by
2005 contractual maturity, are shown as follows:
Available-for-sate
Amortized Estimated
U.S. governlment $ 9492 % 9324 % 31 %3 (199 (in thousands) Cost Fair Value
U.S. agencies 440,237 435,561 596 (5,272)
Mtge/ABS/CMO* 107,638 106,298 446 {1,786) Available-for-sale
Corporate 210,748 208,760 2,634 {4,622} Due in one year or less $ 3662 $ 3664
States, political Due after one year through five years 251,561 250,469
subdivisions & Due after five years through 10 years 605,338 604,189
revenues 421,293 421,693 3414 (3.014) Due after 10 years 379,459 376,249
Fixed maturities 1,189,408 1,181,636 7,121 (14,893) $1,240,020 $§1.234571
Equity securities 186,417 321,096 135,493 (814) ‘
Hetd-to-maturity
Tota.l Due in one year or less $15,337 $15,441
available-for-sale $1,375,825 $1,502,732 $142,614 $(15,707) Due after one year through five years 61.207 62,566
Held-to-maturity Due after five years through 10 years 29,766 30,723
LS. gavernment $ 10,104 § 10224 § 120 $ - Due after 10 years - -
L.S. agencies 23,770 24,800 1,078 (48) $ 106310 §$ 108.730
States, political
subdivisions & Trading
revenues 100577 103,878 3,301 - Due in one year or less $ - § -
Total Due after one year through five years 5,166 5,119
held-to-matwity  $ 134451 § 138,902 § 4,499 §  (48) Due after five years through 10 years 5,705 5,620
- Due after 10 years 4,254 4,221
Trading
U.3. governmenit $3,523 $3.481 § 10 § (52) $ 15125 § 14,960
LS. agencies 3,370 3,345 24 {49) Total fixed-incame
»
Mtge/ABS/CMO 3,441 3.391 - (50) Due in one year or less $18,999 $19,105
Corporate _ 5031 4,989 17 (59) Due after one year through five years 317,934 318,154
513‘21;‘99"‘““'& Due after five years through 10 years 540809 640,532
subdivisions
evenues 100 106 6 ) Due after 10 years 383,713 380,470
3614 338,
Total trading 15,465 15,312 57 (210) $1,361,455 $1,358.261
Total $1,525,741 $1,656,946 $147,170 $(15.965)

*Martgage-backed, asset-backed & collateralized mortgage obligations
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Expected maturities may differ from ¢ontractual
maturities due to call provisions on some existing
securities and prepayment features on mortgage-
backed, asset-backed, and collateralized mortgage
obligations. At December 31, 20086, the net unrealized
appreciation of available-for-sale fixed maturities and
equity securities totaled $161.3 million. At December
31, 2005, the net unvealized appreciation of available-
for-sale fixed maturities and equity securities totaled
$126.9 million.

The following tables are also used as part of our
impairment analysis and illustrate the total value of
securities that were in an unrealized loss position
as of December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005,
respectively. These tables segregate the securities
based on type, noting the fair value, cost (or amortized
cost), and unrealized loss on each category of




investment as well as in total. The tables further
classify the securities based on the length of time
they have been in an unrealized loss position,

Investment Positions with Unrealized Losses Segmented by Type and
Period of Continuous Unrealized Loss at December 31, 2006

{in thousandsj 0-12 Mos. >12 Mos. Total
U.S. Government
Fair value $ 1850 $ B994 § 10,844
Cost or amortized cost 1,856 9,296 11,152
Unrealized loss {6) (302) {308)
LS. Agency
Fair value $113,858 $147,103 $260,961
Cost or amortized cost 114,245 148,987 263,232
Unrealized loss {387) {1,884} (2,271)
Mtga/ABS/CMO*
Fair value $ 69,800 $129,598 $199,398
Cost or amortized cost 70,108 132,874 202,982
Unrealized loss {308) {3,276) (3,584)
Corporate debt securities
Fair value $ 59,079 § 86,074 $145,153
Cost or amortized cost 59,629 89,620 149,249
Unrealized loss (550) {3.546) (4,096)
States, political subdivisions,
revenues & debt securities
Fair value $117,351 §$ 99,216 $216,567
Cost or amortized cost 117,765 100,659 218,424
Unrealized loss 1414) {1,443) (1,857)
Subtotal, debt securities
Fair value $361,938 $470,985  $832,923
Cost or amortized cost 363,603 481,436 845,039
Unrealized loss (1,665) {10,451) (12,116)
Common stock
Fair value $ 12519 § - $ 12,519
Cost ar amortized cost 13,046 - 13,046
Unrealized loss (527) - (527)
Total
Fair value $374,457 $470,985 $845442
Cost or amortized cost 376,649 481,436 858,085
Unrealized loss (2,192) (10,451} (12,643)

*Mortgage-backed, asset-backed & collateralized mortgage obligations

Investment Positions with Unrealized Losses Segmented by Type and
Period of Continuous Unrealized Loss at December 31, 2005

(in thousands) 0-12 Mos. >12 Mos. Total
U.S. Government
Fair value $ 10062 § - $ 10,062
Cost or amortized cost 10,313 - 10,313
Unrealized lass (251) - (251)
U.S. Agency
Fair value $338,930 § 35118 $374,048
Cost or amortized cost 343,141 36,278 379,419
Unrealized loss (4,211) (1,160) (5.371)
Mtge/ABS/CMO*
Fair value $ 84283 % 2852 § 87135
Cost or amortized cost 86,104 2,866 88,970
Unrealized loss (1.821) (14) {1,835)
Corporate debt securities
Fair value $103,121 $ 42,269  $145,390
Cost or amortized cost 105,798 44271 150,069
Unrealized loss (2.677) {2,002) (4,679)
States, political subdivisions,
revenues & debt securities
Fair value $210,089 $ 17,904 $227,993
Cost or amertized cost 212,673 18,335 231,008
Unrealized loss (2.584) (431) (3.015)
Subtotal, debt securities
Fair value $746,485 § 98,143  $844.628
Cost or amartized cost 758,029 101,750 859,779
Unrealized loss (11,544} {3,607} (15,151}
Common stock
Fair value $ 13.019 § - $ 13,019
Cost or amortized cost 13.833 - 13,833
Unrealized oss (814) - (814)
Total
Fair value $759.504 $ 98,143  $857,647
Cost or amontized cost 771,862 101,750 873,612
Unrealized loss (12,358) (3,607) (15,965)

*Mortgage-backed, asset-backed & collateralized morigage obiigations

As of December 31, 2006, we held seven common
stocks that were in unrealized loss positions. The total
unrealized loss on these securities was $0.5 million.
All of these securities have been in an unrealized loss
position for less than nine months. The fixed income
portfolio contained 412 securities at a loss as of
December 31, 2006. Of these 412 securities, 248
have been in an unrealized loss position for more
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than 12 consecutive months and these collectively
represent $10.5 million in unrealized losses. The fixed
income unrealized losses can primarily be attributed
to an increase in intermediate and long-term interest
rates since the purchase of many of these fixed
income securities. We continually monitor the credit
quality of our fixed income investments to gauge our
ability to be repaid principal and interest. We consider
price declines of securities in our other-than-temporary
impairment analysis where such price declines provide
evidence of declining credit quality, and we distinguish
between price changes caused by credit deterjoration,
as opposed to rising interest rates.

Factors that we consider in the evaluation of credit
quality include:

1. Credit ratings from major rating agencies,
including Moody's and Standard & Poor's,

2. Business and operating performance trends,

3. Management quality/turnover,

4, Industry competitive analysis, and

5. Changes in business model/strategy.

As of December 31, 2006, we held no equity
or fixed income securities that individually had an
unrealized loss greater than 12 percent. Based
on our evaluation of equity securities held within
specific industry sectors, as well as the duration
and magnitude of unrealized losses in our equity
and bond portfolios, we do not believe any securities
suffered an other-than-temporary decline in value as
of December 31, 2006.

At December 31, 2006, we were party to a
securities lending program whereby fixed-income
securities are loaned to third parties, primarily
major brokerage firms. At December 31, 2006, fixed
maturities with a fair value of $46.8 million were
loaned. Agreements with custedian banks facilitating
such lending generally require 102 percent of the
value of the loaned securities to be separately
maintained as collateral for each loan. Pursuant to
SFAS 140, an invested asset and a corresponding
liability have been recognized for the cash collaterat
amount. To further minimize the credit risks related
to this lending program, we monitor the financial
condition of other parties to these agreements.

As required by law, certain fixed maturities and
short-term investments amounting to $18.8 million at
December 31, 2006, were on deposit with either
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regulatory authorities or banks. Additionally, we have
certain fixed maturities held in trust amounting to
$15.0 million at December 31, 2006. These funds
cover net premiums, losses, and expenses related to
a property and casualty insurance program.

3. POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS

Policy acquisition costs deferred and amortized
to income for the years ended December 31 are
summarized as follows:

(in thousands) 2006 2005 2004

Deferred policy acquisition costs,
beginning of year

$ 69,477 § 67,146 § 63,737

Deferred:
Direct commissigns 126,270 120996 120,323
Premium taxes 6,483 7572 8,460
Other direct underwriting expenses 54,946 50,312 43,154
Ceding commissions (41,520} (44,126) (36,881}
Net deferred 146,179 134,754 135,056
Amortized 141,839 132,423 131647

Deferred policy acquisition costs,

end of year $ 73,817 § 69477 % 67,148

Policy acquisition costs:

Amortized t0 expense 141,839 132,423 131,647
Period costs:

Ceding commission - contingent {3,049) (5,698) {5,368)

Cther 6,986 9,333 8,316

Total policy acquisition costs ~ $145,776 $136,058 $134,595

4, DEBT

As of December 31, 20086, outstanding debt
balances totaled $100.0 million, consisting only of
long-term senior notes. These notes are rated Baa2 by
Moody's and BBB+ by Standard & Poor's.

On December 12, 2003, we completed a public
debt offering, issuing $100.0 million in senior notes
maturing January 15, 2014, and paying interest
semi-annually at the rate of 5.95 percent. The notes
were issued at a discount resulting in proceeds, net
of discount and commission, of $98.9 million. The
amount of the discount is being charged to income
over the life of the debt on an effective-yield basis.
Of the proceeds, capital contributions were made
in 2003 and 2004 to our insurance subsidiaries to
increase their statutory surplus in the amounts of
$50.0 miltion and $15.0 million, respectively. The




balance of the proceeds was used by the holding
company to fund investment and operating activities.

We paid off all short-term debt previously held
through reverse repurchase transactions at the insur-
ance subsidiaries, leaving us with no short-term debt
as of December 31, 2006, compared to December
31, 2005, short-term debt balances of $15.5
million. The pool of securities underlying the reverse
repurchase transactions consists of U.S. government
and agency securities. With no outstanding reverse
repurchase transactions at December 31, 2006, there
was no carrying value of securities associated with
such transactions, compared with a December 31,
2005, carrying value of $15.2 million. The use and
repayment of such agreements rermnains an investment
decision, based on whether the allocation of available
cash flow to purchase debt securities generates a
greater amount of investment income than would be
paid in interest expense.

We maintain revolving lines of credit with two finan-
cial institutions, each of which permits us to borrow
up to an aggregate principal amount of $10.0 million.
Under certain conditions, each of the lines may be in-
creased up to an aggregate principal amount of $20.0
million. These facilities have three-year terms that ex-
pire on May 31, 2008. As of December 31, 2006, no
amounts were outstanding on these facilities.

We incurred interest expense on debt at the follow-
ing average interest rates for 2006, 2005, and 2004:

2006 2005 2004

n addition, there are guota share, excess of loss and
catastrophe reinsurance contracts that protect against
losses over stipulated amounts arising from any one
occurrence or event. The arrangements allow us to
pursue greater diversification of business and serve to
limit the maximum net loss on catastrophes and large
risks.

Through the purchase of reinsurance, we generally
limit our net loss on any individual risk to a maximum
of $2.0 million, although retentions can range from
$0.5 million to $7.0 million. Additionally, through
extensive use of computer-assisted modeling
techniques, we monitor the concentration of risks
exposed to catastrophic events,

Premiums written and earned along with losses
and settlement expenses incurred for the years ended
December 31 are summarized as follows:

(in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Written
Direct $794,093 $ 748852 $745227
Reinsurance assumed 4,920 7,160 7.361
Reinsurance ceded (247,477) (261,447) (241376)
Net $551,536 $494,5656 $511,212
Earned
Direct $ 788,904 $731,483 §$ 744,596
Reinsurance assumed 5,982 7,629 8,305
Reinsurance ceded (264,548) (247,805) (241,553)
Net $$530,338  $491,307 $511348

Losses and settlementy
expenses incurred

Line of credit - - - Direct $381,661 $506,434 $486,978
Reverse repurchase agreements 4.97% 3.00% 1.62% Reinsurance assumed 8,956 7,277 4,273
Total short-term debt 5.34% 3.17% 1.79% Reinsurance ceded (133,728) (262,541) (185,120)
Senior notes 6.02% 6.02% 6.02% Net $ 256889 $251170 306,131
Total debt 5.95% 5.27% 4.66%

Interest paid on outstahding debt for 2006, 2005,
and 2004 amounted to $6.6 million, $7.2 million, and
$4.0 million respectively.

5. REINSURANCE

In the ordinary course of business, the insurance
subsidiaries assume and cede premiums with
other insurance companies. A large portion of the
reinsurance is put into effect under contracts known
as treaties and, in some instances, by negotiation on
each individual risk {known as facultative reinsurance).

At December 31, 2008, we had prepaid reinsur-
ance premiums and reinsurance recoverables on
paid and unpaid losses and settlement expenses
totaling $586.4 million. More than 94 percent of our
reinsurance recoverables are due from companies
rated “A-" or better by A.M. Best and S&P rating
services,

The following table displays net reinsurance
balances recoverable, including collateral, from our
top ten reinsurers, as of December 31, 2006. All other
reinsurance balances recoverable, when considered

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |39




by individual reinsurer, are less than 2 percent of
shareholders™ equity.

Reinsurer Amounts A.M Best S&P
{amounts in thousands) Recoverable Rating Rating
Munich Re America $136,069 A, Exceltent A-, Good
General Rein Corp 55,704 A+, AAA,
Superior Superior
Swiss Reinsurance 44,693 A+, Superior AA-,
Excellent
Berkley Insurance Company 36,397 A Excellent A+ Good
Lgyds of London 32,525 A, Excellent A, Good
Endurance Reinsurance Corp. 30,275  A-, Excellent A, Goed
Toa-Re 30.014 A Excellent A+,
Excellent
Emp!oyers Reinsurance Corp. 25,473 A+ Superior AA-, Good
Everest Reinsurance 24,870 A+, Superior AA-,
Excellent
Liberty Mutual Insurance 20,780 A, Excellent A, Good

6. HISTORICAL LOSS AND LAE DEVELOPMENT

The table which follows is a reconciliation of our
unpaid losses and settlement expenses {LAE) for the
years 2006, 2005, and 2004.

{in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Unpaid losses and LAE
at beginning of year:
Gross $1,331,866 $1,132,599 § 903,441
Ceded (593,209) (464,180) (372,048)
Net $ 738657 $ 668419 $ 531,393

Increase {decrease) in incurred
losses and LAE:

Current accident year 300,292 313,643 316,948

Prior accident years (43,403) (62,473) (10,817)

Total incurred $ 256,889 ¢ 251,170 $ 306,131

Loss and LAE payments for
claims ingurred:

Current accident year (47,994) (43,062) (39,206)
Prior accident year (154,446) (137.870) (129,899)
Total paid {202,440) $ (180.932) § (169,105}
Net unpaid losses and LAE
at end of year $ 793,106 738,657 668,419
Unpaid losses and LAE
at end of year:
Gross 1,318,777 1,331,866 1,132,599
Ceded (525,671) (593,209} (464,180)
Net $ 793,106 $ 738,657 % 668,419
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The deviations from our initial reserve estimates
appeared as changes in our ultimate loss estimates
as we updated those estimates through our reserve
analysis process. The recognition of the changes in
initial reserve estimates occurred over time as claims
were reported, initial case reserves were established,
initial reserves were reviewed in light of additional
information, and ultimate payments were made on the
collective set of claims incurred as of that evaluation
date. The new information on the ultimate settlement
value of claims is therefore continually updated and
revised as this process takes place until all claims
in a defined set of claims are settled. As a relatively
small insurer, our experience will ordinarily exhibit
fluctuations from period to period. While we attempt
to identify and react to systematic changes in the loss
environment, we also must consider the volume of
experience directly available to us, and interpret any
particular period’s indications with a realistic technical
understanding of the reliability of those observations.

The table below summarizes our prior accident
years' loss reserve development by segment for 2006,
2005, and 2004:

(Favorable)/Unfavorabte reserve development by segment

(in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Casualty $(40,030)  $(57,505) $(11.813)
Property (1,784) {7,581} (5.137)
Surety (1,589) 2,613 65,133
Total $(43,403) $(62,473) $(10,817)

A discussion of significant components of reserve
development for the three mast recent calendar years
follows:

2006. During 2006, we continued to experience
favorable loss development and a reduction in its
prior years' loss reserve estimates. Pricing increased
substantially and policy terms and conditions became
more favorable for most of our products during the
2001-2004 policy years. Many of the improvements
in market conditions were difficult to quantify at the
time of the original estimate. Our significant growth in
premium and exposures made precise quantification
of these changes even more challenging. In 2008,
losses continued to emerge on the prior accident
years much more favorably than the company
expected when making its original estimates. We




experienced favorable development of $43.4 in
aggregate on prior years' estimates.

Of this decrease to prior years’ loss reserve
estimates, approximately $40.0 million occurred in
the casualty segment. The development is primarily
from our general liability, executive products liability,
and Texas employer's indemnity products. In our
general liability product we experienced $25.4 million
of favorable devetopment. Most of this development
came from the 2004 and 2005 accident years. As
part of our normal reserving process, we reviewed the
expected loss ratios used in several of its reserving
methods. This review confirmed the favorable
emergence from 2002-2005 accident years. As a
result of this study, the expected loss ratios were
reduced for 2004-2006 with the most significant
change occurring to the 2005 accident year.
Approximately $15.4 million of the favorable general
liability development can be attributed to this update
in expected l0ss ratios. The remaining portion of the
decrease in prior year's loss reserve estimate was the
result of the continued favorable loss emergence and
the natural progression of shifting more weight to our
incurred and paid development methods as accident
years get older. In our executive products liability
business, we experienced $7.4 million of favorable
development. Most of this change can be attributed
to accident years 2001, 2003, and 2004. The
estimates improved as a result of lower than expected
loss severity in those accident years. For our Texas
employer's indemnity product, we experienced $5.7
million of favorable development. We experienced
significantly less loss emergence than expected for
accident years prior to 2003 and benefited from
favorable settlements on several claims in accident
years 2001-2003.

Overall, our property and surety segments
experienced relatively small changes in prior years’
estimates of reserves. However, we experienced $4.2
million of favorable development from 2004 and 2005
hurricane estimates. We also saw $7.2 million of
unfavorable development on our construction product
that is in runoff. Most of this development came
from accident years 2002-2005. The construction
emergence pattern revealed itself to be longer than
originally anticipated and has not behaved consistent
with reporting patterns expected from a

property segment. We do not anticipate any further
deterioration in our estimates.

2005. During 2005, we experienced an aggregate
of $62.5 million of favorable development. Of this
total, approximately $57.5 miltion of this reserve
development occurred in the casualty segment. It
was primarily from accident years 2002, 2003, and
2004 for our general liability, specialty programs,
and transportation products. Pricing and policy terms
and ¢onditions rapidly became more favorable for
most of our products beginning in 2002. Many of
the improvements in market conditions were difficult
to quantify at the time of our original estimate. Our
significant growth in premium and exposures over
this same time period made precise guantification
of these changes more challenging because of the
resulting mix changes, new exposures underwritten
for the first time, and uncertainty in whether the new
exposures would have similar emergence patterns as
those reflected in our historical data. We appropriately
reflected these significant risks in our 2002-2004
initial carried reserves for this business. During
2005, we regularly observed emergence of losses
lower than expected for these accident years as the
anticipated risks failed to materialize. This resulted
in a re-evaluation and corresponding reduction in
expected loss ratios used in the loss reserving
analysis for these products. The lower than expected
emergence, lower expected |oss ratios, and the
natural progression of increased weighting on the
incurred and paid development actuarial methods
caused the reserve estimate to decrease. In response
to the reduction in reserve estimates, we released
$36.8 million, $11.6 milfion, and $6.3 million of IBNR
loss and LAE reserves to general liability, specialty
programs, and transportation, respectively. The
release for these products was consistent with our
loss reserving processes. These releases comprise
a majority of the favorable development within our
casualty segment.

The property segment also experienced $7.6
million of favorable development. A portion of this
positive development is due to the claims department
reassessing and decreasing the estimated ultimate
level of l0ss payments for the 2004 hurricanes.
Overall, the surety segment experienced $2.6 million
in adverse development. Reserve additions on
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surety products for the 2002 accident year exceeded
favorable experience on surety products for accident
years prior to 2002.

2004. During 2004, we experienced an aggregate
of $10.8 million of favorable development. Of
this total, approximately $5.1 million of favorable
development occurred in the property segment.
Approximately half of the favorable development
within our property segment was due to a favorable
settlement of an outstanding claim from the
Northridge. California earthquake of 1994, The
remainder relates primarily to favorable development
on losses that occurred during 2003.

In 2004 the cumulative experience attributable to
many of our casualty products for mature accident
years was materially lower than the IBNR reserves
originally booked. Due to the low emergence of loss
and LAE, we released $9.7 million of IBNR reserves
during the fourth quarter of 2004, which accounted for
the majority of the favorable development within our
casualty segment. While we had been experiencing
robust price improvements in this segment for several
years, we also produced significant new business
with new exposures. Qur reserving evaluation process
requires adequate time periods to elapse to assess
the impact of such changes in marketplace conditions
on our book of casualty business.

The surety segment experienced $6.1 million in
adverse development, A portion of this development
comes from contract bond products, where we
increased IBNR reserves on bonds primarily written
before 2003. Additionally, we experienced adverse
development on reserves for other surety products,
primarily related to the 2002 accident year.

ENVIRONMENTAL, ASBESTOS. AND MASS TORT
EXPOSURES

We are subject to environmental site cleanup,
asbestos removal, and mass tort claims and
exposures through our commercial umbrella, general
liability, and discontinued assumed reinsurance
lines of business. The majority of the exposure is in
the excess layers of our commercial umbrella and
assumed reinsurance books of business.
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The following table represents inception-to-date
paid and unpaid erwironmental claims data {including
incurred but not reported losses) as of December 31,
20086, 2005, and 2004

{in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Loss and LAE payments
Gross $ 53,323 $46,685 $44,360
Ceded (29,853) (26,888) (25.,590)
Net $23.470 $19.797 $18,770
Unpaid losses and LAE at end of year
Gross $ 48,541 $47,391 $43.716
Ceded (25,720} (30,950) (28,998)
Net $22.821 $16441 $14.718

Our environmental, asbestos, and mass tort
exposure is limited, relative 1o that of other insurers,
as a result of entering the affected liability lines
after the insurance industry had already recognized
environmental and asbestos exposure as a problem
and adopted appropriate coverage exclusions. During
2006, we reviewed our reserves for these exposures
relative to industry benchmarks and re-evaluated
its emergence patterns. As a result, net reserves
for these exposures were increased $6.4 million.
Other significant activity during 2006 was payment
for the settlement of a iarge claim associated with a
Superfund site. The claim arose out of commercial
umbrella business written in the early 1980s. Gross
payments of $4.0 million and net payments of $2.1
million for this claim caused the majority of the 2006
increase, reflected in the table above. This claim
had no effect on 2006 incurred losses, however,
because an adequate case reserve estimate had been
established for it in 2004.

While our environmental exposure is limited,
the ultimate liability for this exposure is difficult to
assess because of the extensive and complicaied
litigation involved in the settlement of claims and
evolving legislation on such issues as joint and
several liability, retroactive liability, and standards of
cleanup. Additionally, we participate primarily in the
excess layers of coverage, where accurate estimates
of ultimate loss are more difficult to derive than for
primary coverage.




7. INCOME TAXES

The tax effects of temporary differences that give
rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabiiities are summarized as follows:

(in thousands) 2006 2005

Deferred tax assets:

Tax discounting of claim reserves $38294 §35591
Unearned premium offset 20,315 18,831
Other 7,937 5,843
66,546 60,265
Less valuation allowance - -
Total deferred tax assets $ 66,546 $60,265
Deferred tax liabilities:
Net unrealized appreciation of secuiities $57.017 §44.856
Deferred policy acquisition costs 25,837 24,318
Book/1ax depreciation 2,289 2,217
Undistributed earnings of
unconsolidated investee 8,043 11,108
Other 429 483
Total deferred tax liabilities 93,615 82,982

Net deferred tax liability $(27,069) $(22,7117)

We believe that our deferred tax assets will be fully
realized through deductions against future taxable
income.

Income tax expense attributable to income from
operations for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005, and 2004, differed from the amounts computed
by applying the U.S. federal tax rate of 35 percent
to pretax income from continuing operations as
demonstrated in the following table:

{in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Provision for income taxes at

the statutory federal tax rates $65,413 850,357 §35,120
Increase (reduction) in taxes

resulting from:

Dividends received deduction (1,858) (1,705) (1,637)

ESOP dividends paid deduction (469) {439) (370)

Tax-exempt interest income (5,885) (5,980) (5,175)
Resolution of tax contingency {3,171} - -
Goodwill - - 291
Other items, net {1,776) (5,491} (923)
Total $52,254 $36,742 $27,306

Our net earnings include equity in earnings of
unconsolidated investees. These investees (Maui Jim

and TBW) do not have a pattern of paying dividends.
As a result, we record a deferred tax liability on these
earnings at the corporate capital gains rate of 35
percent. In January 2007, the beard of directors of
Maui Jim declared a dividend that will be payable

in the first quarter of 2007. Our share of the cash
dividend will be $5.9 million. As required by SFAS
108, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” in 2006 we
recoghized a $1.7 million tax benefit from applying
the fower tax rate applicable to affiliated dividends
as compared to the corporate capital gains rate on
which the deferred tax liabilities were based. This
benefit is included in the other items, net caption in
the previous table. A dividend was also paid in 2006
by Maui Jim in the amount of $16.5 million and a $4.6
million tax benefit was recorded in 2005 from applying
the lower tax rates. Although a dividend has been
received for two straight years, we do not anticipate
the payment of dividends to continue. On December
28, 2006, we sold our equity investment in TBW. This
resulted in a realized capital gain of $16.2 million
with a corresponding current tax expense of $5.7
million and the current recognition of tax expense of
$5.5 million from the previcusly deferred tax expense
on undistributed earnings of this unconsolidated
investee. Additionally, results for 2006 inciude a
favorable resolution of a recent tax examination.
During the second quarter of 2006, the Internal
Revenue Service {IRS) concluded an examination of
our tax years 2000 through 2004. As a result of this
exam, we recorded a $3.2 million tax benefit, resulting
from a change in tax estimate related to the sale of
assets. Although the IRS is not currently examining
any of our income tax returns, tax years 2005 and
2006 remain open and are subject to examination.

We have recorded our deferred tax assets and
liabilities using the statutory federal tax rate of 35
percent. We believe it is more likely than not that the
results of future operations will generate sufficient
taxable income to realize the deferred tax asset.

In addition, we believe when these deferred items
reverse in future years, our taxable income will be
taxed at an effective rate of 35 percent.

Net federal and state income taxes paid in 20086,
2005, and 2004 amounted to $53.1 million, $47.7
million, and $27.8 million, respectively.

Buring the fourth quarter of 2005, we repatriated a
$4.0 million dividend from our foreign subsidiary, RLI
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Insurance, Ltd., which qualified for the special 85%
dividends received deduction passed in The American
Jobs Creation Act of 2004. This allowed a $1.3 million
deferred tax liability t0 be reversed because the
dividend fully repatriated all foreign earnings. The tax
benefit associated with the repatriation is included in
the other items, net caption in the previous table.

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

PENSION PLAN

Through 2006, we maintained a noncontributory
defined benefit pension plan covering employees
meeting age and service requirements. The plan
provided a benefit based on a participant’s service
and the highest five consecutive years’ average
compensation out of the last 10 years. During
2006, 2005, and 2004, we made tax-deductible
contributions totaiing $1.8 million, $1.8 million, and
$0.5 million, respectively, to adequately meet the
funding requirements of the plan.

We have made various amendments to the plan in
order to comply with certain tnternal Revenue Code
changes.

Additionally, on December 31, 2003, our pensian
plan was amended to freeze benefit service as of
March 1, 2004. As a result, we expensed the entire
unrecognized prior service cost as of December 31,
2003, The plan was also closed to new participants
after December 31, 2003.

However, effective December 31, 2005, the plan
was further amended such that all participants’ ben-
efits were frozen and future pay would not alter a par-
ticipant's accrued benefit. In 2005, we also shortened
the amortization period of the plan’s unrecognized
gain/loss, to fully amortize it over the next two years.

The plan was terminated in 2006. All participants
either elected and were paid lump sum amounts or
had an insurance contract for their benefit purchased
on their behalf during 2006. At the close of 2006,
$561,186 remains in the trust, of which $559,618
was due to pension checks not cashed, and the re-
maining $1,568 is the net assets remaining in the
trust.
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The financial status of the plan for each of the
two years ended December 31 is illustrated in the
following table:

{in thousands) 2006 2005

Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at January 1 $11365 $13,781

Service cost - -

interest cost 583 757
Net actuarial loss/{gain) 1,638 1,669
Benefits paid (14,420) (1,457)
Curtailment cost'" - (3.3853)
Settlernent cost® 934 -

Benefit obligation at December 31 - $11,365

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at January 1 $11,514 $10,729

Actual return on plan assets 1,089 417

Employer contributions 1,809 1,825

Benefits paid (14,420) (1,457)
Fair value of plan assets at December 31 $ 2 $11,514

M At Decemper 31, 2005 all future pian benefits were frozen which
results in a curtailment.

@ In December 2006 all plan benefits were paid which resulted in a
settlement.

The components of benefit cost for each of the
three years ended December 31 is illustrated in the
following table:

(in thousands) 2006 2005 2004
Service cost $ - 5 - $ -
Interest cost 583 57 717
Expected (return) on assets (481) (460) (698)
Amortization of prior service cost - - -
Amortization of losses/ (gains) 1603 1,780 732
Amartization of transitional

obligation/(asset) - - (7}

Net periodic benefit cost $1,705 $2,057 $744

FAS 88 eventsH 934 399 -

Total pension ¢ost/{income) for year $2,639 $2,456 §744

i1t The pension plan had benefit payments in excess of the sum of service
cost and interest cost. This resulted in a recognition of settlement
expense in 2005,

2+ |n December 2006 all plan benefits were paid which resulted in a
settlement,




The reconciliation of {accrued)/prepaid benefit
cost for each of the two years ended December 31 is
illustrated in the following table:

The change in net actuarial loss/(gain) for each of
the two years ended December 31 is illustrated below:

Change in net actuarial loss/gain

Reconciliation of (accrued)/prepaid (in thousands) 2006 2005
benefit cost (in thousands) 2006 2005 Net actuarial loss/{gain) at end of prior year $684 $ 4,515
{Accrued)/prepaid benefit cost {befere Amortization credit/{cost) for year $(1,603) {1,760)
adjustment} at beginning of year § 832 $1.463 Liability loss/(gain) 1,538 1,669
Net periodic benefit (cost)/income for fiscal year  (1,7058)  (2,057) Asset loss/(gain) {619) 44
Cost of SFAS 88 events (934) (399) Recognition of curtailment (gain)/l0ss - {3,385)
Employer contributions 1,809 1,825 Recognition of settlement (gain)/loss - (399)
Benefits paid directly by company - - Other adjustments - -
Other adjustment - - Net actuarial loss/(gain) at year end $ - § 684
Amount recognized in accumulated
other comprehensive income - - . o
NeLbal P . The change in amortization expected to be
ance sheet {fia a .
ateen: of year (liabilty)/asse $ 2 $ 8w recognized for each of the two years ended December

The funded status of the plan for each of the two
years ended December 21 is illustrated below:

Development of funded status
(in thousands) 2006 2005

Actuarial value of benefit abligations

31 is illustrated below:

Amortizations expected to be recognized

during next fiscal year (in thousands}) 2006 2005
Amortization of net transition cbligation/{asset) $ - $ -
Amortization of prior service cost/(credit) $ - $ -
Amortization of net losses/{gains) $ - $(1,760)

measurement date 12/31/2006 12/31/2005 Actuarial assumptions, plan assets, contribution
Accumulated t’f‘*“eft':l "b"ga;“" $ - §11.365 and benefit payment information, and additional
Projected benefit obligation/accumulated . .
postretirement henefit obligation } 11.365 information of the plgn for each of the two plan years
ended December 31 is illustrated below.
Funded Status
Projected benefit obligation/accumulated -
postretirement benefit obligation - 11,365 Actuarial assumptions 2006 2005
Plan assets at fair value 2 11,514 Weighted-average assumptions used to
Employer contribution after measurement determine benefit obligations at year end
date, before year end - - Discount rate N/A 4.75%
Directly paid benefits after measurement Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A
date, before year end - - Social Secuiity increase N/A N/A
Net balance sheet (liability)/asset $ 2 $ 148 Pension increases for participants
in-payment status N/A N/A
Information for plans with PBO/APBO Weighted-average assumptions used to
less than plan assets (in thousands) 2006 2005 determine net periodic benefit cost for year
- ——— Discount rate 4,75% 5.75%
Projected benefit obligation/accumulated Expected long-term return on pan assels 475%  4.75%
: postre|Urement bz;,‘nem'obll.gatson - $11,365 Rate of compensation increase /A N/A
ccumul gted benefit oblugagon{accumulated Social Security increase N/A N/A
postretirement benefit obligation - $11,365 — —
Fair value of o1 s % 2 $11514 Pension increases for participants
AlTvalue of plan asse . in-payment status N/A N/A

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |45




Plan assets 2006 2005
Allocation of assets at year end
Equity securities 0.00% 87.00%
Debt securities 0.00% 0.00%
Real estate 0.00% 0.00%
Other 100.00%  13.00%
Total 100.00% 100.00%
Company contributions (in thousands) 2006 2005
Company contributions for the year ending:
December 31, 2005 0 $1.825
December 31, 2006 $1,809 N/A
December 31, 2007 (estimated) N/A N/A
Actual benefit payments for the year ending:
December 31, 2005 0 $1.457
December 31, 2006 $14,420 0
Additional information
Balance sheet entries under prior rules
(in thousands} 2006 2005
Statement of financial position prior to
deferred tax adjustments:
(Accrued)/prepaid as of end of year $ 2 N/A
Additional minimum liability - N/A
Intangible asset - N/A
Accumulated other comprehensive
income using prior rules - N/A
Accumulated other comprehensive
income using new rules - N/A

In September 2008, the FASB published SFAS
158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans.” This
statement requires an employer to recognize the
overfunded or underfunded status of a defined
benefit postretirement plan as an asset or liability in
its statement of financial position and to recognize
changes in that funded status in the year in which the
changes occur through comprehensive income. This
statement also requires an employer to measure the
funded status of a plan as of the date of its year-end
statement of financial position. As previously stated,
the plan was terminated in 2006. As a result, the
implementation of SFAS 158 had no impact on our
financial statements.
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EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP, 401K AND
BONUS AND INCENTIVE PLANS

We maintain an Employee Stock Ownership
Plan (ESOP), 401k, and bonus and incentive plans
covering executives, managers, and associates. At the
board's discretion, funding of these plans is primarily
dependent upon reaching predetermined tevels of
operating return on equity and Market Value Potential
(MVP). While some management incentive plans may
be affected somewhat by other performance factors,
the larger influence of corporate performance ensures
that the interests of our executives, managers, and
associates correspond with those of our shareholders.

In January 2004, we made certain changes to
our employee benefit plans. We froze our pension
plan, modified our ESOP plan, and began offering a
401k plan. The 401k plan has eligibility rules similar
to those in place for our ESOP, allows voluntary
contributions by employees, and permits ESOP
diversification transfers for employees meeting
certain age and service requirements, We provide
a basic 401k contribution of 3 percent of eligible
compensation. Participants are 100 percent vested in
both voluntary and basic contributions. Additionally,
an annual discretionary profit-sharing contribution
may be made to the ESOP and 401k, subject to the
achievement of certain overall financial goals. For plan
years prior to 2007, profit-sharing contributions were
subject to a five-year cliff vest. Beginning in 2007,
contributions will vest after three years of service.

Our ESGP and 401k cover substantially all
employees meeting eligibility requirements. ESOP
and 401k contributions are determined annually by
our board of directors and are expensed in the year
earned. ESOP and 401k-related expenses were $7.9
million, $7.7 million, and $6.4 million, respectively, for
20086, 2005, and 2004.

During 20086, the ESOP purchased 94,430 shares
of RL! stock on the open market at an average price of
$54.19 ($5.1 million) relating to 2005's contribution.
Shares held by the ESOP as of December 31, 2006,
totaled 1,716,446, and are treated as outstanding in
computing our earnings per share. During 2005, the
ESCP purchased 95,762 shares on the open market
at an average price of $44.55 ($4.3 million) relating
to 2004's contribution. During 2004, the ESOP
purchased 131,700 shares on the open market at




an average price of $40.57 {$5.3 million) relating to
2003's contribution.

A portion of both MVP and operating earnings is
shared by executives, managers, and associates
provided certain thresholds are met. MVP, in
particular, requires that we generate a return in excess
of our cost of capital before the payment of such
bonuses. Annual expenses for these bonus plans
totaled $15.1 million, $9.2 million, and $6.8 million
for 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

DEFERRED COMPENSATION

We maintain Rabbi Trusts for deferred
compensation plans for directors, key employees,
and executive officers through which our shares
are purchased. The Emerging Issues Task Force
consensus on Issue 97-14 governs the accounting
for Rabbi Trusts. This issue prescribed an accounting
treatment whereby the employer stock in the plan is
classified and accounted for as equity, in a manner
consistent with the accounting for treasury stock. The
deferred compensation obligaticn is classified as an
equity instrument.

The expense associated with funding these plans is
recognized through salary, bonus, and ESOP expenses
for key employees and executive officers. The expense
recognized from the directors’ deferred plan was $0.4
million, $0.3 million, and $0.4 million in 2006, 2005,
and 2004, respectively.

In 2008, the trusts purchased 13,913 shares of
our common stock on the open market at an average
price of $51.681 ($0.7 miflion). In 2005, the trusts
purchased 23,744 shares of common stock on the
open market at an average price of $44.83 ($1.1
million). In 2004, the trusts purchased 20,421 shares
of common stock on the open market at an average
price of $39.05 {$0.8 million). At December 31, 2006,
the trusts’ assets were valued at $24.4 million.

STOCK OPTION AND STOCK PLANS

During 1995, we adopted and the shareholders
approved a tax-favored incentive stock option plan
(the incentive plan). During 1997, the shareholders
approved the Outside Directors’ Stock Option Plan (the
directors’ plan). Normal vesting for options granted
was pro rata over five years under the incentive plan
and pro rata over three years under the directors’ plan
with a 10-year life for both plans. The plans

provided for grants of up to 3,125,000 shares under
the incentive plan and 500,000 shares under the
directors' plan. Through May 5, 2005, we had granted
2,640,188 options under these plans.

During 2005, our shareholders approved the
RLI Corp. Omnibus Stock Plan (omnibus plan). In
conjunction with the adoption of this plan, effective
May 5, 2005, options will no longer be granted under
the two other option plans previously in existence.
The purpose of the omnibus plan is to promote the
interests of our shareholders by providing our key
personnel an opportunity to acquire a proprietary
interest in the company and reward them for
achieving a high level of corporate performance and
to encourage our continued success and growth.
Awards under the omnibus plan may be in the form
of restricted stock, stock options {both incentive and
nonqualified), stock appreciation rights, performance
units, as well as other stock based awards. Eligibility
under the omnibus plan is limited to our employees or
employees of any affiliate and to individuals or entities
who are not employees but who provide services to
us or an affiliate, including services provided in the
capacity of consultant, advisor or director. The granting
of awards is solely at the discretion of the executive
resources committee and the nominating/corporate
governance committee of our board of directors. The
total number of shares of common stock available for
distribution under the omnibus p!an may not exceed
1,500,000 shares (subject to adjustment for changes
in cur capitalization). In 2005, we granted 233,500
stock options under this plan. In 2008, we granted
206,300 stock options under this plan.

Under the omnibus plan, we grant to officers,
directors, and other employees stock options for
shares with an exercise price equal to the fair value of
the shares at the date of grant. Options generally vest
and become exercisable ratably over a five-year period
and have a 10-year life. The related compensation
expense is recognized over the requisite service
period. In most instances, the requisite service period
and vesting period will be the same. For participants
who are retirement eligible, defined by the plan as
those individuals whose age and years of service
equals 75, the requisite service period is deemed
to be met and options are immediately expensed on
the date of grant. For participants who will become
retirement eligible during the vesting period, the
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requisite service period over which expense is
recognized is the period between the grant date and
the attainment of retirement eligibility. Shares issued
upon option exercise are newly issued shares.

During 2005, our board of directors adopted
resolutions authorizing the accelerated vesting of
existing unvested stock options, including directors’
stock options. These resolutions were effective
May 5, 2005, for all options issued prior to this
date and December 30, 2005, for options issued
in 2005 subsequent to May 5, 2005. Acceleration
was applicable to substantially all unvested options
and contains certain share transfer restrictions.
These madifications, which occurred prior to the
effective date of SFAS 123R, effectively removed
these options from expense consideration under
SFAS 123R. Under APB 25, compensation expense
recorded for accelerated vesting was measured by
applying two criteria: (1) the difference between the
market price and the option exercise price on the date
of acceleration and (2} the number of options that
would have been forfeited as unexercisable (unvested)
had acceleration not occurred. Using the guidance
set forth in APB 25 and related interpretations,
we recorded $0.8 million of pre-tax compensation
expense during 2005. This expense represented our
best estimate of the total expense associated with
acceleration.

The following tables summarize option activity in
2008, 2005, and 2004:

Weighted
Weighted  Average Aggregate
Number of Average  Remaining Intrinsic
Options Exercise  Contractual Value

Outstanding Price Life {in 000's}

Outstanding options

at January 1, 2006 1,931,627 $26.53
Qptions granted 206,300 $50.31
Options exercised (459,828) $18.98 $15,997
Qptions cancetled/

forfeited (46,080) $39.48
Qutstanding options at

December 31, 2006 1,632,019 $31.30 575 $41,015
Exercisable options at

December 31, 2006 1,429,219 $28.59 523 $39,770
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Weighted
Weighted  Average Aggregate
Number of Average  Remaining Intrinsic
Options Exercise  Contractual Value

Outstanding Price Life {in 000's)
Outstanding eptions
at January 1, 2005 2,008,632 $22.78
Options granted 238,300 $44.64
Options exercised (340,099) $15.83 $10,068
Options cancelled/
forfeited (25,206) $35.98
Qutstanding options at
December 31, 2005 1,931,627 $26.53 505  $45085
Exercisable options at
December 31, 2005 1,924,787 $26.50 504  $44931
Weighted
Weighted  Average Aggregate

Numberof  Average  Remaining  Intrinsic
Options Exercise  Contractual Value

Qutstanding Price Life {in 000's)

Qutstanding options

at January 1, 2004 1,953,848 %$19.95
Options granted 313,240 $35.62
Options exercised (200,656) $15.02 $4,664
Options cancelled/

forfeited {7,800) $27.74
Qutstanding options at

December 31, 2004 2,058,632 $22.78 516  $38,680
Exercisable options at

December 31, 2004 1,219,412 %1784 386 $28901

The majority of our options are granted annually at
the board meeting in May. In 2006, 206,300 options
were granted with an average exercise price of $50.31
and an average fair value of $13.95. Of these grants,
171,900 were granted at the board meeting in May
with a calculated fair value of $13.97. We recognized
$0.8 million of expense during 2006 related to 2006
grants. Since options granted in 2006 have been
non-qualified, we recorded a tax benefit of $0.3
million related to this compensation expense. Total
unrecognized compensation expense relating to these
grants was $1.9 million, which will be recognized over
the remainder of the five-year vesting period. There
were no options that vested during 2006.




The fair value of options were estimated using
a Black-Scholes based option pricing model with
the following grant-date assumptions and weighted
average fair values:

2006 2005 2004

Weighted-average fair value of grants ~ $13.95  $13.08  $10.62
Risk-free interest rates 4.99% 3.97% 4.55%
Dividend yield 1.51% 1.52% 1.79%
Expected volatility 2235% 2293% 21.46%
Expected option life 6.31years B.0years 9.0 years

The risk-free rate is determined based on U.S.
treasury yields that most closely approximate each
options expected life. The dividend yield is calcutated
based on the average annualized dividends paid
during the maost recent five-year period. The expected
volatility is an implied volatility. For 2008, this volatility
is calculated by computing the weighted average of
the most recent one-year volatility, the most recent
6.31-year (equal to the expected life) volatility and
the median of the 6.31-year rolling volatilities of
RLI stock. For 2006, the expected option life is
determined based on historical exercise behavior
and the assumption that all outstanding options
will be exercised at the midpaint of the current
date and remaining contractual term, adjusted for
the demographics of the current year’s grant. In
prior years, the expected life was determined using
historical exercise patterns,

As discussed previously, prior to the adoption
of SFAS 123R, we followed the intrinsic value
method in accordance with APB 25 to account for
employee stock options and accordingly recognized
no compensation expense for the stock option
grants. In accordance with SFAS 123R, we adopted
the provisions of the statement on January 1, 2006
using the modified prospective approach. Under
this method, prior periods are not restated. Had
compensation cost for share-based plans been
determined consistent with SFAS 123R, our net
earnings and earnings per share for the years ended
December 31, 2005 and 2004 would have been
reduced to the pro forma amounts that follow:

(in thousands,
except per share data) 2005 2004
Net earnings, as reported $107,134 $73,036
Add: Stock-based employee compensation
expense included in reported
earnings, net of related tax effects 553 -
Deduct: Totai stock-based employee
compensation expense determined
under fair-value-based methods for
alt awards, net of related tax effects (4,592) {1,941)
Pro forma net earnings $103,085 $71.095
Earnings per share:
Basic - as reported $4.21 $£2.90
Basic - pro forma $4.05 $2.82
Diluted - as reported $4.07 $2.80
Diluted - pro ferma $3.92 $2.72

Pro forma disclosures for 2006 are not presented
because the amounts are recognized in the statement
of earnings,

During 2004, the shareholders approved the
NonEmployee Directors™ Stock Plan (stock plan).

An aggregate of 200,000 shares of common stock

is reserved under the stock plan. The stock plan

is designed to provide compensation to each
nonemptoyee director in the form of a stock grant at
the time of such director’s election or appointment to
the board of directors, and future stock grants based
on continued service as a director. In conjunction with
the shareholders’ approval of the omnibus plan in
May 2005, no further awards will be issued under the
stock plan. Awards to outside directors will be made
under the omnibus plan.

Shares granted to outside directors were 7,267 in
2006 and 5,642 in 2005. Shares were granted at an
average share price of $51.72 in 2006 and $45.75
in 2005. In 2006, 3,452 of the shares granted were
issued under the directors’ deferred plan. We recog-
nized $0.4 million of expense, relating to these grants.

POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER
THAN PENSION

In 2002, we began offering certain eligible employ-
ees post-employment medical coverage. Under our
plan, employees who retire at age 55 or older with 20
or more years of company service may continue medi-
cal coverage under our health plan. Former employees
who elect continuation of coverage pay the
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full COBRA (Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconcilia-
tion Act of 1985) rate and coverage terminates upon
reaching age 65. We expect a relatively small number
of employees will become eligible for this benefit. The
COBRA rate established for participating employees
covers the cost of providing this coverage.

9. STATUTORY INFORMATION AND DIVIDEND
RESTRICTIONS

Qur insurance subsidiaries maintain their accounts
in conformity with accounting practices prescribed or
permitted by state insurance regulatory authorities
that vary in certain respects from GAAP. In converting
from statutory to GAAP, typical adjustments include
deferral of policy acquisition costs, the inclusion of
statutory nonadmitted assets, and the inclusion of net
unrealized holding gains or losses in shareholders’
equity relating to fixed maturities.

Year-end statutory surplus includes $44.0 million
of RLI Corp. stock {cost basis of $63.1 million) held
by Mt. Hawley Insurance Company. The Securities
Valuation Office provides specific guidance for
valuing this investment, which is eliminated in our
consolidated financial statements.

In December 2003, we closed a public debt
offering of $100.0 million, generating $98.9 million in
net proceeds. Of these proceeds, $50.0 million was
contributed to the insurance subsidiaries to bolster
statutory surplus. In March 2004, an additional $15.0
million of these proceeds was contributed to the
insurance subsidiaries.

The following table includes selected information
for our insurance subsidiaries as filed with insurance
regulatory authgrities:

(in thousands)
Year ended December 31, 2006 2005 2004

Consalidated net income,

statutory basis $136,135 § 95776 % 62,189
Consolidated surplus,
statutory basis $746,905 $690,547  $605,967

Dividend payments to us from our principal
insurance subsidiary are restricted by state insurance
laws as to the amount that may be paid without prior
approval of the regulatory authorities of lllingis. The
maximum dividend distribution is limited by lllinois
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law to the greater of 10 percent of RLI policyholder
surplus as of December 31 of the preceding vear or
the net income of RLI for the 12-month period ending
December 31 of the preceding year. RLI's stand-alone
net income for 2006 was $75.7 million. Therefore, the
maximum dividend distribution that can be paid by RLI
during 2007 without prior approval is $75.7 million —
RLI's 2006 net income. Dividends paid in the form of
asset transfers are applied to the dividend limitation
at the estimated fair value of the asset as of the
dividend date. In 20086, a total of $59.5 million was
paid in dividends by RLI Insurance as follows: asset
transfer of Maui Jim valued at $35.2 million, asset
transfer of TBW valued at $13.4 million, and a cash
dividend of $10.9 million. This left $16.2 million in
unused dividend capacity for 2006. The total amount
paid in 2005 was $13.0 millien.

10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

The following is a description of a complex set of
litigation wherein we are both a plaintiff and a defen-
dant. While it is impossible to ascertain the ultimate
outcome of this matter at this time, we believe, based
upon facts known to date, that our position is meritori-
ous. Qur opinion is that the final resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse effect on our
financial statements taken as a whole.

We are the plaintiff in an action captioned RLI
Insurance Co. v. Commerciat Money Center, which
was filed in U.S. District Court, Southern District of
California {San Diego) on February 1, 2002. Other
defendants in that action are Commercial Servicing
Corporation (“CSC"), Sterling Wayne Pirtle, Anita
Pirtle, Americana Bank & Trust, Atlantic Coast
Federal Bank, Lakeland Bank and Sky Bank. We filed
a similar complaint against the Bank of Waukegan
in San Diego, California Superior Court. Americana
Bank & Trust, Atlantic Coast Federal Bank, Lakeland
Bank. Sky Bank and Bank of Waukegan are referred
to here as the “investor banks.” The litigation arises
out of the equipment and vehicle leasing program of
Commercial Money Center (*CMC"). CMC originated
leases, procured honds pertaining to the performance
of obligations of each lessee under each lease, and
then formed “pools” of such leases that it marketed
to banks and other institutional investors. We sued for
rescission and/or exoneration of the bonds we




issued to CMC and sale and servicing agreements we
entered into with CMC and the investor banks, which
had invested in CMC’s equipment leasing program.
We contend we were fraudulently induced to issue
the bonds and enter into the agreements by CMC,
who misrepresented and concealed the true nature
of its program and the underlying leases originated
by CMC {for which bonds were procured). We also
sued for declaratory relief to determine our rights
and obligations, if any, under the instruments. Each
investor bank disputes our claims for relief. CMC is
currently in Chapter 7 bankruptcy proceedings.

Between the dates of April 4 and April 18, 2002,
each investor bank subsequently filed a complaint
against us in various state courts, which we removed
to U.S. District Courts. Each investor bank sued us
on certain bonds we issued to CMC as well as a sale
and servicing agreement between the investor bank,
CMC and us. Each investor bank sued for breach
of contract, bad faith and other extra-contractual
theories. We have answered and deny each investor
bank’s claim to entitlement to relief. The investor
banks claim entitlement to aggregate payment of
approximately $53 million under either the surety
bonds or the sale and servicing agreements, plus
unknown extra-contractual damages, attorney’s fees
and interest. On October 25, 2002, the judicial panel
for multi-district litigation (“MDL Panél") transferred
23 actions pending in five federal districts involving
numerous investor banks, five insurance companies
and CMC to the Federal District Court for the Northern
District of Ohio for consolidated pre-trial proceedings,
assigning the litigation to the Honorable Kathleen
O’'Malley.

In the third quarter of 2005, RLI reached a

confidential settlement agreement with Lakeland Bank.

This settlement ends our litigation with Lakeland, but
does not resolve our pending litigation with the four
other investor banks. The settlement with Lakeland
relates to surety bonds representing approximately 17
percent of the amount to which the five investor banks
had claimed entitlement. The settlement did not have
a material adverse effect on our financial statements
taken as a whole. In addition, in August 20085, the
Federal District Court denied outright the investor
hanks’ motion for judgment on the pleadings as to
RLI and subsequently ordered all remaining cases to
mandatory mediation. Mediations held in January

2006 between RLI and each of the four remaining
investor banks did not resolve the claims of those
investor banks. In September 2006, the Court issued
a case management order governing expert witness
discavery and future motion practice. While we cannot
predict the ultimate outcome of the pending litigation
between RL}I and the remaining four investor banks at
this time, RLI continues to believe it has meritoricus
defenses with respect to each of the banks making
claims against it and will continue to vigorously assert
those defenses in the pending litigation.

Our financial statements contain an accrual for
defense costs relating to this matter, included in
unpaid losses and settlement expenses, as well as
an accrual to cover rescission of collected premium
related to the program. In our opinion, final resclution
of this matter will not have a material adverse effect
on our financial condition, results of operations
or cash flows. However, litigation is subject to
inherent uncertainties, and if there were an outcome
unfavorable to us, there exists the possibility of a
material adverse impact on our financial condition,
results of operation or cash flows in the period in
which the cutcome occurred.

In addition, we are party to numerous claims
and losses that arise in the normal course of our
business. Many of such claims or losses involve
claims under policies that we underwrite as an insurer.
We believe that the resolution of these claims and
losses will not have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows,

We have capital lease obligations for leased
computers and operating lease obligations for regional
office facilities. These leases expire in various years
through 2013. Expense associated with these leases
totaled $3.4 million in 2006, $2.7 million in 2005 and
$2.0 mittion in 2004. Minimum future rental payments
under noncancellable leases are as follows:

(in thousands)

2007 $ 3,516
2008 2,737
2009 2,455
2010 2,149
2011 1,539
2012-2013 1,983

Total minimum future rental payments $14,379
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11. INDUSTRY SEGMENT INFORMATION

The following table summarizes our segment
data as specified by SFAS 131, “Disclosures about
Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.”
As prescribed by the pronouncement, reporting is
based on the internal structure and reporting of
information as it is used by management.

The segments of our insurance operations include
praperty, casualty, and surety. The property segment
is comprised of insurance coverages providing physi-
cal damage coverage for commercial and personal
risks. These risks are exposed to a variety of perils in-
cluding earthquakes, fires, and hurricanes. Losses are
developed in a relatively short period of time.

The casualty segment includes liability coverages
where toss and related settlement expenses must be
estimated, as the ultimate disposition of claims may
take several years to fully develop. Policy coverage is
more significantly impacted by evolving legislation and
court decisions.

The surety segment offers a selection of small and
medium-size commercial coverages related to the
statutory requirement for bonds on construction and
energy-related projects. The results of this segment
are generally characterized by relatively low loss
ratios. Expense ratios tend to be higher due to the
high volume of transactions at lower premium levels.

Net investment income is the by-product of the
interest and dividend income streams from our
investments in fixed-income and equity securities.
Interest and general corporate expenses include
the cost of debt and other director and shareholder
relations costs incurred for the benefit of the
corporation, but not attributable to the operations of
our insurance segments. Investee earnings represent
our share in Maui Jim and TBW earnings. We own
approximately 40 percent of Maui Jim, which operates
in the sunglass and optical goods industries, and, up
until the sale in December, 2006, 21 percent of TBW,
a mortgage origination company; both companies are
private.

The following table provides financial data
used by management. The net earnings of each
segment are before taxes, and include revenues (if
applicable), direct product or segment costs (such as
commissions, claims costs, etc.), as well as allocated
support costs from various overhead departments.
While depreciation and amortization charges have
been included in these measures via our expense
allocation system, the related assets are not allocated
for management use and, therefore, are not included
in this schedule.

(in thousands) Revenues Depreciation and Amortization
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Casualty $348,217 $358,893 $365,617 $2,086 $1,901 $1,671
Property 122,581 80,528 98,043 963 903 1,063
Surety 59,540 51,886 47,688 501 450 1,263
Segment totals before income taxes $530,338 $491,307 $511,348 $3,550 $3,344 $3,997
Net investment income 71,325 61,641 54,087
Net realized gains 31,045 16,354 13,365
Total $632,708 $569,302 $578,800
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{in thousands)

Net Eamings (Losses}

The following table further summarizes revenues by
major product type within each segment:

2006 2005 2004
Casualty $ 68,393 % 72,021‘ s 19,560 (iﬂ U‘lnusands) 2006 2005 2004
Property 4,988 (8,342 20,400
Surety 10,675 5,201 (69) Casualty
o 7
Net Underwriting Income s 84,056 $ 68.883 § 39.891 General |I.abl|lty $180,02 $180,267 $174,954
Commercial and
Net investment income 71,325 61,641 54,087 personal umbrella 64,730 59,847 53,478
Realized gains 31,045 16,354 13,365 Executive coverages 13,040 9,807 13,074
Genera.l Corporate expense Specialty program business 25,507 38,289 47,072
and interest on debt (14,650)  (13898) (12430)  gommercial transportation 48,285 51,707 55994
Equity in earnings of Other 16,618 18976 21,045
uncansolidated investees 15,117 10,896 5,429
- Total $348,217 $358,893 $365.617
Total earnings before
income taxes $186,893 $143,876 $100,342 Property
Income taxes 52,254 36,742 27,306 Commercial property $ 91,507 $ 66,410 % 69.169
Construction 4,493 2,521 21,633
Total $134639  $107.134 % 73,036 Wadine 16.785 3286 -
QOther property 9,796 8311 7.241
Total $122,581 $ 80,528 §$ 98,043
Surety $ 59,540 $ 51886 % 47,688
Grand total $530,338 $491,307 $511,348
12. UNAUDITED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Selected quarterly information is as follows:
(in thousands, except per share data)} First Second Third Fourth Year
2006
Net premiums earned $127,387 $125 867 $138,245  §138,839 $530,338
Net ivestment income 16,708 17,556 18,316 18,745 71,325
Net realized investment gains 4,442 1,489 2,822 22,292 31,045
Earnings before income taxes 36,263 27,506 43,562 79,662 186,893
Net earnings 25,656 22,922 30,378 55,683 134,639
Basic earnings per sharetV) $1.00 $0.91 $1.24 $2.29 $5.40
Diluted earnings per share!? $0.97 $0.89 $1.21 $2.23 $5.27
2005
Net premiums eamed $124,040 $123,674 $126,129 $117,464 $491,307
Net investment income 14,612 14,666 15,855 16,508 61,641
Net realized investment gains 2,984 4,389 7,194 1,787 16,354
Earnings before income taxes 41,540 49,609 35,680 17,047 143,876
Net eamnings 29,307 34,395 25,327 18,105 107,134
Basic earnings per share!" $1.15 $1.35 $0.99 $0.71 $4.21
Diluted earnings per share'"! $1.12 $1.31 $0.56 $0.68 $4.07

1 Since the weignied-average shares for the quarters are calculated independently of the weighted-average shares for the year, quarterly earnings per
share may not total to annual earnings per share.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
RLI Corp.:

We have audited management's assessment,
included in the accompanying Report on Controls
and Procedures, that RLI Corp. and Subsidiaries
{the Company) maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006,
hased on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COS0). The Company's management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting, Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board {United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in
all material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, evaluating management’s assessment,
testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance
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with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company, and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control
over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation
of effectiveness to future periods are subject 1o the
risk that controls may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’'s assessment that
the Company maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2008, is
fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COS0). Also, in our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 20086, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (COSQ).

We also have audited, in accordance with the
standards of the Puhlic Company Accounting Qversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets
of the Company as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
and the related consolidated statements of earnings
and comprehensive earnings, shareholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2006, and our report
dated February 28, 2007 expressed an unqualified
apinion on those consolidated financial statements.

iKPMme P

Chicago, lllinois
February 28, 2007




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
RLI Corp.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated
balance sheets of RLI Corp. and subsidiaries (the
Company) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and
the related consolidated statements of earnings and
comprehensive earnings, shareholders' equity, and
cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2006. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management, Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Ac¢counting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reascnable
assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consclidated financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in alt
material respects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and
the results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the
standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board {(United States), the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established
in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (C0S0), and our report dated
February 28, 2007 expressed an ungualified opinign
on management’s assessment of, and the effective
operation of, internal control over financial reporting.

KPM LLP

Chicago, Illinois
February 28, 2007
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL REPORTING RESPONSIBILITY

The management of RLI Corp. and Subsidiaries is
responsible for the preparation and for the integrity
and objectivity of the accompanying financial
statements and other financial information in this
report. The financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generatly
accepted in the United States of America and include
amounts that are based on management's estimates
and judgments.

Management has established and maintains
internal control throughout its operations that is
designed to provide assurance as to the integrity and
reliability of the financial statements, the protection
of assets from unauthorized use, and the execution
and recording of transactions in accordance with
management's authorization. Internal control
provides for appropriate division of responsibility and
is documented by written policies and procedures
that are updated by management as necessary.
Management considers the recommendations of its
internal auditor and independent public accounting
firm concerning the Company's internat control and
takes the necessary actions that are cost effective
in the circumstances to respond appropriately to the
recommendations presented.

The accompanying financial statements have been
audited by KPMG LLP (KPMG), an independent
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registered public accounting firm selected by the

audit committee and approved by the shareholders.
Management has made available to KPMG all of

the Company’s financial records and related data,
including minutes of directors’ meetings. Furthermore,
management believes that all representations made to
KPMG during its audit were valid and appropriate.

The audit committee is comprised of four
independent directors and is charged with general
supervision of the audits, examinations and
inspections of the books and accounts of RLI Corp.
and Subsidiaries. The independent registered public
accounting firm and the internal auditor have ready
access to the audit committee.

8{% Etbedi

Jonathan E. Michael
President, CEO

D

. Dondanville, CPA
enior Vice President, CFO




REPORT ON CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

CONCLUSION REGARDING THE EFFECTIVENESS
OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Under the supervision and with the participation
of our management, including our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an
evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures,

as such term is defined under Rule 13a-15(g)
premulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the Exchange Act). Based on

this evaluation, our principal executive officer and our
principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure
controls and procedures were effective as of the end
of the period covered by this annual report.

MANAGEMENT'S REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Under the supervision
and with the participation of our management,
including our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal cantrol over financial
reporting based on the framework in Internal

Controi — Intedrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsering Qrganizations of the
Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation
under the framework in Internal Control — integrated
Framework, our management concluded that our
internal control over financial reporting was effective
as of December 31, 2006.

Cur management’s assessment of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006 has been audited
by KPMG, an independent registered public accounting
firm, as stated in their report which is included herein.

gm Etviitl

Jonathan E. Michael
President, CEQ

€. oDl

. Dondanville, CPA
enior Vice President, CFO
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GLOSSARY

ADMITTED COMPANY
An insurer domiciled in one state licensed to do business
in one or more other states.

COMBINED RATIO {GAAP)

A common measurement of underwriting profit (less than
100) or loss {more than 100). The sum of the expense and
the loss ratios.

COMBINED RATIO (STATUTORY}

The same as a GAAP combined ratio, except in
calculating the expense ratio, the denominator used is net
premiums written instead of net premiums earned.

COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS
The sum of net aftertax earnings and net aftertax
unrealized gains {losses) on investments.

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

Liability coverage for all premises and operations, other
than personal, for non-excluded general liability hazards.
CONSOLIDATED REVENUE

Net premiums earned plus net investment income and
realized gains {losses).
DIFFERENCE IN CONDITIONS (DIC) INSURANCE

Coverage for loss normally excluded in standard
commercial or personal property policies, particularly flood
and earthquake.
EXCESS INSURANCE

A policy or bond cavering against certain hazards, only in
excess of a stated amount.
EXPENSE RATIO

The percentage of the premium used to pay all the costs
of acquiring, writing and servicing business.
FIRE INSURANCE

Property insurance on which the predominant perit is fire,
but generally includes wind and other lines.
GAAP

Generally accepted accounting principles.
HARD/FIRM MARKET

When the insurance industry has limited capacity
available to handle the amount of business written, creating
a selier's market, driving insurance prices upward.
INLAND MARINE INSURANCE

Property coverage for perils arising from transportation
of goods or covering types of property that are mobile, and
other hazards.

LOSS RATIO
The percentage of premium used to pay for losses
incurred.
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MARKET CAP

Short for market capitatization. The value of a company
as determined by the market. Multiply the share price by the
number of putstanding shares. Can change daily.

MARKET VALUE POTENTIAL (MVP)

An RLI incentive plan covering all employees that requires
we first generate a return in excess of our cost of capital,
aligning our interests with those of sharehoiders.

PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

Insures against claims for damages due to professional
misconduct or tack of ordinary care in the performance of a
service.

REINSURER/REINSURANCE
A company that accepts part or all of the risk of loss
covered by another insurer. Insurance for insurers.,

RESERVES
Funds set aside by an insurer for meeting estimated
obligations when due. Periodically readjusted.

SOFT MARKET

When the insurance industry has excess capacity to
handle the amount of business written, creating a buyer’'s
market, lowering insurance prices overall.

STANDARD LINES VS. SPECIALTY LINES

Those insurance coverages or target market segments
that are commonly insured through large, admitted insurers
using standard forms and pricing are in contrast to unique
insurance coverages or selected market niches that are
served by only a single insurer or a select group of insurers,
often with unique coverage forms and pricing approach.

SURETY BOND
Provides for compensation if specific acts are not
performed within a stated period.

SURPLUS LINES COMPANY

In most states, an insurer not licensed to do business
in that state, but which may sell insurance in the state if
admitted insurers decline to write a risk.

TRANSPORTATION INSURANCE

Coverage for transporting people or goods by land. For
RLI, this involves motor vehicle transportation and facuses
on automabile liability and physical damage, with incidental
public liability, umbrella and excess liability, and motor truck
cargo insurance.

UNREALIZED GAINS {LOSSES}

The result of an increase (decrease) in fair value of an
asset which is not recognized in the traditional statement
of income. The difference between an asset's fair and book
values.




INVESTOR INFORMATION

ANNUAL MEETING

The annual meeting of shareholders will be held at
2 p.m., CDT, on May 3, 2007, at our offices at 9025
N. Lindbergh Drive, Peoria, I\l

TRADING AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

Stock Price Dividends
2006 High Low Close Declared
1st Quarter $57.35 $50.65 $57.30 $.47
2nd Quarter 57.25 45,85 48.18 .19
3rd Quarter 51.62 45.16 50.79 19
4th Quarter 57.41 49.75 56.42 .20

Stock Price Dividends
2005 High Low Close Declared
1st Quarter $44.99 $40.28 $41.45 $.14
2nd Quarter 46.80 40.73 44.60 .16
3rd Quarter 4875 4479 46.26 .16
Ath Quarter 55.68 44.00 4987 A7

RLI common stock trades on the New York Stock
Exchange under the symbol RLI. RLI has paid and in-
creased dividends for 31 consecutive years.

STOCK OWNERSHIP

December 31, 2006 Shares %
Insiders 2,004,667 8.2
ESOP 1,713,298 7.1

Institutions & other public 20,555,013 84.7

Total cutstanding 24,272,978 100.0

SHAREHOLDER INQUIRIES

Shareholders of record with requests concerning
individual account balances, stock certificates, divi-
dends, stock transfers, tax information or address
corrections should contact the transfer agent and
registrar:
Wells Fargo Shareholder Services
P.O. Box 64854
St. Paul, MN 55164-0854
Phone: {800) 468-9716 or (651) 450-4064
Fax: (651) 450-4033
Email: stocktransfer@wellsfargo.com

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLANS

If you wish to sign up for an automatic dividend
reinvestment and stock purchase plan or to have
your dividends deposited directly into your checking,
savings or money market accounts, send your request
to the transfer agent and registrar.

REQUESTS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Electronic versions of the following documents
are, or will be made, available on our website: 2006

summary annual report; 2006 financial report;

2007 proxy statement; annual report on form 10Q-K;
code of conduct, corporate governance guidelines;
and charters of the executive resources, audit,
finance and investment, strategy, and nominating/
corporate governance commitiees, Printed copies
of these documents are available without charge to
any shareholder. To be placed on a mailing list to
receive shareholder materials, contact our corporate
headquarters.

COMPANY FINANCIAL STRENGTH RATINGS

A.M, Best: A+ {Superior) RL! Group
Standard & Poor's: A+ (Strong) RLI Insurance
Company
A+ (Strong) Mt. Hawley
Insurance
Company
Moody's: A2 (Good) RLI Insurance
Company
AZ (Good) Mt. Hawley
Insurance
Company
A2 {Good) RLI Indemnity
Company

CONTACTING RLI

For investor relations requests and management’s
perspective on specific issues, contact John Robison,
treasurer, at (309) 693-5846 or at john_robison@
rlicorp.com.

Turn to the back cover for corporate headquarters
contact information.

Find comprehensive investor information
at www.rlicorp.com,
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following is selected financial data of RLI Corp. and Subsidiaries for the 11 years ended December 31, 2006,

(amounts in thousands, except per share data) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

OPERATING RESULTS

Gross premiums written 799,013 756,012 752,588 742,477 707.453

Consolidated revenue 632,708 569,302 578,800 519,886 382,153

Net earnings 134,639 107,134 73,036 71,291 35,852

Comprehensive earnings™ 156,999 83,802 81,354 97,693 13,673

@ (| B | h

Net cash provided from operating activities 171,775 198,027 188,962 191,019 161,971

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Total investments 1,828,241 1,697,791 1,569,718 1,333,360 1,000,027

Total assets 2,771,296 2,735870 2,468,775 2,134,364 1,718,327

Unpaid losses and settlement expenses 1,318,777 1,331,866 1,132,599 903,441 732,838

Total shareholders’ equity 756,520 692,941 623,661 554,134 456,555

$
$
$
Total debt $ 100,000 115,541 146,839 147,560M 54,356
$
$

Statutory surplus® 746,905 690,547 605,9677 546,586  401,2699

SHARE INFORMATION®
Net earnings per share:

Basic $ 5.40 421 2.90 2.84 1.80

Dituted $ .27 4.07 2.80 2.76 1.75
Comprehensive earnings per share:?

Basic $ 6.30 3.30 3.23 3.89 0.69

Diluted 3 6.14 3.19 3.12 3.78 0.67
Cash dividends declared per share $ 0.75 0.63 0.51 0.40 0.35
Book value per share $ 31.17 27.12 24.64 22.02 18.508
Closing stock price $ 56.42 49.87 41.57 37.46 27.90
Stock split 200%
Weighted average shares outstanding:'5#®

Basic 24,918 25,459 25,223 25,120 19,937

Diluted 25,571 26,324 26,093 25,846 20,512
Common shares outstanding 24,273 25,651 25,316 25,165 24,681

OTHER NON-GAAP FINANCIAL INFORMATION®

Net premiums written to statutory surplus™ 74% 72% 84% 87% 103%
GAAP combined ratio 84.1 86.0 92.2 92.0 95.6
Statutary combined ratio®™ 84.0 86.7 93.8 93.1 92.4
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M See page 2 for information regarding
2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 non-GAAP financial measures.

2

See note 1.M to the consclidated
financial statements.

511,985 437.867 339.575 291,073 278,843 276,801 @ Ratios and surplus information are
presented on a statutory basis. As
09,354 263,496 225,756 168,114 169424 155354 discussed further in the MD&A and
31,047 28.693 31,451 28,239 30,171 25,696 note 9, statutory accounting principles
differ from GAAP and are generally
11.373 42,042 20,880 51.758 66,415 41,970 basedona solvency concept,
77.874 53,118 58,361 23,578 35,022 48,947 Reparting of statutory surplus is a

required disclosure under GAAP.

* On October 15, 2002, our stock split
on a 2-for-1 basis. All share and per

93,5642 756,111 691,244 677.294 603,857 537,946 share data has been retro-actively
90,970 1,281,323 1,170,363 1,012,685 911,741 845474 stated to reflect this split.
04,505 539,750 520.494 415523 404263 405,801

18]

On December 26, 2002, we closed
an underwritten public offering of 4.8

77,239 78,763 78,397 39.644 24,900 46,000 million shares of common stock. This
offering generated $115.1 million in

35,432 326,654 293,069  293.958 266,552 200,039 net proceeds. Of this, $80.0 million

89,997 309,945 286,247 314,484 265526 207,787 was contributed to the insurance

subsidiaries, Remaining funds were
used to pay dewn lines of credit.

|

In July 1993, we issued $46.0 million
of convertible debentures. In July

158 1.46 1.55 1.34 1.45 1.30 1997, these securities were called for
. _ redemption. This conversion created
1.55 1.44 1.54 1.33 1.33 1.14 an additional 4.4 millicn new shares of
RLI common stock.
% On December 12, 2003, we
0.58 2.14 1.03 2.46 3.19 2.13 successfully completed a public
0.57 211 1.02 2.43 288 1.81 debt offering, issuing $100.0 miilign
in Seniar Notes maturing January
0.32 0.30 0.28 0.26 0.24 0.22 15, 2014. This offering generated
16.92 16.66 14.84 14.22 12.35 10.23 proceeds. ret of discount and
cemmission, of $98.9 miltien. Of
22.50 22.35 17.00 16.63 19.93 13.35 the proceeds, capital contributions
125% were made in 2003 and 2004 to our

insurance subsidiaries to increase
their statutory surplus in the amounts
19,630  19.634 20,248 21,028 20,804 19,742 of $50.0 million and $15.0 million.
respectively. Remaining funds were
20,004 19,891 20,444 21,276 23,428 24,210 retained at the holding company.

19,826 19,608 19,746 20,670 21,586 19,554

109% 84% 79% 46% 54% 64%
97.2 94.8 91.2 88.2 86.8 87.4
95.8 95.8 g0.1 88.4 90.4 89.1
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2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996
11,985 437,867 339,575 281,073 278,843 276,801
309,354 263,496 225,756 168,114 169,424 155,354
31,047 28,693 31,451 28,239 30,171 25,696
11,373 42,042 20,880 51,758 66,415 41,970
77,874 53,118 58,361 23,578 35,022 48,947
723,542 756,111 691,244 677,294 603,857 537,946
390,970 1,281,323 1,170,363 1,012,685 911,741 845,474
504,505 539,750 520,494 415,523 404,263 405,801
77,239 78,763 78,397 39,644 24,900 46,000
335,432 326,654 293,069 293,959 266,552 200,039
289,097 309,945 286,247 314,484 265,526 207,787
1.58 1.46 1.55 1.34 1.45 1.30
1.55 1.44 1.54 1.33 1.33 1.14
0.58 2.14 1.03 2.46 3.19 2.13
0.57 2.11 1.02 2.43 2.88 1.81
0.32 0.30 0.28 0.26 0.24 0.22
16.92 16.66 14.84 14.22 12.35 10.23
22.50 22.35 17.00 16.63 19.83 13.35
125%
18,630 19,634 20,248 21,028 20,804 19,742
20,004 19,891 20,444 21,276 23,428 24,210
19,826 19,608 19,746 20,670 21,586 19,554
109% 84% 79% 46% 54% 64%
97.2 94.8 91.2 88.2 86.8 87.4
95.8 95.8 90.1 88.4 90.4 89.1

()

12)

13}

[

45

(81

i

See page 2 for information regarding
non-GAAP financial measures.

See note 1.M 1o the consolidated
financial statements.

Ratios and surplus information are
presented on a statulory basis. As
discussed further in the MD&A and
note 9, statutery accounting principles
differ from GAAP and are generally
based on a salvency concept.
Reporting of statutory surplus is a
required disclosure under GAAP.

Cn Cctober 15, 2002, our stock split
on a 2-far-1 basis. All share and per
share data has been retro-actively
stated to reflect this split.

On December 26, 2002, we closed
an underwritien public offering of 4.8
million shares of commaon stock. This
offering generated $115.1 million in
net proceeds. Of this, $80.0 million
was contributed to the insurance
subsidiaries. Remaining funds were
used 1o pay down lines of credit.

In July 1993, we issued $46.0 million
of convertible debentures. in July
1997, these securities were called for
redemption. This conversion created
an additional 4.4 million new shares of
RLI common stock,

On December 12, 2003, we
successfully completed a public
debt offering, issuing $100.0 million
in Senior Notes maturing January
15, 2014, This offering generated
proceeds, net of discount and
commission, of $98.9 million. Of
the proceeds, capital contributions
were made in 2003 and 2004 10 our
insurance subsidiaries to increase
their statutory surplus in the amounts
of $50.0 million and $15.0 miltion,
respectively. Remaining funds were
retained at the holding company.
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